SPRINT Corp Form DEF 14A June 26, 2015 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Filed by the Registrant x Filed by a party other than the Registrant "

Check appropriate box:

- " Preliminary Proxy Statement
- " Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
- x Definitive Proxy Statement
- " Definitive Additional Materials
- " Soliciting Material under § 240.14a-12

SPRINT CORPORATION

(Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if Other Than the Registrant)

Payment of filing fee (Check the appropriate box):

X

No f	ee required.
Fee o	computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.
(1)	Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
(2)	
(2)	Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
(3)	Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (Set forth the amount on
	which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
(4)	Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
(5)	Total fee paid:
(5)	Total rec paid.
Fee j	paid previously with preliminary materials:
Chec	ck box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the form or schedule and the date of its filing.
(1)	Amount Previously Paid:
(2)	
(2)	Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
(3)	Filing Party:

(4) Date Filed:

Notice of

Annual Meeting of

Stockholders and

Proxy Statement

To be held August 7, 2015

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

It is my pleasure to invite you to attend our 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders on Friday, August 7, 2015 at 8:00 a.m. Pacific time. We are very pleased that this year s annual meeting will again be a completely virtual meeting of stockholders, which will be conducted solely via live webcast. We are proud to be nominating a new director, Julius Genachowski, for election to our board. You will be able to attend the 2015 Annual Meeting online, vote your shares electronically, and submit your questions during the meeting by visiting: www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/SprintCorp15.

The purpose of the annual meeting is to consider and take action on the following:

- 1. Election of the nine directors named in the proxy statement;
- 2. Ratification of the selection of the independent registered public accounting firm;
- 3. Advisory approval of the Company s named executive officer compensation;
- 4. Approval of the Company s 2015 Omnibus Incentive Plan; and
- 5. Any other business that properly comes before the meeting as well as any adjournment or postponement of the meeting.

We are taking advantage of Securities and Exchange Commission rules that allow us to furnish proxy materials to you via the Internet. Unless you have already requested to receive a printed set of proxy materials, you will receive a Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Material, or Notice. The Notice contains instructions on how to access proxy materials and vote your shares via the Internet or, if you prefer, to request a printed set of proxy materials at no additional cost to you. We believe that this approach provides a convenient way for you to access your proxy materials and vote your shares, while lowering our printing and delivery costs and reducing the environmental impact associated with our annual meeting.

Stockholders of record as of June 9, 2015 are eligible to vote at the annual meeting. On or about June 26, 2015, we mailed the Notice or, for stockholders who have already requested to receive a printed set of proxy materials, this proxy statement, the accompanying proxy card, and the Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2014.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Charles R. Wunsch

Senior Vice President, General

Counsel, Corporate Secretary, and

Chief

Ethics Officer

REVIEW YOUR PROXY STATEMENT AND VOTE IN ONE OF FOUR WAYS:

VIA THE INTERNET BY MAIL

Visit the website listed on your proxy card

Sign, date and return your proxy card in the

enclosed envelope

BY TELEPHONE BY VIRUTAL MEETING

Call the telephone number on your proxy card

Attend our virtual stockholder meeting on

August 7, 2015

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON AUGUST 7, 2015. The Notice of Annual

Meeting, Proxy Statement and Annual Report on Form 10-K are available at

www.proxyvote.com.

Table of Contents

3
3
5
10
11
11
12
12
13
13
13
14
14
15
17
18
19
20
20
21
21
22
23
24
24
24
25
26
32
32
32

Corporate Governance Highlights	35
Stock Ownership Guidelines	35
Stockholder Say-on-Pay Vote	36
Tax Deductibility of Compensation	36
Compensation Committee Report	37
Relationship of Compensation Practices to Risk Management	37
Fiscal Year 2014 Summary Compensation Table	38
Fiscal Year 2014 Grants of Plan-Based Awards	43
Outstanding Equity Awards at 2014 Fiscal Year-End	44
Fiscal Year 2014 Option Exercises and Stock Vested	46
Fiscal Year 2014 Pension Benefits	47
Fiscal Year 2014 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation	49
Fiscal Year 2014 Potential Payments upon Termination of Employment or Change in Control	49
Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions	55
Policy on Oversight of Related Party Transactions	55
Related Party Transactions During Fiscal Year 2014	55
Security Ownership	61
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners	61
Security Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers	62
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance	62
Proposal 2. Ratification of the Selection of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	64
Principal Accounting Fees and Services	65
Proposal 3. Advisory Approval of the Company s Named Executive Officer Compensation	67
Proposal 4. Approval of the 2015 Omnibus Incentive Plan	68
General Information	86
Information Regarding Solicitation	86
Purpose of the Annual Meeting	86
Record Date; Stockholders Entitled to Vote	86
Street Name and Broker Non-Votes	86
Voting Standards	87
<u>Quorum</u>	87
Voting of Proxies	87
Revocability of Proxies and Changes to a Stockholder s Vote	88
Solicitation of Proxies	88
Voting by Our Employees Participating in Sprint s 401(k) Plan	88
Delivery of Proxy Materials to Households Where Two or More Stockholders Reside	89
Internet Availability of the Proxy Materials	89
Attending the Annual Meeting Online	90
Proposals Submitted Pursuant to Rule 14a-8	90
Proposals or Nominations Not Submitted Pursuant to Rule 14a-8	90
Availability of Sprint s Bylaws	90
Form 10-K	90
<u>Litigation</u>	90
Annex A: 2015 Omnibus Incentive Plan	A-1

2 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Proposal 1 Election of Directors

Proposal 1 Election of Directors

Our bylaws currently fix the number of directors at ten. Our board is currently composed of nine directors. Frank Ianna is not standing for re-election but will serve on our board until the annual meeting. However, Julius Genachowski has been recommended for nomination and will be standing for election at the annual meeting. Each of our nine nominated directors is standing for election to serve until the 2016 annual meeting and until a successor has been duly elected and qualified. You may not vote for more than nine nominees, either in person or by proxy.

Unless you direct otherwise, the persons named in the accompanying proxy will vote your shares for the election of the nominees named below. Each nominee has consented to be named and to continue to serve if elected. If any of the nominees becomes unavailable for election for any reason, the proxies will be voted for the other nominees and for any substitutes.

All of our directors bring to our board significant executive leadership experience derived from their service as executives and in some cases chief executive officers of large corporations. They also bring extensive board experience and a diversity of views and perspectives derived from their individual experiences working globally in a broad range of industries and occupations. Certain individual experiences, qualifications, and skills of our directors that contribute to our board s effectiveness as a whole are described under Nominees for Director below. No family relationships exist among any of our directors or executive officers.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, or Nominating Committee sought to recruit an additional board member who aligns with our long-term growth strategy. After consideration of a number of candidates submitted through our nomination process, including a comprehensive review of the candidates—abilities and qualifications, the Nominating Committee recommended that Mr. Genachowski be elected to the board. The strong qualifications that would make Mr. Genachowski a highly valuable asset to our board are further described below under his biography and—Summary of Director Qualifications and Expertise.

Director Nomination Process

On July 10, 2013, SoftBank Corp. and certain of its wholly-owned subsidiaries (together, SoftBank) completed a merger (the SoftBank Merger) with Sprint Nextel Corporation, a Kansas corporation (Sprint Nextel) as contemplated by the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of October 15, 2012 (as amended, the Merger Agreement). The SoftBank Merger consideration totaled approximately \$22.2 billion, consisting of cash and stock. As a result of the SoftBank Merger and subsequent open market securities purchases, SoftBank owned approximately 80% of Sprint Corporation (Sprint or the Company or we, our, or us) as of March 31, 2015.

So long as SoftBank remains our controlling stockholder, our governing documents confer upon SoftBank certain rights. Our bylaws have provided that until July 10, 2015, our board should be composed as follows:

the Chief Executive Officer of Sprint;

three independent directors designated by SoftBank;

three continuity directors (independent directors who served on the Sprint Nextel board); and three additional directors, who need not be independent, designated by SoftBank.

We consider all directors nominated by SoftBank, except the continuity directors and our CEO, to be SoftBank Designees. SoftBank Designees who are not independent are known as SoftBank Affiliate Directors. The board has determined that the following nominees are independent: Bennett, Bethune, Genachowski, Mullen, and Tucker.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 3

Proposal 1 Election of Directors

In accordance with our bylaws, our board currently consists of our President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) (Marcelo Claure), two independent directors designated by SoftBank (Adm. Michael Mullen and Sara Martinez Tucker), three continuity directors (Robert Bennett, Gordon Bethune, and Frank Ianna), and three additional directors designated by SoftBank (Masayoshi Son, Ronald Fisher, and Nikesh Arora). If elected by our stockholders, effective as of the annual meeting, Mr. Genachowski will join the board as an independent director designated by SoftBank.

Our bylaws provide that, from July 11, 2015 until July 10, 2016, there is no requirement to retain the continuity directors. However, SoftBank will be required to nominate six independent directors, our Chief Executive Officer, and three additional directors of its choosing who need not be independent to our board. These provisions remain in effect unless the combined voting interest of SoftBank and its controlled affiliates in our Company falls below 50% and remains below 50% for 90 consecutive days.

The Nominating Committee takes an active role in evaluating prospective candidates or current board members for nomination, including those candidates nominated by SoftBank. The Nominating Committee considers all factors it deems relevant, including, but not limited to, the candidate s:

character, including reputation for personal integrity and adherence to high ethical standards; judgment;

knowledge and experience in leading a successful company, business unit, or other institution; independence from our Company;

ability to contribute diverse views and perspectives;

business acumen; and

ability and willingness to devote the time and attention necessary to be an effective director all in the context of an assessment of the needs of our board at that point in time.

Consistent with its charter and our Corporate Governance Guidelines, our Nominating Committee places a great deal of importance on identifying candidates who have a variety of views and perspectives arising out of their individual experiences, professional expertise, educational background, and skills. In considering candidates for our board, the Nominating Committee considers the totality of each candidate s credentials in the context of this standard.

The Nominating Committee considers candidates recommended by our stockholders, using the same key factors described above for purposes of its evaluation. A stockholder who wishes to recommend a prospective nominee for our board should notify the Corporate Secretary in writing with supporting material that the stockholder considers appropriate. The Nominating Committee considers whether to nominate any person nominated by a stockholder pursuant to the provisions of our bylaws relating to stockholder nominations for election at an annual stockholder

meeting. To nominate a director, the stockholder must deliver the information as required by our bylaws.

4 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Proposal 1 Election of Directors

Nominees for Director

NIKESH ARORA, 47, Sprint director since 2014; Vice Chairman, President, and Chief Operating Officer of SoftBank Corp.

Committee: Finance

Public Company Board Directorships: SoftBank Corp. (Tokyo Stock Exchange)

Former Directorships Held During the Past Five Years: Colgate-Palmolive Company

Biography: Mr. Arora was named President and Chief Operating Officer of SoftBank Corp. effective as of June 19, 2015 and was Chief Executive Officer of SB Group US, Inc. (f/k/a SB Internet and Media, Inc.) and Vice Chairman of SoftBank Corp. from September 2014. Mr. Arora joined Google, Inc. in 2004 and held several positions within the company, including serving as its Chief Business Officer and Senior Vice President until August 2014. He also previously served as the Chief Marketing Officer and a member of the management board of T-Mobile International AG & Co. KG (a/k/a T-Mobile Europe).

Qualifications: Mr. Arora s broad experience and executive leadership in leading edge technology companies allows him to contribute valuable insight and perspective for our board to further Sprint s growth and overall competitiveness.

ROBERT BENNETT, 57, Sprint director since 2006; Managing Director of Hilltop Investments, LLC, a private investment company

Committees: Audit (Chair) and Finance

Public Company Board Directorships: Hewlett-Packard Company, Discovery Communications, Inc. and Liberty Media Corporation.

Former Directorships Held During the Past Five Years: Demand Media, Inc.

Biography: Mr. Bennett is the former President and Chief Executive Officer of Liberty Media Corporation. He served in those positions from April 1997 until August 2005. He was one of the founding executives of Liberty and served as its Principal Financial Officer from its inception in 1991 until 1997. He currently is Managing Director of Hilltop Investments, LLC, a family investment company. Mr. Bennett also served as President of Discovery Holding Company from March 2005 until September 2008 when it merged with Discovery Communications, Inc., creating a new public company. Prior to his tenure at Liberty, he worked with Tele-Communications, Inc. in a variety of

financial positions and with the Bank of New York.

Qualifications: Mr. Bennett has extensive knowledge of the capital markets and other financial and operational issues from his experiences as a principal financial officer and president and chief executive officer of Liberty Media, which allows him to provide an invaluable perspective on financial and operational matters to our board.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 5

Proposal 1 Election of Directors

GORDON BETHUNE, 73, Sprint director since 2004; retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Continental Airlines, Inc., an international commercial airline company

Committees: Compensation (Chair) and Nominating

Public Company Board Directorships: Honeywell International, Inc. and Prudential Financial, Inc.

Former Directorships Held During the Past Five Years: Willis Group Holdings, Ltd.

Biography: Mr. Bethune served as Chief Executive Officer of Continental Airlines from 1994 and as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer from 1996 until December 30, 2004.

Qualifications: Mr. Bethune has extensive experience serving as a chief executive officer and director of large international corporations, providing our board with the perspective of someone familiar with all facets of an international enterprise. He has extensive experience with developing and implementing strategies and policies for the acquisition and development of employee talent.

MARCELO CLAURE, 44, Sprint director since 2014; President and Chief Executive Officer of Sprint

Biography: Mr. Claure was named President and CEO, effective August 11, 2014, and has served on the Sprint board of directors since January 2014. Prior to this, he was CEO of Brightstar, a company he founded in 1997 and grew from a small Miami-based distributor into a global business with more than \$10 billion in gross revenue for the year ended 2013. Marcelo serves on the board of directors of CTIA-The Wireless Association and is a member of its 2015 Executive Committee. He also is a member of the board of directors of My Brother s Keeper Alliance.

Qualifications: As our President and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Claure provides our board with unparalleled insight into our Company s operations. His experience in the telecommunications industry while making Brightstar one of the largest global distribution, services, and innovation companies in the industry provides a valuable perspective to our board.

6 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Proposal 1 Election of Directors

RONALD FISHER, 67, Vice Chairman of the Board and Sprint director since 2013; Director and President of SoftBank Holdings Inc.

Committees: Finance (Chair) and Compensation

Public Company Board Directorships: SoftBank Corp. (Tokyo Stock Exchange)

Former Directorships Held During the Past Five Years: E*Trade Financial Corp. and GSI Commerce

Biography: Mr. Fisher has over 30 years of experience of working with high growth and turnaround technology companies, Mr. Fisher joined SoftBank in 1995, overseeing its U.S. operations and other activities outside of Asia, and was the founder of SoftBank Capital. He is currently Director and President of SoftBank Holdings, Inc. and serves as a member of the board of directors of SoftBank Corp. Prior to joining SoftBank, Mr. Fisher was the CEO of Phoenix Technologies Ltd., the leading developer and marketer of system software products for personal computers, from 1990 to 1995. Mr. Fisher joined Phoenix from Interactive Systems Corporation, a UNIX software company that was purchased by the Eastman Kodak Company in 1988. At Interactive Systems he served for five years as President, initially as COO and then CEO. Mr. Fisher s experience prior to Interactive Systems includes senior executive positions at Visicorp, TRW, and ICL (USA). Mr. Fisher earned an MBA from Columbia University, New York, and a Bachelor of Commerce from the University of Witwatersrand in South Africa.

Oualifications: Mr. Fisher was selected because he possesses particular knowledge and experience in technology industries, and with strategic planning and leadership of complex organizations, including at other public corporations.

JULIUS GENACHOWSKI, 52, SoftBank Designee director nominee

Committees: Audit (if elected)

Public Company Board Directorships: Mastercard, Inc.

Biography: Mr. Genachowski is a Managing Director at The Carlyle Group, which he joined in 2014. He served as Chairman of the U.S. Federal Communications Commission from 2009 to 2013. He held senior executive positions for about eight years at IAC, which owned and operated Internet and media companies including Expedia, Ticketmaster, and USA Network. Also prior to the FCC, he was engaged with several public and private companies in the technology, media, and telecommunications sector as a board member, investor, or advisor. He is a senior fellow at the Aspen Institute, and has taught a joint class at Harvard Business and Law Schools. Earlier in his career, he was a

law clerk to U.S. Supreme Court Justice David H. Souter, and worked in Congress for the Select Committee on the Iran-Contra Affair and for then-Representative Charles Schumer. He is currently a member of the President s Intelligence Advisory Board.

Qualifications: Mr. Genachowski s experience as a senior executive and director at Internet, media, and other consumer-facing and technology companies paired with his experience as former Chairman of the FCC provides our board with a valuable perspective on the business and regulatory environments in which our Company operates.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 7

Proposal 1 Election of Directors

ADM. MICHAEL MULLEN, 68, Sprint director since 2013; former 17th Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff

Committee: Compensation

Public Company Board Directorships: General Motors Company

Biography: Adm. Mullen serves on the board of directors as the Security Director under the National Security Agreement between Sprint, SoftBank, the Department of Justice, the Department of Homeland Security, and the Department of Defense. Admiral Mullen served as the 17th Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff from October 2007 until his retirement in September 2011. Previously, Admiral Mullen served as the 28th Chief of Naval Operations (CNO) from July 2005 to 2007. CNO was one of four different four-star assignments Admiral Mullen held, including Commander, U.S. Naval Forces Europe and Commander, Allied Joint Force Command, and the 32nd Vice Chief of Naval Operations. Since 2012, he has served as President of MGM Consulting LLC and is the Charles and Marie Robertson Visiting Professor at the Woodrow Wilson School of Public and International Affairs at Princeton University.

Qualifications: Adm. Mullen brings to our board extensive senior leadership experience gained during his 43-year career in the U.S. military. As Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff, the highest ranking officer in the U.S. military, Adm. Mullen led the armed forces during a critical period of transition, overseeing two active war zones. Adm. Mullen s experience and relationships within the government allow him to lead our Government Security Committee and provide guidance on national security matters impacting the telecommunications industry. Adm. Mullen s unique experience leading change in complex organizations, executive development and succession planning, diversity implementation, crisis management, strategic planning, budget policy, risk management, and technical innovation are important to the oversight of Sprint s business and allows him to make a significant and invaluable contribution to our board.

MASAYOSHI SON, 57, Chairman of the Board, Sprint director since 2013; Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of SoftBank Corp.

Committee: Finance

Public Company Board Directorships: SoftBank Corp. and Alibaba Group Holding Limited

Biography: Mr. Son founded SoftBank Corp. in September 1981 and has been its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since February 1986. Mr. Son also served as President of SoftBank Corp. from February 1986 until June 2015. Mr. Son serves in various capacities within SoftBank s portfolio of companies, including Vodafone K.K. (currently

SoftBank Mobile Corp.) as its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since 2006. In addition, Mr. Son sits on the board of directors of Yahoo! Japan Corporation and served as its Chairman from 1996 until 2015, which was established as a joint venture between SoftBank and Yahoo! Inc. Mr. Son has also served as Chairman of the Broadband Association in Japan and of The Great East Japan Earthquake Recovery Initiative Foundation. Mr. Son received a B.A. in Economics from the University of California Berkeley.

8 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Proposal 1 Election of Directors

Qualifications: Mr. Son s vast experience in the telecommunications industry, including his successes in Japan disrupting telecom duopolies, is valuable to Sprint. As part of the SoftBank Merger, it was determined that Mr. Son, because of his interest as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of SoftBank, our controlling stockholder, would be appointed to our board. Mr. Son provides expertise, leadership and strategic direction to the Sprint board.

SARA MARTINEZ TUCKER, 60, Sprint director since 2013; former President and Chief Executive Officer of the National Math and Science Initiative

Committees: Nominating (Chair) and Audit

Public Company Board Directorships: American Electric Power Co., Inc. and Xerox Corp.

Biography: Ms. Tucker served as Chief Executive Officer and President at National Math and Science Initiative, Inc. from March 2013 until February 2015. Ms. Tucker served as the Under Secretary of the U.S. Department of Education from 2006 to December 2008. Her responsibilities included overseeing policies, programs and activities related to postsecondary education, vocational and adult education, and federal student aid. Ms. Tucker served as the Chief Executive Officer and President of the Hispanic Scholarship Fund from 1997 to October 1, 2006. Previously, she worked for 16 years at AT&T and served as Regional Vice President of its Global Business Communications Systems. She has been a Trustee of University of Notre Dame since June 2009, and a member of the University of Texas System Board of Regents since May 2015.

Qualifications: Ms. Tucker brings to our board expertise relevant to a large telecommunications company, including her business experience and executive leadership expertise. These skills and experience are the result of her education, experience in the telecommunications industry, service at the U.S. Department of Education, leadership positions at the Hispanic Scholarship Fund, and her service on other public company boards and committees.

Director Not Standing for Re-election

Frank Ianna, age 66. Retired Former President of Network Services at AT&T. Mr. Ianna retired from AT&T after a 31-year career serving in various executive positions. Following his retirement, Mr. Ianna served as a business consultant, executive, and board member for several private and nonprofit enterprises. Mr. Ianna served as one of our directors since 2009.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Proposal 1 Election of Directors

Summary of Director Qualifications and Expertise

The table below summarizes the key qualifications, skills, or attributes of each of our directors that were most relevant to the decision to nominate him or her to serve on our board. The lack of a mark does not mean the director does not possess that qualification or skill; rather a mark indicates a specific area of focus or expertise on which our board relies most heavily. These qualifications and relevant experience have been discussed in more detail above.

Experience, Expertise or Attribute	Son	Fisher	Arora	Bennett	Bethune	Claure	Genachowski	Mullen	Tucker
Telecom									
Technology, Device									
and Services Leadership Global Business Financial									
Mergers & Acquisitions									
Public Company Board Service or Governance									
Research & Academic									
Ethnicity, Gender, National or Other Diversity									
Government									

Our Board of Directors Recommends That You Vote FOR The Directors Nominated In Proposal 1.

10 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Board Operations

Board Operations

As part of the SoftBank Merger, SoftBank was given certain governance rights, which are detailed in our Certificate of Incorporation, bylaws, and other corporate governance documents available at www.sprint.com/governance.

Corporate Governance Matters

We have elected to be treated as a controlled company under New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, listing standards because more than 50% of our voting power is held by SoftBank. Accordingly, we are exempt from certain requirements of the NYSE corporate governance rules, including the requirement that we have a majority of independent directors on our board and the requirement that the compensation and nominating and corporate governance committees of the board have written charters addressing certain specified matters. In addition, the NYSE rules allow for a controlled company to have non-independent directors on the compensation committee and nominating and corporate governance committee.

Governance Highlights

In keeping with good corporate governance practices, we maintain a comprehensive set of corporate governance initiatives that include the following:

- ü maintaining a majority of independent directors;
- ü an Audit Committee comprised solely of independent directors;
- ü a Nominating Committee currently comprised solely of independent directors;
- ü a Compensation Committee chaired by an independent director;

ü

bylaws that provide, for so long as we are a controlled company, at least one member of our Compensation Committee and Nominating Committee will be independent;

- ü maintaining written charters for each of our standing committees;
- ü giving independent directors the ability to propose agenda items, including for executive sessions;
- refining our policies and goals with respect to the determination of executive compensation programs, including increasing emphasis on performance-based equity compensation, as further described under Executive Compensation Compensation Discussion and Analysis;
- ü permitting our stockholders to take certain actions by written consent;
- ü adopting stock ownership guidelines for any officer at the level of senior vice president or above and for outside directors; and
- ü maintaining a declassified board.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 11

Board Operations

In addition, we have also adopted the following corporate governance initiatives:

requiring outside directors to hold executive sessions without management present no less than two times a year, which may be at or in conjunction with regularly-scheduled board meetings;

publishing our *Corporate Governance Guidelines* and charters for all standing committees of our board, which detail important aspects of our governance policies and practices on our website;

maintaining limits on the number of other public company boards and audit committees on which our directors may serve;

adopting a policy that prohibits our independent registered public accounting firm from providing professional services, including tax services, to any employee or board member or any of their immediate family members that would impair the independence of our independent registered public accounting firm; and

conducting annual board and committee evaluations for Audit, Compensation, and Nominating. In the event we cease to be a controlled company within the meaning of the NYSE s rules, we would then be required to comply with certain governance requirements after the transition periods specified by the NYSE.

Contacting our Board

We value the views of our stakeholders. Consistent with this approach, our board has established a system to receive, track, and respond to communications from stakeholders addressed to our board or to our outside directors. A statement regarding our board communications policy is available at www.sprint.com/governance.

Any stakeholder who wishes to communicate with our board or any director may write to our Senior Vice President, General Counsel, Corporate Secretary, and Chief Ethics Officer who is our Board Communications Designee, at the following address:

Sprint Corporation

6200 Sprint Parkway

Overland Park, KS 66251

KSOPHF0302-3B424

or email: boardinquiries@sprint.com.

Our board has instructed the Board Communications Designee to examine incoming communications and forward to our board, or individual directors as appropriate, communications deemed relevant to our board s roles and responsibilities. Our board has requested that certain types of communications not be forwarded, and be redirected if appropriate, such as: spam, business solicitations or advertisements, resumes or employment inquiries, service complaints or inquiries, surveys, or any threatening or hostile materials. The Board Communications Designee will review all appropriate communications and report on the communications to the chair of the Nominating Committee or the full Nominating Committee, the full board, or the outside directors, as appropriate. The Board Communications Designee will take additional action or respond to letters in accordance with instructions from the relevant board source. Communications relating to accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters will be referred promptly to members of the Audit Committee in accordance with our policy on communications with our board.

Board Leadership Structure

Our board has determined that it is in the best interest of the Company to designate Mr. Son as the non-executive chairman and Mr. Fisher as the non-executive vice-chairman. We believe our board leadership structure provides the appropriate balance of directors affiliated with our controlling

12 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Board Operations

stockholder, independent directors, and CEO all working together to represent the interests of our entire stockholder base.

In part because of the unique qualifications and skills of our non-executive chairman and vice chairman, our board believes that this structure enhances our board s oversight of, and independence from, management. Further, it fosters the ability of our board to carry out its roles and responsibilities on behalf of the stockholders and benefits the Company s overall corporate governance.

Independence of Directors

Our board is currently comprised of nine members, five of whom are independent under rules of the NYSE. As a matter of practice, our board undertakes an annual review of director independence. During this review, our board considers all transactions and relationships between each director or any member of his immediate family and the companies by which they are employed as an executive officer (if applicable) to determine whether they have any relationships with our Company and its affiliates. The purpose of this review is to determine whether any such relationships or transactions are considered material relationships that would be inconsistent with a determination that a director is independent. Our board has not adopted any categorical standards for assessing independence; preferring instead to consider and disclose existing relationships with the non-management directors and the Company. Our board observes all criteria for independence established by the NYSE.

Executive Sessions

Sprint s non-management directors meet in executive sessions without any management participation by officers or employee directors. These executive sessions are currently held either before, after or otherwise in conjunction with our board s regularly scheduled meetings each year. Additional executive sessions can be scheduled at the request of the non-management directors.

The director who presides over the executive sessions of our board is our chairman, Mr. Son. The committee chairperson chairs the executive sessions of his or her committee. If that chairman or committee chairperson is not present, our vice chairman or another director will be chosen to preside. Our board does not have a lead independent director. Our board may select a presiding director for any independent director executive sessions, as needed.

Risk Management

Our board takes an active role in overseeing management of the Company s risks, both through its own consideration of risks associated with our operations and strategic initiatives and through its committees consideration of various risks applicable to that committee s areas of focus.

The Audit Committee reviews enterprise risks as part of its purpose to assist our board in fulfilling our board is oversight responsibilities with respect to the Company is enterprise risk management program. The Audit Committee receives regular reports regarding enterprise risk management matters from members of management who oversee the Company is Corporate Audit Services, or internal audit, and Legal Department and informs our board of such matters through regular committee reports. In addition to receiving regular reports from the Audit Committee concerning our enterprise risk management program, our board also reviews information concerning other risks through regular reports of its other committees, including information regarding financial risk management from the Finance Committee, compensation-related risk from the Compensation Committee, and governance-related risk from the Nominating Committee.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 13

Board Operations

Our management is responsible for our day-to-day risk management. Our management, internal audit, and internal control areas serve as the primary monitoring and testing functions for company-wide policies and procedures, and manage the day-to-day oversight of the risk management strategy for our ongoing business. This oversight includes identifying and evaluating potential risks that may exist at the enterprise, strategic, financial, operational, IT and cybersecurity, compliance, and reporting levels.

We believe the division of risk management responsibilities described above is an effective approach for addressing the risks facing the Company and that our board leadership structure supports this approach.

Code of Ethics

Our code of ethics, the Sprint Code of Conduct, is available at www.sprint.com/governance or by email at shareholder.relations@sprint.com. It describes the ethical and legal responsibilities of directors and employees of our Company and our subsidiaries, including senior financial officers and executive officers.

All of our directors and employees (including all senior financial officers and executive officers) are required to comply with the Sprint Code of Conduct. In support of the ethics code, we have provided employees with a number of avenues for the reporting of potential ethics violations or similar concerns or to seek guidance on ethics matters, including a 24/7 telephone helpline. The Audit Committee has established procedures for the receipt, retention, and treatment of complaints received by us regarding accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters, including the confidential, anonymous submission by our employees of any concerns regarding questionable financial and non-financial matters to the Ethics Helpline at 1-800-788-7844, by mail to the Nominating Committee, c/o Sprint Corporation, 6200 Sprint Parkway, Overland Park, KS 66251, KSOPHF0302-3B424, or by email to ethicshelpline@sprint.com. Our Chief Ethics Officer reports regularly on our ethics and compliance program to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and annually to the entire board.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Junichi Miyakawa, our Technical Chief Operating Officer, was a director of certain subsidiaries of SoftBank during fiscal year 2014. Mr. Son served as Chief Executive Officer of these companies as of March 31, 2015.

14 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Board Operations

Board Committees

Our board has four standing committees: Audit Committee, Finance Committee, Compensation Committee, and Nominating Committee. Each committee is described in the table below and each has a charter that describes such committee s primary functions and principal responsibilities. A current copy of our *Corporate Governance Guidelines* and the charter for each standing committee of our board is available at www.sprint.com/governance or by email at shareholder.relations@sprint.com. Our charters and corporate Governance Guidelines were adopted by our board and are annually reviewed and revised as necessary.

Committee Name and Membership

Audit Committee

Robert Bennett, Chair

Frank Ianna (until annual meeting)

Sara Martinez Tucker

Julius Genachowski (if elected)

Ms. Tucker and Messrs. Bennett and Ianna are each an audit committee financial expert as defined in the SEC s rules. All current and expected Audit Committee members are financially literate and able to devote sufficient time to serving on the Audit Committee.

Primary Functions

Include assisting our board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to:

the integrity of our financial statements and related disclosures, as well as related accounting and financial reporting processes;

our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

our independent registered public accounting firm s qualifications, independence, audit and review scope, and performance;

the audit scope and performance of our internal audit function:

related party transactions policy and procedures;

the audit committee report to be included in our annual proxy statement; and

our enterprise risk management program.

7 7.		• , ,
Finance	OW	imittoo
LILLUILLE		

Ronald Fisher, Chair

Nikesh Arora

Robert Bennett

Masayoshi Son

The Audit Committee also has sole authority for the appointment, retention, termination, compensation, evaluation, and oversight of our independent registered public accounting firm. The committee s principal responsibilities in serving these functions are described in the Audit Committee Charter. Include:

reviewing and approving our financing activities consistent with the authorization levels set forth in our fiscal policy;

reviewing and making recommendations to our board on our capital structure, annual budgets, financial risk management, fiscal policy, investment policy, and other significant financial initiatives; and

reviewing and approving proposed acquisitions, dispositions, mergers, joint ventures, and similar transactions consistent with the authorization levels set forth in our fiscal policy.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 15

Board Operations

Committee Name and Membership

Compensation Committee

Gordon Bethune, Chair

Ronald Fisher

Adm. Michael Mullen

Primary Functions

Include:

discharging our board s responsibilities relating to compensation of our executives in general and our principal senior officers in particular;

reporting on executive compensation in our annual proxy statement in accordance with applicable rules and regulations; and

reviewing with management plans for the development and orderly succession of senior officers.

Additional information about these processes and procedures can be found below in Executive Compensation Compensation Discussion and Analysis.

Generally, the Compensation Committee s primary processes for establishing and overseeing outside director compensation and the role of Company personnel and compensation consultants are similar to those regarding executive compensation. Any appropriate changes to outside director compensation are made following recommendation to our board by the Compensation Committee. In accordance with its charter, the Compensation Committee may delegate authority to subcommittees or any committee member when appropriate.

Nominating & Corporate Governance Committee

Sara Martinez Tucker, Chair

Gordon Bethune

Frank Ianna (until the annual meeting)

Mr. Fisher is considered a SoftBank Affiliate Director and is not considered an independent director.

Subject to our certificate of incorporation, bylaws, and Corporate Governance Guidelines, include:

ensuring that our Company has effective corporate governance policies and procedures and an effective board and board review process;

assisting our board by identifying individuals qualified to become directors;

our ethics and compliance program;

whistleblower monitoring;

recommending to our board for approval the director nominees for the next annual meeting of the stockholders;

recommending to our board for approval the chairs and members of each board committee; and

developing, reviewing, and recommending to our board corporate governance policies and practices designed to benefit our stockholders.

16 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Board Operations

Meetings & Attendance

Fiscal Year 2014 Board	
and Committee Meetings	Total
Board	11
Audit Committee	12
Compensation Committee	8
Finance Committee	5
Nominating Committee	4

Board and Committee Meetings; Attendance

The Company does not have a policy requiring director attendance at its annual meeting. All of our directors who were serving at the time of last year s annual meeting attended. Directors are expected to devote sufficient time to prepare properly for and attend meetings of our board, its committees, and executive sessions and to attend our annual meeting of stockholders. During fiscal year 2014, all directors attended at least 75% or more of the aggregate of the meetings of the board and of each of the board committees on which he or she served at the time, except Mr. Son, who attended 69% of such meetings. Mr. Son attended all of the in-person meetings of the board and the committee on which he served, but was unable to attend several telephonic meetings that occurred while he was in Japan because of scheduling issues complicated by time zone differences. When Mr. Son was unable to participate in these calls, he provided our Vice Chairman, Mr. Fisher, with his thoughts in advance of the calls, and was fully briefed by Mr. Fisher on discussions and decisions that were made during the calls. Furthermore, Mr. Son has been a very actively engaged board and committee member, having at least weekly contact with the Vice Chairman, having frequent and regular discussions with our CEO, playing an active role in the Board s leadership of the company s strategic direction, and regularly participating in management meetings.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 17

Board Operations

Corporate Responsibility

At Sprint, our corporate social responsibility program is based on the belief that doing good creates good both for our business and for our community. Our program gives us the opportunity to play a transformative role within the telecommunications industry, as well as within our communities, and for our environment. Our board supports these efforts. To that end, it has delegated the oversight of our corporate responsibility efforts to our Nominating Committee. Our Nominating Committee reviews and reports to our board on a periodic basis those matters relating to the Company s corporate social responsibility and sustainability objectives.

Focus Area

People: We believe we should operate in a socially responsible way. This commitment infuses our day-to-day work and ensures we are going above and beyond for our customers, employees, and communities.

Product: Sprint offers solutions that allow customers to minimize their environmental footprint, stay safer, and connect with people and technology that improves their lives and the lives of others.

2014 Achievements

Provided charitable support for 947 unique organizations, including \$3.9 million in grants from the Sprint Foundation.

Contributed more than 312,000 employee volunteer hours to community organizations across the country, worth an estimated \$7.1 million.

Announced support of the White House ConnectED initiative, a four year public and private effort where Sprint will provide wireless broadband connectivity for 50,000 low-income K-12 students across the U.S.

Named one of the 50 most community-minded companies in the U.S. by the Civic 50 for our commitment to improving the quality of life in the communities where we do business.

Launched the Neurodiversity ID pack, a unique bundle of best-in-class mobile applications targeted at helping individuals with cognitive and neurodevelopmental disabilities, such as autism, dyslexia, and dyspraxia.

Expanded our product portfolio with new accessible devices, including the Kyocera Verve and LG G3, providing customers with hearing and vision impairment a broader selection of phones to best meet their specialized needs.

Awarded the QSAC (Quality Services for the Autism Community) Change Maker Award for products and services that assist individuals with autism.

Launched a healthcare accelerator encouraging start-ups to develop mobile-based solutions that would improve health care and

Planet: Sprint s commitment to the planet means we strive to ensure responsible environmental stewardship in everything we do. cut costs.

Achieved a rare feat in 2014, receiving major awards from the U.S. Environmental Agency for three categories in a single year: landfill reduction, safely managing electronic waste, and continued leadership in reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

Served as an advocate for key issues including strong climate policies and renewable energy expansion. Worked with our suppliers and many non-governmental organizations to practice and influence sustainable practices in water conservation, alternative paper sources, and innovative waste management.

Expanded Sprint s leadership in electricity use and greenhouse gas reduction by cutting electricity use by more than 20% year-over-year, for a total electricity reduction of 37% since 2007.

18 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Board Operations

Political Contributions

Our Nominating Committee has oversight of Sprint s political contributions and expenses. Our Nominating Committee also reviews the Company s annual report on political contributions and discusses this report with our board. The report is available on our website at

http://goodworks.sprint.com/our-progress/sprint-good-workssm-approach/governance-and-ethics/public-reporting/. The report not only lists our contributions to political candidates, but it also describes the processes and oversight used in connection with such contributions.

Totice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 19

Director Compensation

Director Compensation

The compensation of our outside directors is partially equity-based and is designed to comply with our Corporate Governance Guidelines, which provide that the guiding principles behind our non-employee director compensation practices are: (1) alignment with stockholder interests; (2) preservation of independence; and (3) preservation of the fiduciary duties owed to all stockholders.

Components of Compensation

The following table summarizes director compensation for the outside members of Sprint Corporation s board, with the exception of Messrs. Fisher and Son, which is described further below. Our outside directors are also reimbursed for direct expenses relating to their activities as members of our board.

Compensation Element	Fiscal Year 2014 Compensation (\$)
Annual Board Retainer ⁽¹⁾	85,000
Chairman Retainer	N/A
Audit Chair Retainer	25,000
Compensation Chair Retainer	20,000
Security Director Retainer ⁽¹⁾	160,000
Finance Chair Retainer	N/A
Nominating & Corporate Governance Chair Retainer	15,000
Special Chair Retainer ⁽²⁾	15,000
Meeting Fees (per meeting):	

In Person	2,000
Telephonic	1,000
reiephonic	1,000
Restricted Stock Units ⁽³⁾	Annual grant value of 150,000

- (1) Adm. Mullen receives the Security Director Retainer in lieu of an Annual Retainer.
- (2) Includes any non-standing committee of directors established from time to time, but excludes the Vacancy Resolution Committee.
- (3) Generally, restricted stock units, or RSUs, underlying which are shares of our common stock, are granted each year on the date of the annual meeting of stockholders. Each grant generally vests in full upon the subsequent annual meeting. In addition, in connection with his appointment to the board in November 2014, Mr. Arora was granted a sign on RSU award valued at \$106,250.

20 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Director Compensation

Mr. Son does not receive any fees for his service on our board. On August 6, 2013, our board determined Mr. Fisher s compensation for serving as a member of our board. In recognition of his vice chairman activities, our board adopted a compensation program for Mr. Fisher, to provide as follows:

- (a) Annual cash retainer of \$500,000;
- (b) Annual grant of \$500,000 in RSUs commencing on August 6, 2013 and each year thereafter at the annual stockholders meeting and vesting in full upon the earlier of the subsequent annual stockholders meeting or the first anniversary of the date of the grant; and
- (c) Other benefits as described below.

Other Benefits

We believe that it serves the interests of our Company and our stockholders to enable our outside directors to utilize our communications services. Accordingly, each outside director, except Mr. Son, is entitled to receive a reasonable amount of communications services and devices. Outside directors may also receive specialized equipment, on an as-needed basis, with equipment valued at greater than \$1,000 requiring Compensation Committee approval. In addition to the value of the communications service, the value of any additional services and features and the value of the wireless devices, replacements, and associated accessories are included in the value of the communications benefit. There may be other circumstances in which devices are provided to board members (such as demonstration, field testing, and training units, or devices for use while traveling internationally); these devices must be returned or they will be converted to a consumer account and applied toward the wireless devices under this communications benefit.

Our outside directors, except Mr. Son, are eligible for our charitable matching gifts program. Under this program, the Sprint Foundation matches contributions made to qualifying organizations on a dollar-for-dollar basis, up to the annual donor maximum of \$5,000. The annual maximum contribution per donor, per organization, is \$2,500.

We do not offer retirement benefits to outside directors, except that our communications benefit as described above continues after retirement from board service provided members have served on our board for at least three years, and the benefit will continue for such members for the period of time our board member served on our board (including service on the Sprint Nextel board).

Our directors may participate in our Directors Shares Plan, under which they can elect to use all or part of their annual and additional retainer fees and meeting fees to purchase shares of our common stock in lieu of receiving cash payments. Our outside directors can also elect to defer receipt of these shares. During fiscal year 2014, no directors participated in our Directors Shares Plan.

On an annual basis, our outside directors are given the opportunity to enroll in or discontinue their participation in one or both of these plans. Our directors are also provided the opportunity to elect before the end of each calendar year to defer the receipt of shares underlying any portion of any RSU awarded in the following calendar year. Five of our outside directors elected to defer the receipt of shares underlying their 2015 RSU awards vesting in 2016.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

Our board believes directors should have a meaningful financial stake in the Company, and therefore has established a desired ownership level for non-employee directors of equity or equity

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Director Compensation

interests. Our director stock ownership guidelines currently require outside directors, other than SoftBank Affiliate Directors (Messrs. Son, Fisher, and Arora), to hold equity or equity interests equal to at least five times the annual board retainer amount (in other words \$425,000 while the current \$85,000 retainer is in place). To the extent any outside director has not met this minimum ownership level, each such director is expected to retain at least half of his or her shares or share equivalents awarded by us. Our board retains flexibility to grant exceptions to the guidelines based on its consideration of individual circumstances. As of March 31, 2015, each of our directors with the exception of Adm. Mullen and Ms. Tucker met the stock ownership requirements.

Fiscal Year 2014 Director Compensation Table

The table below sets forth the compensation earned by our outside directors who served during fiscal year 2014.

	Fees Earned or Paid in			
Nova	Cash (\$) ⁽¹⁾	Stock Awards	All Other Compensation	Total
Name Nikesh Arora	46,417	(\$) ⁽²⁾ 106,250	(\$)(3)	(\$) 152,667
Robert Bennett	152,000	150,000		302,000
Gordon Bethune	143,000	150,000		293,000
Marcelo Claure ⁽⁴⁾	42,875	,	16,638	59,513
Ronald Fisher	500,000	500,000	12,828	1,012,828
Frank Ianna	131,000	150,000		281,000
Adm. Michael Mullen	189,000	150,000	12,066	351,066
Masayoshi Son				
Sara Martinez Tucker	145,000	150,000		295,000

- (1) Consists of annual or special retainer fees, chairman and committee chair fees, and board and committee meeting fees.
- (2) Represents the grant date fair value of RSUs granted to our outside directors during fiscal year 2014. The grant date fair value is calculated in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 718. For a discussion on the assumptions used in determining the compensation cost associated with stock awards, see Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

- on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015. Although we issued no cash dividends during the fiscal year, it is our policy that any cash dividend equivalents on the RSUs granted to the outside directors be reinvested into RSUs, which generally vest when the underlying RSUs vest.
- (3) Consists solely of communications benefits under the communications benefit program described above.
- (4) Consists of fees for Mr. Claure s services as a director before he became President and CEO of Sprint. Mr. Claure does not currently receive compensation for his role as a director.

22 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Audit Committee Report

Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed our audited consolidated financial statements with management. The Audit Committee has also discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm the matters required to be discussed by Auditing Standard No. 16, issued by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, or PCAOB, in Rule 3200T.

The Audit Committee has received the written disclosures and the letter from the independent registered public accounting firm required by applicable requirements of the PCAOB regarding the independent registered public accounting firm s communications with the Audit Committee concerning independence, and has discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm its independence.

The Audit Committee met with senior management periodically during the past fiscal year to consider the adequacy of our internal controls and discussed these matters with our independent registered public accounting firm and with appropriate financial personnel. The Audit Committee also discussed with senior management our disclosure controls and procedures and the certifications by our CEO and our Chief Financial Officer, or CFO, which are required for certain of our filings with the SEC. The Audit Committee met privately with the independent registered public accounting firm, our internal auditors and other members of management, each of whom has unrestricted access to the Audit Committee.

Based on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee recommended to the board that our audited consolidated financial statements be included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 for filing with the SEC.

The Audit Committee

Robert Bennett, Chair

Frank Ianna

Sara Martinez Tucker

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 23

Executive Compensation

Executive Compensation

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

This compensation discussion and analysis describes the compensation program for our named executive officers for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 (fiscal year 2014), who were as follows: Marcelo Claure, President and CEO; Joseph Euteneuer, CFO; Robert Johnson, Chief Experience Officer; Michael Schwartz, Senior Vice President, Corporate Strategy and Development; Charles Wunsch, Senior Vice President, General Counsel, Corporate Secretary, and Chief Ethics Officer; and Daniel Hesse, former President and CEO.

Compensation Overview

Philosophy and Objectives of Our Executive Compensation Program

Attract and retain qualified and experienced executives by providing base salaries, target incentives, and benefits that are market competitive;

Hold executives accountable for their performance by requiring that a substantial portion of total compensation is earned over a multi-year period and subject to forfeiture to the extent that vesting requirements and performance objectives are not met;

Pay for performance by tying a substantial portion of our executives compensation opportunities directly to, and rewarding them for, our performance through short- and long-term incentive compensation plans that include performance objectives most critical to driving our continued financial and operational improvement and long-term stockholder value; and

Structure our compensation programs to align executive interests with those of our stockholders, mitigate the possibility that our executives undertake excessively risky business strategies, and adhere to corporate governance best practices.

Components of Our Executive Compensation Program

The major components of our executive compensation program are base salary, our short-term incentive compensation (STIC) plan, and our long-term incentive compensation (LTIC) plan. The base salaries as of March 31, 2015 and target opportunities under our fiscal year 2014 STIC and LTIC plans for our named executive officers were as follows:

Named Executive Officer	Base Salary (\$)	2014 STIC Plan (\$)(1)	2014 LTIC Plan (\$)(2)
Claure	1,500,000	(3)	24,000,000
Euteneuer	775,000	1,255,925	4,375,000
Johnson	625,000	779,110	2,500,000
Schwartz	450,000	491,252	1,500,000
Wunsch	490,000	549,740	1,750,000
Former Executive Officer			
Hesse ⁽⁴⁾	1,200,000	1,459,726	

(1) Reflects the one-time overall 2014 STIC plan target opportunity increase of approximately 25% in connection with the change in fiscal year, as discussed below.

24 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Executive Compensation

(2) Reflects the one-time overall 2014 LTIC plan target opportunity increase of 25% in connection with the change in fiscal year, as discussed below.

On August 18, 2014, Mr. Claure received an initial LTIC opportunity award of \$24,000,000 33.3% in the form of time-based non-qualified stock options, 33.3% in the form of time-based restricted stock units (RSUs), and 33.4% in the form of performance-based RSUs (pRSUs), all pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement. This award was intended to cover any LTIC awards that might otherwise have been granted to Mr. Claure under the 2014 and 2015 LTIC plans. His target opportunity under the 2016 LTIC plan and each year thereafter will be no less than \$12,000,000.

- (3) Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr. Claure received an amount equal to 250% of his base salary, prorated for the number of days he was employed by Sprint during the service period (discussed below) in lieu of participating in the 2014 STIC plan.
- (4) The base salary for Mr. Hesse reflects his annual base salary rate as of his last day of employment at Sprint. Mr. Hesse s target opportunity under our 2014 STIC plan was prorated for the number of days he was employed during the service period. He did not participate in the 2014 LTIC plan.

Fiscal Year 2014 Performance

Fiscal year 2014 marked a significant turning point for Sprint, as we underwent a change in leadership with the appointment of Marcelo Claure as our President and CEO effective August 11, 2014. Mr. Claure s arrival as CEO also brought marked changes in our strategic initiatives as we reshape Sprint for the future. In so doing, management established the following focus points for Sprint as we move forward:

Imperative	Strategy
Network	Provide a network that delivers the consistent reliability, capacity, and speed that customers demand.
Low Cost Structure	Achieve a more competitive cost position in the industry through simplification.
Customer Acquisition	Increase subscriber acquisition.
Customer Retention	Reduce churn and increase subscriber retention.
People	Attract and retain the best talent in the industry.

Customer Experience

Deliver a simplified and improved customer experience.

We demonstrated our commitment to repositioning Sprint in the wireless industry by executing on these imperatives in fiscal year 2014, including:

> Receiving acknowledgement from independent mobile analytics firm RootMetrics® regarding Sprint s significant network improvements in RootMetrics second half 2014 Mobile Network Performance Review Report. Since that time, Sprint has been awarded a total of 104 first place (outright or shared) RootScore Awards for overall, reliability, speed, data, call, or text network performance in the 77 markets measured as of May 5, 2015;

Implementing a plan to reduce operational costs in fiscal year 2014;

Implementing a series of organizational changes and creating a new and more engaged culture; and

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 25

Executive Compensation

Launching a host of innovative sales and marketing initiatives, including the Cut Your Bill in Half Event and our industry-first device leasing program.

The Compensation Committee designed the objectives of both our fiscal year 2014 STIC and LTIC plans in furtherance of these established imperatives, as discussed below.

Key Fiscal Year 2014 Compensation Decisions

Base Salary

Base salary is designed to attract and retain executives. Our named executive officers—salaries are based on a number of factors, including the nature, responsibilities and reporting relationships of the position, individual performance of the executive, salary levels for incumbents in comparable positions at peer companies as well as other executives within our organization, and experience and tenure of the executive.

Mr. Claure joined Sprint effective as of August 11, 2014 as our President and CEO. In connection with his appointment, we negotiated an employment agreement with him in consultation with Frederic W. Cook Co., Inc. (Cook), the Compensation Committee s independent compensation consultant. Mr. Claure s employment agreement, among other things described in this Compensation Discussion and Analysis, provided him with a base salary of \$1,500,000 per year. Due to his departure from Sprint, Mr. Hesse received a prorated portion of his annual base salary of \$1,200,000 based on the number of days he was employed during fiscal year 2014.

For fiscal year 2014, the Compensation Committee approved an increase to Mr. Schwartz s annual base salary from \$430,000 to \$450,000 based on market data. For more information, see Setting Executive Compensation Use of Benchmarking Data. No other named executive officer received a base salary rate increase during fiscal year 2014.

STIC Plan

Our STIC plan is our annual cash incentive plan, which is intended to ensure that annual incentives are tied to the successful achievement of critical operating and financial objectives that are the leading drivers of sustainable increases in stockholder value. STIC plan payouts for fiscal year 2014 were provided in the form of cash-settled performance units under our Omnibus Incentive Plan. Participants generally had to be employed on March 31, 2015 in order to earn STIC plan awards for the fiscal year 2014 performance period. However, a prorated payout was available for employees who were terminated during the year as the result of death, disability, retirement, or involuntary termination without cause.

Due to the change in Sprint s fiscal year (beginning March 31, 2014, our fiscal year now ends each March 31 instead of December 31), our Compensation Committee did not establish financial and operational objectives and targets (and thus no payouts were made) for the transition period January 1, 2014 through March 31, 2014. To keep participants whole, the Compensation Committee established a 15-month service period from January 1, 2014 through March 31, 2015 and a 12-month performance period from April 1, 2014 through March 31, 2015, with the 12-month performance period results determining the amount of STIC plan awards that could be earned as a result of service during the 15-month service period. Because of the longer service period and the delay in payout date, the 2014 STIC Plan reflected a one-time target opportunity increase of approximately 25%. The increased target opportunities under the 2014 STIC plan for our named executive officers are reflected in Compensation Overview Components of Our Executive Compensation Program.

26 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Executive Compensation

To further our goal of tying a significant portion of each named executive officer s total annual compensation to our business performance, the STIC plan provided for a payment equal to the named executive officer s targeted opportunity (set at a percentage of his base salary) only if our actual results met the targets. The STIC plan also provided for a payout in excess of a named executive officer s targeted opportunity (capped at 200%) if our actual performance exceeded the targeted objectives and a payout below targeted opportunity if our actual performance was below the target objectives but exceeded the minimum threshold level. If the minimum threshold level of performance was not attained, the STIC provided that the award opportunity would be forfeited. To ensure that the results under the formulaic STIC metrics fully reflected the Company s overall performance for the year, the Compensation Committee retained discretion to adjust payouts at year-end. Refer to our discussion below under Tax Deductibility of Compensation for a discussion of the potential tax deductibility of certain performance-based awards under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code.

The chart below summarizes the metrics and weightings set for the 2014 STIC plan in support of the transformational imperatives previously discussed.

In early fiscal year 2015, the Compensation Committee determined that the effective achievement percentage for the 2014 STIC plan equaled 190% of the target award opportunity for all eligible employees who participated in the 2014 STIC plan for the full fiscal year 2014, including our named executive officers, based on actual performance results. The Compensation Committee exercised negative discretion with respect to payouts ultimately awarded to our named executive officers under the 2014 STIC plan, with the exception of Mr. Hesse, whose payout was based on actual performance but was prorated to reflect the number of days he was employed during the service period. Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr. Claure received an amount equal to 250% of his base salary, prorated for the number of days he was employed by Sprint during the service period in lieu of participating in the 2014 STIC plan.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 27

Executive Compensation

Actual results based on the objectives and targets set for the 2014 STIC plan are outlined in the table below.

			Actual	
		36.		Achievement
Objective	Target	Maximum	Results	Percentage
Adjusted EBITDA	\$5,500 million	\$5,700 million	\$6,000 million	200%
Sprint Platform Net Additions	1,200,000	1,600,000	2,586,000	200%
Improvement in Net Promoter Score	4 point			150%
	improvement	8 point	6 point	
	_	improvement	improvement	
	from target date	from target date	from target date	
	-		Achievement	190%

We outperformed our targets for each of the objectives set by the Compensation Committee in accordance with the transformational imperatives management set for Sprint. Solid progress on customer retention efforts and enhancing the customer experience drove significant improvements in Net Promoter Score, which helped provide the foundation for successful Adjusted EBITDA results as well. Successful execution on Sprint s overall cost savings initiative has allowed us to largely reinvest these amounts for future growth. Customer-focused offerings such as the Cut Your Bill in Half Event, our industry-first device leasing program, International Value Roaming, and Sprint s Direct 2 Your program have helped reestablish Sprint as an innovator in the industry and drive both customer retention and acquisition. In addition, we anticipate that more than doubling our company-owned retail footprint by opening 1,435 Sprint-RadioShack co-branded stores in April 2015 will help us continue to execute on these imperatives.

LTIC Plan

Our LTIC plan is designed to encourage retention, link payment of performance-based awards to achievement of financial and operational objectives critical to our long-term success, and create commonality of interests between our executives and our stockholders. By dovetailing with the STIC plan, our LTIC plan is also intended to create balance between short-term, or annual, performance goals and longer-term objectives that are critical to growing and sustaining stockholder value.

Earn-outs of pRSUs granted under our 2013 LTIC plan are conditioned on achievement of a predetermined performance objective (cumulative Adjusted EBITDA) during a single two-year performance period of calendar years 2014-2015, the results of which we expect will be reported in our annual proxy statement for fiscal year 2015.

28 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Executive Compensation

The fiscal year 2014 LTIC plan awards were granted under our Omnibus Incentive Plan in the form of time-based RSUs, pRSUs, and stock options (as opposed to any cash-settled awards) to emphasize the imperative of achieving long-term growth and alignment with stockholder interests. Granted stock options only have value in the event Sprint s stock price increases after the grant date. Allocations of the three types of awards granted under our 2014 LTIC plan are as follows:

	Percent of	
	2014 LTIC Plan	
Type of Award	Opportunity	Vesting
Time-based restricted stock units (RSUs)	33.3%	Generally vest on May 20, 2017
Performance-based restricted stock units (pRSUs)	33.4%	Generally vest on May 20, 2017, with earn-out allocated one-third to each of three annual performance periods (fiscal years 2014, 2015, and 2016) with vesting of each third conditioned on achievement against objectives
Time-based stock options	33.3%	Generally vest ratably on each of the three anniversaries of the May 2014 grant date, with the exception of Mr. Claure s stock options, which generally vest ratably on each of the three anniversaries of the August 2014 grant date

The Compensation Committee typically grants equity awards under the LTIC plan in May, following review of the fiscal year budget and an assessment of the factors critical to driving long-term stockholder value. The Compensation Committee made a one-time increase in participants—target opportunities under the 2014 LTIC plan similar to the one-time increase made under the 2014 STIC plan to account for the change in our fiscal year, as described above. Accordingly, the Compensation Committee established a 15-month service period, which resulted in a target opportunity increase of 25% under the 2014 LTIC plan (except for Mr. Claure, whose grant was intended to cover any LTIC awards that would have otherwise been granted to him under the fiscal year 2014 and fiscal year 2015 LTIC plans without such increase in opportunity). The increased target opportunities under the 2014 LTIC plan for our named executive officers are reflected in Compensation Overview Components of Our Executive Compensation Program. Grants of awards under the 2014 LTIC plan were made in May 2014, with earn-outs of pRSUs granted under the 2014 LTIC plan for the first annual performance period based on the 12-month performance period ended March 31, 2015 noted above.

Similar to our STIC plan, the pRSUs granted under our LTIC plan provided for a payment equal to the named executive officer s targeted opportunity for such awards (set at a percentage of his total LTIC plan opportunity) only if our actual results meet the targets for each completed performance period. An earn-out of pRSUs in excess of a named executive officer s targeted opportunity may be made if our actual performance exceeds the targeted objectives (capped at 200%), an earn-out below targeted opportunity may be made if our actual performance is below the target objectives but exceeded the minimum threshold level, and no earn-out would be made if our actual performance does not exceed the minimum threshold level. Earn-outs made under the LTIC plan are subject to the Compensation Committee s discretion. Refer to our discussion below under Tax Deductibility of Compensation for a discussion of the potential tax deductibility of certain performance-based awards under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Grants of pRSUs under our 2014 LTIC plan were allocated one-third to each of three annual performance periods. Given the focus on profitability, growth, and net additions for this critical

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 29

Executive Compensation

performance period, the Compensation Committee adopted objectives for the pRSUs for the first annual performance period similar to those approved for the 2014 STIC plan:

The Compensation Committee adopted the postpaid handset net addition metric in lieu of total net additions (as adopted for the 2014 STIC plan) to focus executives on net additions that yield the highest potential profit margins. Actual results based on the objectives and targets set for the pRSUs for the first annual performance period under the 2014 LTIC plan are outlined in the table below. Earn-outs for the pRSUs under the 2014 LTIC plan for this period were capped at 200% of target opportunity.

	Fiscal Year 2014	Fiscal Year 2014		.
Objective	Target	Maximum	Actual Results	Earn-out Percentage
Adjusted EBITDA	\$5,500 million	\$5,700 million	\$6,000 million	200%
Sprint Platform Net Additions from Postpaid Feature Phones and Postpaid 3G and 4G Smartphones	(1,950,000)	(1,650,000)	(1,526,000)	200%
Improvement in Net Promoter Score	4 point improvement from target date	8 point improvement from target date	6 point improvement from target date	150%
	_	-	Achievement	190%

We outperformed our targets for each of the objectives set by the Compensation Committee for the 2014 LTIC plan. Improvement in Sprint platform net additions from postpaid feature phones and postpaid 3G and 4G smartphones was driven by lower churn and higher prime credit quality gross additions. These drivers were due in part to the significant progress we have made with respect to customer retention and enhancing the customer experience, along with the network improvements referenced above under Fiscal Year 2014 Performance.

As discussed under Compensation Overview Components of our Executive Compensation Program, Pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement, Mr. Claure received an initial LTIC opportunity award of \$24,000,000 33.3% in the form of non-qualified stock options, 33.3% in the form of time-based RSUs, and 33.4% in the form of pRSUs. Earn-outs of these pRSUs are subject to achievement of the performance objectives established or to be established by

the Compensation Committee under the 2014 and 2015 LTIC plans. This award was intended to cover any LTIC awards that might otherwise have been granted to Mr. Claure under the 2014 and 2015

30 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Executive Compensation

LTIC plans. His target opportunity under the 2016 LTIC plan and each year thereafter will be no less than \$12,000,000. Mr. Hesse did not participate in our 2014 LTIC plan.

Supplemental Stock Option Awards

In recognition of the expected significant effort and to serve as a key motivator as Sprint repositions itself for future success, the Compensation Committee approved a supplemental non-qualified stock option award to executives in November 2014, including the named executive officers other than Messrs. Claure and Hesse. The award was intended to supplement outstanding long-term incentive compensation to drive results and enhance retention for Mr. Claure s go-forward management team during a time of significant change at Sprint. The options generally vest ratably on each of the three anniversaries of the December 8, 2014 grant date, with an award opportunity based on a multiple of each executive s adjusted 2014 LTIC plan opportunity. See footnote 4 to our Fiscal Year 2014 Summary Compensation Table.

Other Components of Executive Compensation

Our named executive officers total rewards opportunities consisted of a number of other elements important to our compensation philosophy for fiscal year 2014 of attracting, retaining, and motivating our named executive officers:

Employee Benefit Plans and Programs. Our compensation program includes a comprehensive array of health and welfare benefits in which our eligible employees, including our named executive officers, are eligible to participate. We pay all of the costs for some of these benefit plans, and participants contribute a portion of the cost for other benefit plans.

Retirement Program. Our retirement program consists of the Sprint Corporation 401(k) Plan, which provides participants with a fixed matching contribution on up to 4% of eligible compensation to help build financial security for their future. The amount of any matching contributions made by us to participating named executive officers is included in the All Other Compensation column of the Fiscal Year 2014 Summary Compensation Table below.

Deferred Compensation. Certain employees, including our named executive officers, are offered the opportunity to participate in the Sprint Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan, a nonqualified and unfunded plan, under which they may defer to future years the receipt of certain compensation in addition to that eligible under the 401(k) plan. Participants may elect to defer up to 50% of base salary, up to 75% of STIC plan payments, and up to 75% of cash-based performance unit payouts made under our LTIC plan. We believe this plan helps attract and retain executives by providing the participant another tax efficient retirement plan. Participants elect to allocate deferred and any matching contributions among one or more hypothetical investment options, which include one option that tracks our common stock and other options that track broad-based bond and equity indices. In 2014, our plan provided for a

matching contribution using the same matching contribution percentage as our 401(k) plan of eligible earnings above the applicable annual limit, which is intended to compensate highly-compensated employees for limitations placed on our 401(k) plan by federal tax law. The matching contribution has been discontinued on deferrals for plan years beginning after 2014. Mr. Hesse was the only named executive officer to participate in the Sprint Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan during fiscal year 2014.

Personal Benefits and Perquisites. The limited personal benefits and perquisites that we provide to our named executive officers are intended to promote executive retention and to allow our executives to maximize their focus on Sprint. These benefits are summarized in footnote seven to

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 1

Executive Compensation

the Fiscal Year 2014 Summary Compensation Table below. Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr. Claure is permitted to use up to six hours of flight time per month for personal travel on our corporate aircraft. Any unused hours are carried over to the next month, and Mr. Claure is required to pay the full incremental cost associated with personal use of the aircraft to the extent he exceeds his monthly allotted flight time (plus carryover hours). Mr. Claure is also permitted to have his family or guests accompany him on the corporate aircraft for business and personal travel.

Change in Control. If a transaction that could result in a change in control were under consideration, we expect that our named executive officers would face uncertainties about how the transaction may affect their continued employment with us. We believe it is in our stockholders—best interest if our named executive officers remain employed and focused on our business through any transition period following a change in control and remain independent and objective when considering possible transactions that may be in stockholders—best interests but possibly result in the termination of their employment. Our change in control benefits accomplish this goal by providing each eligible named executive officer with a meaningful severance benefit in the event that a change in control occurs and, within a specified time period of the change in control, his employment is involuntarily terminated without cause or voluntarily terminated for good reason.

The Sprint Corporation Change in Control Severance Plan, which we refer to as the CIC plan, provides severance benefits to a select group of senior executives, including our named executive officers, in the event of a qualified termination of employment in connection with a transaction that results in a change in control. Any of these benefits payable would be reduced to the extent of any severance benefit otherwise available under any other applicable policy, program, or plan so that there would be no duplication of benefits. The benefits upon termination in connection with a change in control to which our named executive officers are entitled, as described in Fiscal Year 2014 Potential Payments upon Termination of Employment or Change in Control, are likewise competitive within our peer group.

Other Compensation Decisions

During fiscal year 2014, the Compensation Committee approved an interim living allowance of \$50,000 per year, on a tax protected basis and payable monthly, for Mr. Johnson until he relocates to the Overland Park area or his earlier termination of employment. The Compensation Committee further approved Mr. Johnson s ability, conditioned on his continued employment through December 2017 and his waiver of any 2017 long-term incentive compensation award, to resign effective January 2018 with 30 days written notice and receive the severance benefits provided under his employment agreement.

Employment Agreements

Discussion of the material terms of our employment agreements with our named executive officers can be found in the tabular and narrative discussion under Fiscal Year 2014 Potential Payments upon Termination of Employment or Change in Control.

Setting Executive Compensation

Role of Compensation Consultant and Executive Officers

The Compensation Committee has retained Cook as its independent compensation consultant. Cook provides no services to us other than advisory services for executive and director compensation and has no other relationships with Sprint. Cook works with management only at the request and under the direction of the Compensation Committee and only on matters for which the Compensation Committee has oversight responsibility. The Compensation Committee has assessed

32 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Executive Compensation

the independence of Cook, as required under NYSE listing rules. The Compensation Committee has also considered and assessed all relevant factors, including those required by the SEC that could give rise to a potential conflict of interest with respect to Cook during fiscal year 2014. Based on this review, the Compensation Committee did not identify any conflict of interest raised by the work performed by any advisors to the Compensation Committee.

Representatives of Cook attend Compensation Committee meetings at the Compensation Committee s request and provide guidance to the Compensation Committee on a variety of compensation issues. The primary point of contact at Cook frequently communicates with the chair of the Compensation Committee and interacts with all Compensation Committee members without management present.

Cook has reviewed the compensation components and levels for our named executive officers and advised the Compensation Committee on the appropriateness of our compensation programs, including our incentive and equity-based compensation plans, retention incentives, and proposed employment agreements, as these matters arose during fiscal year 2014. The Compensation Committee has directed that Cook provide this advice taking into account our overall executive compensation philosophy as described above. Cook prepares the benchmarking data discussed below, reviews the results with the Compensation Committee, and provides recommendations and an opinion on the reasonableness of new compensation plans, programs, and arrangements.

In addition to its ongoing support of the Compensation Committee and continuous advice on compensation design, levels, and emerging market practices, Cook periodically conducts a comprehensive review of our overall executive compensation program, including direct and indirect elements of compensation, to ensure that the program operates in support of our short- and long-term financial and strategic objectives and that it aligns with evolving corporate governance best practices.

Our CEO periodically discusses the design of, and makes recommendations with respect to, our compensation programs and the compensation levels of our other named executive officers and certain key personnel with the Compensation Committee. Our CEO does not make recommendations to the Compensation Committee with regard to his own compensation; rather, Cook provides the Compensation Committee with an annual report on CEO compensation and a range of alternatives with regard to potential changes.

Process for Setting Executive Compensation

The Compensation Committee annually reviews the compensation packages of our named executive officers in the form of tally sheets. These tally sheets value each component of compensation and benefits, including a summary of the outstanding equity holdings of each named executive officer as of year-end and the value of such holdings at various assumed stock prices. The tally sheets also set forth the estimated value that each of our named executive officers would realize upon termination under various scenarios.

The Compensation Committee uses these tally sheets when considering adjustments to base salaries and awards of equity-based or other remuneration and in establishing incentive plan target opportunity levels as follows:

Comparing each named executive officer s total compensation against a similar position in our peer group;

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 33

Executive Compensation

Understanding the impact of decisions on each individual element of compensation on total compensation for each named executive officer;

Evaluating total compensation of each named executive officer from an internal equity perspective; and

Assuring that equity compensation represents a portion of each named executive officer s total compensation that is in line with our philosophy of motivating the executives and aligning their interests with those of our stockholders.

Although the Compensation Committee reviews and considers the amounts realizable by our named executive officers under different termination scenarios, including those in connection with a change in control, as well as the current equity-based award holdings, these are not the primary considerations in the assessment and determination of annual compensation for our named executive officers.

Use of Benchmarking Data

To assist in setting total compensation levels that are reasonably competitive, the Compensation Committee annually reviews market trends in executive compensation and a competitive analysis prepared by Cook. This information is derived from the most recent proxy statement data of companies in a peer group of telecommunications and high-technology companies and, where limited in its functional position match to our executives, is supplemented with data on our peer group from a published compensation survey prepared by Towers Watson of approximately 80 participating industry companies all with revenues exceeding \$4 billion. The compensation data, and not the identity of the individual companies participating in the surveys for this database, was the most significant factor considered by the Compensation Committee with respect to its 2014 executive compensation decisions.

Taking into consideration the recommendations of Cook, the Compensation Committee determines companies for our peer group based on similarity of their business model and product offerings as well as comparability from a size perspective, including annual revenue, market capitalization, net income, enterprise value and number of employees. For example, our revenue is above the median of our peer group while our enterprise value is below the median. In September 2013, we removed Dell Inc. from our peer group given its transition to a privately-held company and added Cisco Systems, Inc., EMC Corporation, and Intel Corporation, substantially based on size and business comparability. Accordingly, the Compensation Committee approved the use of the following 14 companies for its fiscal year 2014 executive compensation benchmarking analysis:

AT&T, Inc.; CenturyLink, Inc.; Cisco Systems, Inc.; Comcast Corporation; Computer Sciences Corporation; DIRECTV; EMC Corporation; Intel Corporation; Motorola Solutions, Inc.; Qualcomm Incorporated; Texas Instruments Incorporated; Time Warner Cable, Inc.; Verizon Communications Inc.; and Xerox Corporation.

In November 2014, we added T-Mobile US, Inc. to our peer group for future executive compensation decisions given that it became publicly traded in late 2013.

The Compensation Committee does not follow a specific formula in making its pay decisions but rather uses benchmarks as a frame of reference and generally targets total compensation at the median of our peer group to reflect our relative position within it. Based on performance against predetermined goals and changes in total stockholder return over time, this approach results in an opportunity to earn total payouts above median market rates for over-achievement and below median for under-achievement relative to the peer group. The Compensation Committee exercises

34 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Executive Compensation

its judgment by taking into consideration a multitude of other important factors such as experience, individual performance, and internal pay equity in setting target compensation levels, but actual payouts under our variable incentive plans are primarily determined based on formulaic outcomes.

In connection with its assessments of total targeted compensation relative to our peer group for each of our named executive officers, the Compensation Committee approved an increase to Mr. Schwartz s base salary. Total targeted compensation amounts for fiscal year 2014 were below median for the peer group for Messrs. Johnson and Wunsch and were above median for Messrs. Claure, Euteneuer, and Schwartz. Mr. Hesse was not part of the analysis due to his departure from Sprint in August 2014.

Corporate Governance Highlights

We endeavor to maintain good governance standards, including with respect to our executive compensation practices, which include the following:

Our named executive officers are subject to a clawback provision in our incentive compensation programs under which we may recover cash and equity payouts thereunder to the extent based on financial results or operating metrics impacted by the named executive officer s knowing or intentional fraudulent or illegal conduct;

Our named executive officers generally receive few perquisites, entitlements or elements of non-performance-based compensation, except for market-competitive salaries and modest benefits that are comparable to those provided to all employees;

Our severance benefits are positioned conservatively relative to market practices, with no benefit in excess of two times base salary plus annual incentive, change-in-control benefits payable only upon a double-trigger qualified termination, and no golden parachute excise tax gross-ups;

The Compensation Committee retains Cook as an independent advisor that performs no other work for the Company; and

We have stock ownership guidelines. See Other Components of Executive Compensation Stock Ownership Guidelines.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

We have stock ownership guidelines for our named executive officers and other members of our senior management team. The board believes ownership by executives of a meaningful financial stake in Sprint serves to align executives interests with those of our stockholders. Our guidelines encourage our CEO to hold shares of our common stock with a value equal to five times his base salary and encourage the other continuing named executive officers to hold shares

of our common stock with a value equal to three times their respective base salaries. Eligible shares and share equivalents counted toward ownership consist of:

restricted stock or RSUs;

common or preferred stock, including those purchased through our Employee Stock Purchase Plan; intrinsic value (the excess of the current stock price over a stock option s exercise price) of vested, in-the-money stock options; and

share units held in our 401(k) plan and various deferred compensation plans.

Individuals subject to the stock ownership guidelines have five years beginning on the date on which the person becomes subject to the ownership guidelines to achieve the ownership requirement. For fiscal year 2014, all of our named executive officers who had been with Sprint for at least five years had met the stock ownership guidelines.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Executive Compensation

Stockholder Say-on-Pay Vote

We provide our stockholders with the opportunity to cast an annual advisory vote on named executive officer compensation (a say-on-pay proposal). At our 2014 annual meeting of stockholders, 92.8% of the votes cast on the say-on-pay proposal at that meeting were voted in favor of the proposal. The Compensation Committee considered the voting results at discussions among its members during its meetings, and the Compensation Committee believes this vote affirms stockholders—support of Sprint—s approach to executive compensation. As a result of this consideration, we did not change our approach to named executive officer compensation in fiscal year 2014 solely in response to the say-on-pay proposal results. The Compensation Committee expects to continue to consider the outcome of our say-on-pay votes when making future compensation decisions for the named executive officers.

Tax Deductibility of Compensation

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, limits to \$1 million the amount of non-performance-based remuneration that we may deduct from our taxable income in any tax year with respect to our CEO and the three other most highly compensated executive officers, other than the CFO, at the end of the year. Section 162(m) provides, however, that we may deduct from our taxable income without regard to the \$1 million limit the full value of all qualified performance-based compensation. Our base salary and perquisites and other personal benefits are not considered qualified performance-based compensation and therefore are subject to the limit on deductibility. Our STIC plan and certain of our LTIC plan awards may be able to qualify as qualified performance-based compensation if certain requirements are met, including among other things if the maximum number of stock option or full value share awards and the maximum amount of other cash performance-based remuneration that may be payable to any one executive officer has been disclosed to and approved by stockholders prior to the award or payment.

The Compensation Committee generally considers Section 162(m) deductibility in designing our compensation program and incentive-based compensation plans. In general, we may design our STIC plans and certain portions of our LTIC plans to be compliant with the performance-based compensation rules of Section 162(m) in order to maximize deductibility. In certain circumstances, however, the Compensation Committee may determine it is necessary or advisable, including to retain executives or attract candidates for senior level positions, to offer compensation packages in which the non-performance-based elements exceed the \$1 million Section 162(m) limit. The Compensation Committee makes no assurance that such compensation will be fully deductible for federal income tax purposes. Moreover, even if the Compensation Committee intends to grant compensation that qualifies as qualified performance-based compensation for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Code, Sprint cannot guarantee that such compensation will so qualify or ultimately will be deductible.

The awards under our 2014 STIC plan and pRSUs under the 2014 LTIC plan are designed so that they may qualify as qualified performance based compensation under Section 162(m), except for those awards to Mr. Johnson due to the terms of his employment agreement. In addition, the award that Mr. Claure received in lieu of participating in the 2014 STIC plan is not qualified performance-based compensation as a result of the terms of his employment agreement.

For the 2014 STIC plan, a sub-committee of the Compensation Committee comprised of Messrs. Bethune and Mullen (the Section 16 Sub-Committee) established Section 162(m) objectives for the named executive officers potentially subject to Section 162(m) at a small fraction of a percentage of our adjusted operating income for a six-month performance cycle of October 1, 2014

36 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Executive Compensation

through March 31, 2015. The Section 16 Sub-Committee is precluded from exercising upward discretion to the payout achieved under these objectives. The Section 16 Sub-Committee exercised its discretion to make payments under the 2014 STIC plan at levels below the payout achieved under the Section 162(m) objectives for the fiscal year 2014 performance period as guided by the performance metrics discussed under Key Fiscal Year 2014 Compensation Decisions STIC Plan.

For the first annual performance period under the 2014 LTIC plan, the Section 16 Sub-Committee established a Section 162(m) objective for the pRSUs for the named executive officers potentially subject to Section 162(m) based on cumulative adjusted operating income during a six-month performance cycle of October 1, 2014 through March 31, 2015. The Section 16 Sub-Committee is precluded from exercising upward discretion to the payout achieved under this objective. The Section 16 Sub-Committee exercised its discretion to set the performance adjustment for the first annual performance period of the 2014 LTIC plan at levels below the earn-out achieved under the Section 162(m) objectives for the 2014 performance period as guided by the performance metrics discussed under Key Fiscal Year 2014 Compensation Decisions LTIC Plan.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed Sprint s Compensation Discussion and Analysis with management. Based on these reviews and discussions, the Compensation Committee recommended to the board that Sprint s Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement and Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015.

The Compensation Committee

Gordon Bethune, Chair

Ronald Fisher

Adm. Michael Mullen

Relationship of Compensation Practices to Risk Management

We have assessed whether there are any risks arising from our compensation policies and practices for our employees and factors that may affect the likelihood of excessive risk taking. Based on that review, we have concluded that our compensation policies and practices do not create risks that are reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company.

In coming to this conclusion, in early 2015, our human resources department reviewed Sprint s incentive plans, surveying sales- and non-sales-related compensation programs, as well as executive and non-executive compensation programs. Pay philosophies, performance objectives and overall incentive plan designs were reviewed. Human resources discussed plan elements with representatives from the business functions responsible for incentive plan design and administration. Design features were assessed to determine whether there is a likelihood that incentive plans could encourage excessive risk-taking resulting in a material adverse effect on Sprint and to ensure that appropriate governance is in place to mitigate risk under unforeseen circumstances. The results of this assessment were reviewed by the Compensation Committee in May 2015.

In addition, the Compensation Committee s independent consultant, Cook, considered risk in all aspects of the plans in which our executives participate and advised the Compensation Committee accordingly. Cook confirmed that there are no aspects of the programs described in the preceding Compensation Discussion and Analysis that create an incentive to take risks that are reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement 1.3

Executive Compensation

Fiscal Year 2014 Summary Compensation Table

The table below summarizes the compensation of our named executive officers that is attributable to fiscal year 2014. The named executive officers are our President and CEO, our CFO, and our three other most highly compensated executive officers serving at March 31, 2015, plus our former President and CEO, whose employment ended in fiscal year 2014. Amounts included in Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation take into account the one-time target opportunity increase of approximately 25% in connection with the change in fiscal year and resulting 15-month service period established for the 2014 STIC plan, and amounts included in Stock Awards and Option Awards with respect to the 2014 LTIC plan reflect the one-time target opportunity increase of 25% similar to the one-time increase made under the 2014 STIC plan.

					Change in							
					Pension Value and Nonqualified							
				Stock	Non-Equity Deferred Option Incentive Planmpensational Other							
inainal		Salary	Bonus	Awards	Awards C	ompensation	Earnings	ompensation	n Total			
incipal	Fiscal Year ⁽¹⁾	(\$)	(\$) ⁽²⁾	(\$) ⁽³⁾	(\$) ⁽⁴⁾	(\$) ⁽⁵⁾	(\$)(6)	(\$) ⁽⁷⁾	(\$)			
re	2014	923,077	2,420,330	10,571,397	7,746,242		,	137,417	21,798,463			
ve												
euer	2014	775,000		1,881,164	3,595,708	1,946,683		10,400	8,208,955			

al	Transition Period	193,750						19,708	213,458
	2013	775,000		4,776,268		3,531,887		10,200	9,093,355
	2012	775,000		1,215,727	742,609	1,430,935		14,875	4,179,146
on	2014	625,000		1,074,952	2,054,691	1,363,442		50,535	5,168,620
	Transition Period	156,250		-,-,-,	_, _ , _ ,	-,,		,	156,250
ence	2013	566,981		2,163,490		1,645,661		10,200	4,386,332
iicc					210 261			•	
	2012	523,846		597,376	318,261	847,621		14,875	2,301,979
						0040=0			
vartz	2014	439,808	100,000	644,971	1,232,814	894,079		42,493	3,354,165
otegy									
ategy									
nent	2014	400,000		752 467	1 420 202	062.045	70.502	10 400	2 722 700
sch	2014	490,000		752,467	1,438,283	962,045	70,593	10,400	3,723,788
	Transition Period	131,923					19,153		151,076
	2013	465,769		1,902,962		1,406,534		10,200	3,785,465
sel,									
.501,									
Cl.:.c									
Chief									
•									
utive									
	2014	533,850				2,773,479		7,210,400	10,517,729
	Transition Period	300,000						13,299	313,299
(8)									
lent and									
ve	2012	1 200 000		07.700.547	6.001.160	12 421 014		272.070	40.077.600
	2013	1,200,000		27,782,547	6,291,160	13,431,914		372,078	49,077,699

3,560,070 1,214,695

5,002,457

38 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

1,200,000

2012

Table of Contents 76

167,334 11,144,556

Executive Compensation

- (1) Transition Period refers to the three-month period ended March 31, 2014 as Sprint transitioned from a calendar year-end to a fiscal year-end.
- (2) For Mr. Claure, consists of a sign-on bonus of \$500,000 plus a bonus equal to 250% of his base salary, prorated for the number of days he was employed by Sprint during the service period in lieu of participating in the 2014 STIC plan, pursuant to his employment agreement.

For Mr. Schwartz, consists of the portion of his sign-on bonus earned in fiscal year 2014 pursuant to his employment agreement.

(3) Represents the sum of values for two types of awards, consisting of pRSUs allocable to the fiscal year 2014 performance period under the 2014 LTIC plan and time-based RSUs under the 2014 LTIC plan.

	2014 pRSUs (\$)	2014 RSUs (\$)	Total (\$)
Claure	2,746,480	7,824,917	10,571,397
Euteneuer	338,489	1,542,675	1,881,164
Johnson	193,420	881,532	1,074,952
Schwartz	116,053	528,918	644,971
Wunsch	135,393	617,074	752,467
Former Executive Officer			
Hesse			

For the 2014 time-based RSU awards, the value represents the aggregate grant date fair value computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. The time-based RSUs vest on May 20, 2017. Amounts for the fiscal year 2014 portion of the pRSUs granted represent the aggregate grant date fair value computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. The pRSUs granted under the 2014 LTIC plan are reported based on target opportunity (in other words, probable outcome of the performance conditions) and vest on May 20, 2017, subject to achievement of the applicable

performance conditions. The grant date fair value for these pRSUs based on maximum performance would be \$5,492,960 for Mr. Claure, \$676,978 for Mr. Euteneuer, \$386,840 for Mr. Johnson, \$232,106 for Mr. Schwartz, and \$270,786 for Mr. Wunsch. As a result of the 15-month service period established for the 2014 LTIC, the opportunity percentages for each of the time-based RSUs and pRSUs under the 2014 LTIC plan were increased by 25%, except with respect to Mr. Claure, whose grant was intended to cover any LTIC awards that might otherwise have been granted to him under the 2014 and 2015 LTIC plans, without the increase in opportunity percentage discussed above. For more information regarding the increase in opportunity percentage due to the 15-month service period, see

Compensation Discussion and Analysis Key Fiscal Year 2014 Compensation Decisions STIC Plan and LTIC Plan . For more information regarding the 2014 LTIC plan, see Compensation Discussion and Analysis Key Fiscal Year 2014 Compensation Decisions LTIC Plan.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 39

Executive Compensation

(4) Represents the sum of values for two types of awards, consisting of option awards granted in connection with the 2014 LTIC plan and a supplemental stock option award.

	2014 LTIC Option Awards (\$)	Supplemental Option Awards (\$)	Total
Claure	7,746,242		7,746,242
Euteneuer	1,461,468	2,134,240	3,595,708
Johnson	835,126	1,219,565	2,054,691
Schwartz	501,074	731,740	1,232,814
Wunsch	584,587	853,696	1,438,283
Former Executive Officer Hesse			

The values for each of the 2014 LTIC plan option awards and the supplemental option awards represent the grant date fair value of the options computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. See Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in Sprint s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 for more information. As a result of the 15-month service period established for the 2014 LTIC plan, the opportunity percentages for options awarded under the 2014 LTIC plan were increased by 25%, except with respect to Mr. Claure, whose grant was intended to cover any LTIC awards that might otherwise have been granted to him under the 2014 and 2015 LTIC plans, without the increase in opportunity percentage discussed above. For more information regarding the increase in opportunity percentage due to the 15-month service period and the supplemental option awards, see Compensation Discussion and Analysis Key Fiscal Year 2014 Compensation Decisions.

(5) The value shown for 2014 is the final payout under the 2014 STIC plan.

2014 STIC Plan

Edgar Filing: SPRINT Corp - Form DEF 14A

	(\$)
Claure	
Euteneuer	1,946,683
Johnson	1,363,442
Schwartz	894,079
Wunsch	962,045
Former Executive Officer	
Hesse	2,773,479

The Compensation Committee determined that the effective achievement percentage for the 2014 STIC plan equaled 190% of the target award opportunity for all eligible employees who participated in the 2014 STIC plan for fiscal year 2014 based on actual performance results during the 12-month performance period subject to the 15-month service period ended March 31, 2015. The Compensation Committee exercised negative discretion with respect to payouts ultimately awarded under the 2014 STIC plan to our named executive officers, with the exception of Mr. Hesse, whose payout was based on actual performance. Mr. Hesse s payout was prorated for the number of days he was employed during the service period. Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr. Claure received an amount equal to 250% of his base salary, prorated for the number of days he was employed by Sprint during the service period in lieu of participating in the

40 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Executive Compensation

2014 STIC plan. For more information regarding our STIC plan and the one-time increase in opportunity percentage due to the 15-month service period, see Compensation Discussion and Analysis Key Fiscal Year 2014 Compensation Decisions STIC Plan.

(6) Amount represents change in pension value as follows:

	Change in Pension Value
Claure	
Euteneuer	
Johnson	
Schwartz	
Wunsch	
Sprint Retirement Pension Plan	58,599
Sprint Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan	11,994
Former Executive Officer	
Hesse	

(7) Consists of perquisites and other personal benefits and tax gross-ups during fiscal year 2014 as follows:

Non-busin	ess Relocation	Tax	Legal Fees and Other	Company
use of	Costs	Gross-Ups	(\$) ^(iv)	Contributions to
	(\$) ⁽ⁱⁱ⁾	(\$) ⁽ⁱⁱⁱ⁾	(Φ)(-1)	

Edgar Filing: SPRINT Corp - Form DEF 14A

	Corporate Aircraft				401(k) and Deferred
	(\$) ⁽ⁱ⁾				Compensation
					Plans
					(\$)
Claure	33,513	39,017	14,887	50,000	
Euteneuer					10,400
Johnson		20,833	19,302		10,400
Schwartz		32,093			10,400
Wunsch					10,400
Former Executive Officer					
Hesse				7,200,000	10,400

- (i) The incremental cost of non-business use of our aircraft is calculated by dividing the total variable costs (such as fuel, aircraft maintenance, engine warranty expense, contract labor expense and other trip expenses) by the total flight hours for the past twelve months and multiplying such amount by the individual s total number of flight hours for non-business use for the year. Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr. Claure is permitted to use up to six hours of flight time per month for personal travel on our corporate aircraft. Any unused hours are carried over to the next month. He is required to pay the full incremental cost associated with personal use of the aircraft to the extent he exceeds his monthly allotted flight time (plus carryover hours). Mr. Claure is also permitted to have his family or guests accompany him on the corporate aircraft for business and personal travel.
- (ii) For Mr. Claure, consists of relocation costs incurred in connection with relocation of his principal residence to the Overland Park, Kansas area.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 41

Executive Compensation

For Mr. Johnson, represents a monthly tax protected interim living stipend (up to \$50,000 per year) until Mr. Johnson s relocation to Overland Park, Kansas or the duration of his employment with Sprint, whichever is earlier. For more information regarding Mr. Johnson s relocation, see Compensation Discussion and Analysis Employment Agreements.

For Mr. Schwartz, consists of relocation costs incurred in connection with relocation of his principal residence to the Overland Park, Kansas area.

(iii) Consists of customary tax gross-ups in connection with relocation of Mr. Claure s principal residence to the Overland Park, Kansas area.

For Mr. Johnson, consists of tax gross-ups in connection with his interim living stipend. See footnote (iii) to this footnote seven to the Fiscal Year 2014 Summary Compensation Table and Compensation Discussion and Analysis Employment Agreements.

(iv) Consists of legal fees paid on behalf of Mr. Claure relating to the negotiation of his employment contract, up to a maximum amount of \$50,000, pursuant to his employment agreement.

The amount disclosed for Mr. Hesse consists of \$7,200,000 in severance payments upon termination of his employment, which was comprised of a lump sum payment of two times his annual base salary rate of \$1,200,000 and two times his annual STIC plan opportunity of \$2,400,000, pursuant to his employment agreement. For more information regarding these severance payments, see Fiscal Year 2014 Potential Payments upon Termination of Employment or Change in Control.

(8) As previously disclosed on Sprint s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 4, 2012, Mr. Hesse agreed to reduce his 2012 base pay by \$346,223 to repay amounts associated with a discretionary adjustment the Compensation Committee made under the incentive plan payouts for 2011 for the impact of the iPhone® on Sprint s financial results. In connection therewith, he also agreed to forfeit performance units valued at \$2,000,000 granted to him under the 2012 LTIC plan and reduce his 2012 STIC plan opportunity from 200% of his annual base salary (\$2.4 million) to 170% (\$2.04 million), which returned his incentive opportunity to his 2010 level. Amounts included in the Salary, Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation, and Total columns include such amounts that were repaid or foregone.

42 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Executive Compensation

Fiscal Year 2014 Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The table below summarizes awards under our 2014 STIC and LTIC incentive plans to our named executive officers for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, plus additional plan-based awards granted during fiscal year 2014. These awards consisted of the following:

Awards granted pursuant to our 2014 STIC plan; Stock options, time-based RSUs and pRSUs granted pursuant to our 2014 LTIC plan; and Supplemental stock option awards granted to certain of our named executive officers in December 2014.

		No		Under	e Payouts E	Equity	uture Pay Incentiv Awards	ve Plan	er			
	Comm			Target	Maximum		ı		Shares of Stock or Units	All Other Options Awards: f Number of Securities Underlying Options	Exercise of Base Price of Option	f <i>A</i>
		t Award 1 Type	Threshold (\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(#)	(#)	Maximum (#)	1 (#)	(#)	Awards (\$/Sh)	
Claure	8/18	pRSU ⁽¹⁾ RSU ⁽²⁾	(+)	(,)	(1)	116,376	` '	• • •	1,392,334	` '	5.62	2, 7, 7.
Euteneuer	r 10/13 10/13	S STI ⁽⁴⁾ S pRSU ⁽¹⁾ RSU ⁽²⁾ SO ⁽⁵⁾	313,981	1,255,925	5 2,511,850	14,343	57,371	114,742	171,599	344,415 806,388	8.99 4.75	1, 1, 2,
Johnson		S STI ⁽⁴⁾ S pRSU ⁽¹⁾ RSU ⁽²⁾	194,778	779,110	1,558,220	8,196	32,783	65,566	98,057			1

Edgar Filing: SPRINT Corp - Form DEF 14A

	5/20	$SO^{(5)}$								196,809	8.99	8
	12/8	SO ⁽⁶⁾								460,793	4.75	1,
Schwartz	10/13	STI ⁽⁴⁾	122,813	491,252	982,504							
	10/13	pRSU ⁽¹⁾				4,918	19,670	39,340				1
	5/20	RSU ⁽²⁾							58,834			4
	5/20	$SO^{(5)}$								118,085	8.99	4
	12/8	SO ⁽⁶⁾								276,476	4.75	7
Wunsch	10/13	STI ⁽⁴⁾	137,435	549,740	1,099,480							
		pRSU ⁽¹⁾				5,737	22,948	45,896				1
	5/20	RSU ⁽²⁾							68,640			Ć
	5/20	$SO^{(5)}$								137,766	8.99	4
	12/8	SO ⁽⁶⁾								322,555	4.75	8
Former E	xecuti	ve Office	r									
Hesse	10/13	$STI^{(1)}$	364,932	1,459,726	2,919,452							

- (1) pRSU Represents the fiscal year 2014 portion of a performance-based RSU award granted under our 2014 LTIC plan, which is subject to adjustment in accordance with the performance objectives. Vesting generally occurs 100%, depending on achievement in the one-year performance period ending on March 31, 2015, on May 20, 2017 (August 18, 2017 for Mr. Claure).
- (2) RSU Represents a time-based RSU award granted under our 2014 LTIC plan. Vesting generally occurs 100% on May 20, 2017 (August 18, 2017 for Mr. Claure).
- (3) SO Represents stock options granted under our 2014 LTIC plan to Mr. Claure. Vesting generally occurs 33½% on each of August 18, 2015, August 18, 2016, and August 18, 2017.
- (4) STI Represents the threshold, target and maximum estimated possible payouts for fiscal year 2014 under our 2014 STIC plan.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 43

Executive Compensation

- (5) SO Represents stock options granted under our 2014 LTIC plan. Vesting generally occurs 33½% on each of May 20, 2015, May 20, 2016 and May 20, 2017.
- (6) SO Represents supplemental stock options. Vesting generally occurs 33\\[^4_3\%\] on each of December 8, 2015, December 8, 2016 and December 8, 2017.

We had employment agreements with each of our named executive officers during fiscal year 2014. For information regarding the material terms of such employment agreements, see the tabular and narrative disclosure under Fiscal Year 2014 Potential Payments Upon Termination of Employment or Change in Control. For information regarding our compensation philosophy and the material terms of each of these agreements, see Compensation Discussion and Analysis and Potential Payments upon Termination of Employment or Change in Control.

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2014 Fiscal Year-End

The table below summarizes option and equity awards outstanding as of March 31, 2015 held by each of our named executive officers based on the closing price of a share of our common stock of \$4.74 on that date.

Option Awards	Stock Awards
	Equity
	Incentive Plan
	Awards:
	Equity Incentive
	Market Plan Awards: Market or
	Value of Payout Value of
Number of Number of	Number of Shares or Number of Unearned
Securities Securities	Shares or Units Units of Unearned Shares, Units,
Underlying Underlying Option	of Stock that Stock that Shares, Units, or or Other Rights
Unexercised Unexercised Exercise Option	Have Not Have Not Other Rights that that Have Not
Options (#) Options (#) Price Expirati	on Vested Vested Have Not Vested Vested
Exercisable Unexercisable (\$) Date	$(\#)^{(1)}$ $(\$)^{(1)}$ $(\#)$ $(\$)^{(1)}$

Claure		2,949,077 (2)	5.62	8/18/2024	2,276,794 (6)	10,792,004	931,011 ⁽⁷⁾	4,412,992
Euteneuer		806,388 (3)	4.75	12/8/2024	629,391 (6)	2,983,313	463,530 (7)	2,197,132
		344,415 ⁽⁴⁾	8.99	5/20/2024				
	680,371 ⁽⁵⁾	(5)	2.00	2/22/2022				
	381,671 ⁽⁵⁾	(5)	4.14	4/4/2021				
Johnson		460,793 (3)	4.75	12/8/2024	319,790 (6)	1,515,805	225,013 (7)	1,066,562
		196,809 (4)	8.99	5/20/2024				
	97,196 ⁽⁵⁾	(5)	2.00	2/22/2022				
Schwartz		276,476 (3)	4.75	12/8/2024	215,791 (6)	1,022,849	158,925 (7)	753,305
		118,085 (4)	8.99	5/20/2024				
Wunsch		322,555 (3)	4.75	12/8/2024	251,756 ⁽⁶⁾	1,193,323	185,413 ⁽⁷⁾	878,858
		137,766 (4)	8.99	5/20/2024				
	90,716 (5)	(5)	2.00	2/22/2022				
	33,025 (5)	(5)	3.09	3/16/2020				
Former Ex	ecutive Off	icer						
Hesse							578,281 (7)	5,314,402

- (1) Market value is based on the closing price of a share of our common stock of \$4.74 on March 31, 2015.
- (2) Stock options generally vest 33 $\frac{1}{3}\%$ on each of August 18, 2015, August 18, 2016 and August 18, 2017.
- (3) Stock options generally vest 33 $\frac{1}{3}\%$ on each of December 8, 2015, December 8, 2016 and December 8, 2017.

44 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Executive Compensation

- (4) Stock options generally vest 33 ½% on each of May 20, 2015, May 20, 2016 and May 20, 2017.
- (5) Stock options are fully vested.
- (6) For Mr. Claure, consists of time-based RSUs that generally vest on August 18, 2017. For the following other named executive officers, consists of time-based RSUs that generally vest on February 27, 2016:

	Amount
Euteneuer	348,787
Johnson	159,445
Schwartz	119,584
Wunsch	139,515

For the following other named executive officers, consists of time-based RSUs that generally vest on May 20, 2017:

	Amount
Euteneuer	280,604
Johnson	160,345
Schwartz	96,207
Wunsch	112,241

(7) For Mr. Claure, consists of pRSUs that generally vest on August 18, 2017 and with respect to which the applicable performance periods have not been completed.

For the following other named executive officers, consists of pRSUs that generally vest on February 27, 2016 and with respect to which the applicable performance periods have not been completed:

Edgar Filing: SPRINT Corp - Form DEF 14A

	Amount
Euteneuer	348,787
Johnson	159,445
Schwartz	119,584
Wunsch	139,515
Former Executive Officer	
Hesse	578,281

For the named executive officers listed below, consists of pRSUs that generally vest on May 20, 2017 and with respect to which the applicable performance periods have not been completed:

	Amount
Euteneuer	114,743
Johnson	65,568
Schwartz	39,341
Wunsch	45.898

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 4

Executive Compensation

Fiscal Year 2014 Option Exercises and Stock Vested

The table below summarizes option awards that were exercised and stock awards that vested during fiscal year 2014 with respect to each of our named executive officers.

	Option Awards		Stock Awards	
	Number of	Value	Number of	
	Shares		Shares	Value
	Acquired on	Realized on	Acquired on	Realized on
	Exercise	Exercise	Vesting	Vesting
	(#)	(\$) ⁽¹⁾	(#)	(\$) ⁽²⁾
Claure				
Euteneuer			784,473(3)	4,937,755
Johnson	180,603	1,079,612	$224,548^{(4)}$	1,071,094
Schwartz				
Wunsch			$209,578^{(5)}$	999,687
Former Executive Officer				
Hesse	7,100,000	16,533,571	$4,230,201^{(6)}$	21,151,005

- (1) Calculated based on the difference between the market price of the underlying common stock at exercise (based on the average high and low common stock price as reported on the NYSE composite on the date of exercise) and the exercise price of the stock options.
- (2) Amounts reflect the average high and low common stock price as reported on the NYSE composite of the underlying common stock on the day the stock award vested multiplied by the number of shares that vested.

- (3) Mr. Euteneuer surrendered 349,191 shares of common stock receivable upon the vesting of his stock awards to satisfy tax withholding obligations, resulting in Mr. Euteneuer receiving 435,282 shares of our common stock.
- (4) Mr. Johnson surrendered 102,120 shares of common stock receivable upon the vesting of his stock award to satisfy tax withholding obligations, resulting in Mr. Johnson receiving 122,428 shares of our common stock.
- (5) Mr. Wunsch surrendered 88,167 shares of common stock receivable upon the vesting of his stock award to satisfy tax withholding obligations, resulting in Mr. Wunsch receiving 121,411 shares of our common stock.
- (6) Mr. Hesse surrendered 1,988,348 shares of common stock receivable upon the vesting of his stock awards to satisfy tax withholding obligations, resulting in Mr. Hesse receiving 2,241,853 shares of our common stock.

46 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Executive Compensation

Fiscal Year 2014 Pension Benefits

The table below summarizes the pension benefits to which our named executive officers were entitled as of March 31, 2015, which include the following:

Sprint Retirement Pension Plan (Qualified Plan) designed to provide funded, tax-qualified defined benefits up to the limits on compensation and benefits under the Internal Revenue Code; and Sprint Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP), which provides unfunded, non-qualified benefits in excess of the limits applicable to the Qualified Plan.

			Present	
				Payments During
		Credited Service	Benefit	Last
Classes	Plan Name	(#)	(\$)(1)	Fiscal Year
Claure Euteneuer				
Johnson				
Schwartz				
Wunsch	Qualified Plan SERP	12.7 12.7	287,737 58,894	
Former Executive Officer Hesse			,	

(1)

Amounts have been measured as of March 31, 2015 and are based on a number of assumptions, including (a) a discount rate of 4.2%; (b) mortality rates based on standard actuarial tables; (c) no retirements prior to normal retirement age or withdrawals for disability or otherwise prior to retirement; and (d) a normal retirement age of 65 for all benefits.

Sprint Retirement Pension Plan

The Qualified Plan is a tax-qualified defined benefit pension plan. Only individuals who were employed with us prior to August 12, 2005, the date of the Sprint-Nextel merger, are eligible to participate in the Qualified Plan. Mr. Wunsch was the only named executive officer eligible to participate in the Qualified Plan for fiscal year 2014.

Benefits under the Qualified Plan are based on each participant s number of years of credited service and his or her eligible compensation. Benefit accruals under the Qualified Plan were frozen on December 31, 2005 for all Qualified Plan participants. Eligible compensation under the Qualified Plan is equal to the sum of base salary, certain annual short term incentive compensation, sales commissions and sales bonus compensation, including any amounts deferred under applicable deferred compensation plans, subject to annual compensation limits under the Internal Revenue Code.

The benefit amount, expressed as a single life annuity beginning at age 65, is equal to:

the product of 1.5% and the average annual compensation for the 60 months ending on December 31, 1993, multiplied by the number of years of credited service through December 31, 1993, plus

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 47

Executive Compensation

the product of 1.5% and eligible compensation earned from January 1, 1994 through December 31, 2005. Benefits are limited by the Internal Revenue Code. The limit for 2014 was \$210,000, expressed as a single life annuity beginning at normal retirement age. Benefits under the Qualified Plan are payable in the form of an annuity with monthly benefit payments. No lump sum is available for Mr. Wunsch. Benefits under this plan are funded by an irrevocable tax-exempt trust.

Participants who are at least age 55 and have at least 10 years of service are eligible to elect a reduced early retirement benefit. The benefit is reduced by 5% for each year the benefit commences before age 65. Mr. Wunsch was eligible for early retirement benefits under the Qualified Plan as of March 31, 2015.

Sprint Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

Our SERP is an unfunded, non-qualified defined benefit pension plan designed to restore a participant s overall retirement benefit to the level that would have been payable under the Qualified Plan absent certain Internal Revenue Code limitations. Mr. Wunsch was the only named executive officer eligible to participate in the SERP for fiscal year 2014.

Benefits under the SERP are based on each participant s number of years of credited service and the participant s eligible compensation. Benefit accruals under the SERP were frozen on December 31, 2005 for all SERP participants. The years of credited service for eligible named executive officers are based only on their service while eligible for participation in the Qualified Plan.

Eligible compensation under the SERP is equal to the sum of base salary, certain annual short term incentive compensation, sales commissions, and sales bonus compensation, inclusive of any amounts deferred under applicable deferred compensation plans. The amount of such compensation is not limited by the Internal Revenue Code annual compensation limits.

The benefit amount, expressed as a single life annuity beginning at age 65, is equal to:

the product of 1.5% and the average annual compensation for the 60 months ending on December 31, 1993, multiplied by the number of years of credited service through December 31, 1993, plus the product of 1.5% and eligible compensation earned from January 1, 1994 through December 31, 2005. This benefit amount is reduced by the benefit amount provided by the Qualified Plan.

Benefits under the SERP are payable in the form of an annuity with monthly benefit payments. No lump sum is available for Mr. Wunsch. The SERP is unfunded; thus, participants are general creditors of ours with respect to their SERP benefit payments.

Participants who are at least age 55 and have at least 10 years of service are eligible to elect a reduced early retirement benefit. The benefit is reduced by 5% for each year the benefit commences before age 65. Mr. Wunsch was eligible for early retirement benefits under the SERP as of March 31, 2015.

48 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Executive Compensation

Fiscal Year 2014 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

Certain employees, including our named executive officers, are entitled to participate in the Sprint Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan, a nonqualified and unfunded plan under which participants may defer to future years the receipt of certain compensation. For fiscal year 2014, the plan permitted participants to defer up to 50% of base salary, up to 75% of their STIC plan payout, and up to 75% of cash-based performance unit payouts made under the LTIC plan. We also matched deferrals to the plan in 2014 using the same matching contribution formula as our 401(k) plan for eligible compensation above the applicable annual limit, which for 2014 was \$260,000. The table below summarizes the information with respect to this plan and the activity and balances with respect to the account of each named executive officer.

Name	Executive Contributions in Last FY (\$)(1)	Registrant Contributions in Last FY (\$)	Aggregate Earnings In Last FY (\$)	Aggregate Withdrawals/ Distributions (\$)	Aggregate Balance at Last FYE (\$)
Claure	· · /	.,		· /	()
Euteneuer					
Johnson					
Schwartz					
Wunsch			2,720		148,004
Former Executive Officer					
Hesse	23,077	(2)	17,799	1,081,176	446,653

⁽¹⁾ Includes contributions by Mr. Hesse with respect to fiscal year 2014 base salary, the amount of which is included in the Salary column of the Fiscal Year 2014 Summary Compensation Table.

(2) Mr. Hesse was not eligible for a 2014 plan year matching contribution because he was not employed by Sprint on the last day of the plan year. None of the amounts in this table are reported in the Fiscal Year 2014 Summary Compensation Table.

Compensation deferred by participants and any matching contributions made by us are credited to a bookkeeping account that represents our unsecured obligation to repay the participant in the future. Participants elect to allocate deferred and matching contributions among one or more hypothetical investment options, which include one option that tracks our common stock and other options that track broad-based bond and equity indices. Participants may change hypothetical investment elections only four times a year and at least three months must elapse between each change. Under the plan, the amount of our unfunded obligation is determined by tracking the value in the bookkeeping account according to the performance of the hypothetical investments.

Fiscal Year 2014 Potential Payments upon Termination of Employment or Change in Control

Upon a termination of employment at the end of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, due to a resignation without good reason or termination by us with cause, our named executive officers would be entitled to only those payments and benefits provided to all of our salaried employees on a non-discriminatory basis (accrued benefits), including:

accrued salary and vacation pay; and payment of any vested balances or accrued benefits under our 401(k) Plan, Sprint Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan, Qualified Plan, and SERP.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 49

Executive Compensation

In addition, if any of our named executive officers satisfied the age and service requirements as of the end of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, and had their termination been at their normal retirement, they would be entitled to receive (consistent with benefits provided to all our salaried employees) accelerated vesting on options outstanding for one year and pro-rata vesting on RSUs outstanding for two years. Unvested RSUs will be forfeited as of the separation from service date. For more information on the retirement and deferred compensation benefits available to our named executive officers, see Setting Executive Compensation Other Components of Executive Compensation.

Pursuant to the terms of our named executive officers respective employment agreements or our Change in Control Severance Plan (CIC Severance Plan), upon an involuntary termination without cause or resignation for good reason (in connection with a change in control or not) or a termination in connection with their disability or death, our named executive officers would be entitled to not only their accrued benefits noted above, but other payments and benefits as set forth in more detail below. In addition, Mr. Claure would be entitled under his employment agreement to 100% vesting in any outstanding, unvested equity, or equity-based awards subject to adjustment for performance under applicable performance goals.

While each of the applicable employment agreements and the CIC Severance Plan set forth relevant definitions in full, generally:

Change in control means: (1) the acquisition by a person or group, excluding SoftBank or its controlled affiliates, of 30% or more of Sprint s voting stock; (2) a change in the composition of a majority of our directors; (3) the close of a merger, reorganization, business combination or similar transaction after which: (a) Sprint s stockholders do not hold more than 50% of the combined entity, (b) the members of Sprint s board do not constitute a majority of the directors of the combined entity, or (c) a person or group holds 30% or more of the voting securities of the combined entity; (4) Sprint ceasing to have equity securities trading on a national securities exchange; or (5) the liquidation or dissolution of Sprint.

We have *cause* to terminate the employment of a named executive officer involuntarily if that officer materially breaches his employment agreement, fails to perform his duties, intentionally acts in a manner that is injurious to us, or violates our code of conduct.

Good reason means the occurrence of any of the following without the named executive officer s consent:

our material breach of his employment agreement; a reduction in salary or short-term incentive compensation target opportunity, except for across-the-board reductions; certain relocations; or, for Mr. Euteneuer only, if we require him to stop reporting directly to the CEO; or

in connection with a change in control:

- a significant and adverse reduction of a named executive officer s duties or responsibilities or organizational status;
- the failure to provide a long-term incentive compensation opportunity comparable to other senior executives or a greater than 10% across-the-board reduction to any of base salary or short- or long-term incentive compensation opportunities; or
- our failure to obtain an agreement from a successor to assume the employment agreement.

50 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Executive Compensation

As a condition to a named executive officers entitlement to receive the amounts below, except for vested retirement or death benefits, such officer would have been:

required to execute a release in favor of us; subject to confidentiality and non-disparagement provisions on a permanent basis following the termination of their employment; and for the duration of their payment period, prohibited from:

- engaging in certain employment activities with a competitor of ours;
- soliciting our employees and certain other parties doing business with us to terminate their relationship with us; and
- soliciting or assisting any party to undertake any action that would be reasonably likely to, or is intended to, result in a change in control or seek to control our board.

If the named executive officer breached any of these obligations, he would have no rights in, and we would have no obligation to provide, any severance benefits yet to be paid or provided under his employment agreement and any outstanding equity-based award granted under his employment agreement would have terminated immediately.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 51

Executive Compensation

The following table and footnotes, along with the narrative below, describe the potential payments and benefits that would be provided to our named executive officers upon each respective hypothetical March 31, 2015 termination of employment scenario, based on the closing price of a share of our common stock of \$4.74 on that date. The Non-CIC column shows the amounts due to each named executive officer in the event of his involuntary termination without cause or resignation with good reason on March 31, 2015. Amounts in the CIC column assume a qualifying termination in connection with a change in control occurring on March 31, 2015.

Without Cause or For Good Reason ⁽¹⁾						
			Non-CIC	CIC	Disability	Death
			$(\$)^{(2)}$	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)
Claure	Salary-based		3,393,000	3,000,000		
	STI-based		9,420,330	9,420,330	1,920,330	1,920,330
	LTI-based ⁽³⁾		15,204,996	15,204,996	15,204,996	15,204,996
	Benefits/Perquisites		44,825	48,067	6,553	
		Total	28,063,151	27,673,393	17,131,879	17,125,326
Euteneuer	Salary-based		1,550,000	1,550,000	775,000	
	STI-based		3,961,683	3,270,925	1,946,683	1,946,683
	LTI-based ⁽³⁾		2,983,501	5,180,445	5,180,445	5,180,445
	Benefits/Perquisites		54,726	54,726	9,863	
		Total	8,549,910	10,056,096	7,911,991	7,127,128
Johnson	Salary-based		1,250,000	1,250,000	625,000	625,000
	STI-based		2,613,442	2,613,442	1,363,442	1,363,442
	LTI-based ⁽³⁾		2,582,364	2,582,364	2,582,364	2,582,364
	Benefits/Perquisites		70,301	70,301	10,151	
		Total	6,516,107	6,516,107	4,580,957	4,570,806
Schwartz	Salary-based		675,000	675,000	450,000	
	STI-based		1,501,579	1,098,752	894,079	894,079
	LTI-based ⁽³⁾		1,022,915	1,776,153	1,776,153	1,776,153
	Benefits/Perquisites		53,089	53,089	12,060	
		Total	3,252,583	3,602,994	3,132,292	2,670,232

Edgar Filing: SPRINT Corp - Form DEF 14A

Wunsch	Salary-based	980,000	980,000	490,000	
	STI-based	1,844,045	1,431,740	962,045	962,045
	LTI-based ⁽³⁾	1,193,400	2,072,182	2,072,182	2,072,182
	Benefits/Perquisites	45,013	45,013	5,007	
	Tot	al 4.062.458	4.528.935	3.529.234	3.034.227

(1) The CIC Severance Plan provides that if the payments and benefits provided to an executive under the CIC Severance Plan or any other plan or agreement would constitute an excess parachute payment for purposes of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code, the executive would either have his or her payments and benefits reduced to the highest amount that could be paid without triggering excise taxes under Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code; or, if greater, receive the after-tax amount of his or her payment and benefits taking into account the excise taxes and any other applicable federal, state and local taxes. Amounts do not take into account any possible reduction due to the effects of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code.

52 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Executive Compensation

- (2) If Mr. Johnson s termination was for good reason based on relocation, his salary-based benefit would have been \$625,000, his STIC plan-based benefit would have been \$1,988,442, his LTIC plan-based benefit would have been \$2,582,364, and his benefits/perquisites would have been \$10,151, for a total value of \$5,205,957.
- (3) Includes stock options and RSUs. The value of options is based on the intrinsic value of the options, which is the difference between the exercise price of the option and the market price of our shares on March 31, 2015, multiplied by the number of options, and the value of RSUs is based on the market value of our stock on March 31, 2015, multiplied by the number of RSUs, including the 190% first period adjustment for 2014 pRSUs. Mr. Hesse received, as a result of his involuntary termination without Cause in connection with a change in control, payments and benefits of \$2,400,000 in salary-based, \$7,573,479 in STI-based, \$30,689,347 in LTI-based (as described in footnote 3 above) compensation (including 2012 performance units) and \$19,827 in benefits, for a total of \$40,682,653.

Resignation for Good Reason or Involuntary Termination without Cause

If the employment of our executive officers (other than Mr. Hesse) had been terminated either by them for good reason or by us without cause, they would have been entitled to:

a lump sum payment equal to their then-current base salary for their respective payment period, which is generally 24 months for each named executive officer (18 months for Mr. Schwartz;12 months for Mr. Johnson if his termination was for good reason based on relocation; and a flat \$3,393,000 lump sum for Mr. Claure);

a lump sum payment equal to their STIC target opportunity for their respective payment period and payment of their STIC plan award for the calendar year of their termination at their STIC target opportunity (or actual performance for a non-CIC separation), prorated to their termination date for a March 31, 2015 termination; however, for Mr. Claure, because he agreed to forgo STI opportunity for a fixed amount of 250% of his base salary for fiscal year 2014, he would have received a capped bonus award for the first fiscal year following termination and a pro-rata, based on days of service, capped bonus award for the second fiscal year following termination;

Except for Mr. Claure, a payment of:

outstanding options with exercisability of such options vested through the 90th day (12 months for Mr. Johnson) after such vesting; and

relocation), each for the duration of his payment period.

- RSUs prorated (except for Mr. Johnson) to their termination date and pRSUs adjusted for performance (at target for Mr. Johnson, or for terminations following a change in control);
- however, Mr. Claure would have received immediate vesting of his initial LTIP award as described above, subject to adjustment for achievement of applicable performance goals, and with respect to future LTIP awards, pro rata acceleration based on the portion of the vesting period worked prior to termination, subject to adjustment for achievement of applicable performance goals; and continued participation for the applicable payment period at employee rates in our group health and life plans (and for Mr. Johnson, the long-term disability plan) and outplacement services in an amount not to exceed \$35,000 (for Mr. Johnson: \$50,000; zero if his termination was for good reason based on

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 53

Executive Compensation

Termination Disability Plan Benefits

If our named executive officers employment had terminated as a result of their disability, they would have been entitled to:

continuation of their base salary for 12 months, less (except for Mr. Johnson) any benefits paid under our Long-term Disability Plan, through periodic payment with the same frequency as our payroll schedule; a payment of their 2014 STIC plan award prorated to the termination date and payable based on actual performance;

immediate vesting of options granted with exercisability thereof for five years (12 months for Mr. Johnson) and of RSUs granted with performance-based RSUs payable at target, subject to performance adjustment for RSUs allocated to a performance period ending on or before the separation date; and

continued participation at employee rates in our group health and life plans for 12 months.

Termination as a Result of Death

Had our named executive officers employment terminated as a result of their death, their estates would have been entitled, as with respect to our employees generally, to a payment of their 2014 STIC plan award prorated to the termination date and payable based on actual performance; and immediate vesting of options granted with exercisability thereof for 12 months and of RSUs granted with performance-based RSUs payable at target, subject to performance adjustment for RSUs allocated to a performance period ending on or before the separation date.

54 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions

Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions

SoftBank, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, is the controlling stockholder of Sprint. Mr. Son is SoftBank s controlling stockholder, chairman of the board and chief executive officer. Mr. Fisher is the founder of SoftBank Capital, a director and president of SoftBank Holdings, Inc., and a member of the board of directors of SoftBank and Brightstar Corp. (Brightstar), which became a controlled affiliate of SoftBank on January 29, 2014. Mr. Arora is the Chief Executive Officer of SoftBank Internet and Media, Inc. and President of SoftBank. In this section, we refer to SoftBank, its controlled affiliates (other than Sprint), and Messrs. Son, Fisher, and Arora as SoftBank Parties or each a SoftBank Party. We consider SoftBank Parties, as well as our other directors and executive officers, to be related parties.

Policy on Oversight of Related Party Transactions

Our board has adopted, and the Audit Committee has maintained, a written policy on the review and approval of transactions with related parties. The policy generally groups these transactions into three categories: (1) transactions requiring the approval by the Audit Committee; (2) transactions requiring the approval of our board, including approval of the majority of the independent directors; and (3) certain ordinary course transactions that are deemed pre-approved by our board.

Generally, our board deems pre-approved any transaction or series of transactions with a SoftBank Party that is entered into in the ordinary course of business and has substantially the same terms and conditions offered to or by third parties, or where the rates or charges involved are determined by competitive bid, as well as certain tri-party agreements. All ordinary course transactions deemed pre-approved by our board must be approved by the related party transaction committee, which is comprised of members of management.

Related Party Transactions During Fiscal Year 2014

Transactions with Sprint s Officers and Directors

We have entered into indemnity agreements with our officers and directors that provide, among other things, that we will indemnify each such officer or director, under the circumstances and to the extent provided for therein, for expenses, damages, judgments, fines, and settlements he or she may be required to pay in actions or proceedings in which he or she is or may be made a party by reason of his or her position as a director, officer or other agent of Sprint or its subsidiaries.

Transactions with SoftBank Parties Outside the Ordinary Course of Business

Transactions with SoftBank Parties outside the ordinary course of business are reviewed by the Audit Committee and, in accordance with our bylaws until July 10, 2015, must then also be approved by our board, including a majority of our independent directors. All such transactions that have been approved by our board are described below.

Sprint developed, owns, and operates a content delivery and device configuration platform known as Mobile ID. Sprint and a SoftBank subsidiary entered into a wholesale agreement providing for Sprint to enable the Mobile ID platform for use by SoftBank and license those capabilities to SoftBank. Sprint received approximately \$2.1 million in fees from SoftBank during fiscal year 2014 pursuant to this agreement.

Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Sprint and a SoftBank Party revised their International Roaming Agreement on May 21, 2013, which was originally entered into prior to SoftBank becoming a beneficial owner. The amendment provided lower rates to Sprint for Sprint subscribers roaming on SoftBank s

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement |

Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions

network. Effective January 1, 2014, Sprint and a SoftBank subsidiary entered into a second amendment to the International Roaming Agreement. This amendment allows Sprint the ability to roam free of charge on SoftBank s network. The board has also authorized the parties to enter into other amendments to the International Roaming Agreement, under which Sprint would not charge SoftBank for SoftBank subscribers roaming on Sprint s CDMA network. The total value of this agreement for Sprint is approximately \$9.4 million.

Effective February 28, 2014, Sprint entered into an assignment agreement with a SoftBank Party and an unrelated third-party software vendor. The agreement resulted in: (1) a one-time payment by a SoftBank Party to a Sprint subsidiary of approximately \$0.9 million in 2014, and (2) SoftBank s agreement to pay the corresponding ongoing annual support services fees for the transferred licenses, which are approximately \$0.3 million per year, thereby relieving Sprint of such corresponding ongoing support services fees into perpetuity due to the perpetual terms of the licenses.

Effective March 18, 2014, a SoftBank Party and a Sprint subsidiary entered into a sublease providing the Sprint party the right to occupy and use a floor of SoftBank s leased offices at Two Circle Star Way in San Carlos, California for an executive briefing center and general office use. The sublease provided that Sprint would pay approximately \$8 million for rent, and SoftBank would provide an improvement allowance to Sprint of up to \$5 million. From March 18, 2014 until March 31, 2015, when the sublease was terminated, Sprint paid approximately \$1.1 million in rent.

Effective June 16, 2014, Sprint and a SoftBank Party entered into an agreement whereby Sprint would provide information technology and other services to SoftBank at its facilities in San Carlos, California. The total value of this agreement is approximately \$0.2 million per year.

Effective May 14, 2014, Sprint and a SoftBank Party entered into a Joint Provisioning Capacity Agreement to identify and implement capacity in their respective networks to support current and near term transport requirements in the Asia/Pacific region and the United States. The total transaction value of this agreement is approximately \$8.5 million during its first five years, with SoftBank contributing approximately \$5.3 million and Sprint contributing approximately \$3.2 million.

Effective February 10, 2015, Sprint and a SoftBank Party entered into an agreement whereby Sprint would perform certain tests related to wireless network performance for the SoftBank Party. The SoftBank Party would then reimburse Sprint for its costs associated with such testing. The total transaction value of this agreement is approximately \$2.5 million.

Effective December 1, 2014, Sprint and a SoftBank Party entered into a Master Services Agreement whereby a SoftBank Party will provide various services and data related to network connection status. The total transaction value

of this agreement is approximately \$2.5 million.

On November 5, 2014, our board approved a transaction whereby SoftBank or its affiliates would provide engineers to Sprint to provide assistance with various network efforts. Effective January 1, 2015, the parties entered into a Secondment Agreement and a Cost Arrangement Agreement relating to such engineers. Sprint and a SoftBank affiliate are negotiating an Agreement for Labor Cost Payment whereby the SoftBank affiliate would reimburse Sprint for the costs incurred under the Secondment Agreement and the Cost Arrangement Agreement during the period from January 1, 2015 until December 31, 2016. Reimbursement recoverable under the Agreement for Labor Cost Payment during such period is anticipated to be \$18 million. Sprint incurred expenses payable to SoftBank under the Secondment Agreement and the Cost Arrangement Agreement of approximately \$1.2 million during the period from January 1, 2015 until March 31, 2015.

56 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions

Transactions with SoftBank Parties in the Ordinary Course of Business and Certain Tri-Party Agreements

Sprint or its affiliates have also entered into various commercial arrangements with SoftBank Parties, including for international wireless roaming, wireless and wireline call termination, and potential joint procurement activities (collectively, the Commercial Agreements). These Commercial Agreements, which include interconnection agreements, sale of data telecommunication services, master services agreements, international roaming agreements, traffic termination agreements, port charge waivers, and other commercial agreements, were entered into in arms-length transactions in the ordinary course of business and are typical for Sprint s contractual arrangements with other U.S. carriers and in third-party dealings. The Commercial Agreements and related contract orders between Sprint or its affiliates and SoftBank Parties covered an aggregate of less than \$3 million in payments for services, fees and expenses among the parties during fiscal year 2014. Such transactions are generally deemed pre-approved under our related party transactions policy.

Since January 1, 2014, Sprint and SoftBank have jointly entered into various roaming agreements with unrelated third parties. Since January 1, 2014, the aggregate value of such transactions to SoftBank is approximately \$16.4 million and the aggregate value of such transactions to Sprint is approximately \$10.1 million. Sprint, SoftBank, and an unrelated third party are also expected to enter into a separate proposed transaction with a transaction value worth approximately \$8.4 million. These transactions are deemed pre-approved under Sprint s related party transaction policy.

Transactions with Brightstar

Sprint or its affiliates entered into various commercial agreements with Brightstar prior to Brightstar becoming a controlled affiliate of SoftBank in January 2014. These agreements were entered into in arms-length transactions in the ordinary course of business and are typical for Sprint s contractual arrangements with unrelated third-parties. These transactions were valued at approximately \$56.4 million during fiscal year 2014.

Effective May 7, 2014, Sprint consented to an assignment of a Master Services Agreement (MSA) and Statement of Work from an existing third party vendor to Brightstar. Pursuant to the MSA, Brightstar provides device buyback, trade-in technology, and related services to Sprint. The MSA had a total transaction value of approximately \$83 million for fiscal year 2014, which encompasses both fees and payments to Brightstar from Sprint and to Sprint from Brightstar.

Effective July 9, 2014, Sprint and Brightstar entered into a Master Services and Product Agreement and thereafter entered into Statements of Work whereby Brightstar on behalf of Sprint (1) provides various services and equipment related to accessories management, and (2) provides services related to mobile virtual network operator distribution services. Sprint incurs no costs pursuant to both SOW 1 and SOW 2 as the costs are incurred directly by our dealers or

MVNOs. Sprint earned a net revenue share of approximately \$0.2 million during fiscal year 2014 pursuant to SOW 1.

Effective July 23, 2014, Sprint and eSecuritel, a subsidiary of Brightstar, entered into a Master Services Agreement whereby eSecuritel will provide insurance and extended warranty phone replacement services for Sprint s Prepaid subscribers including the Boost and Virgin brands (eSecuritel Prepaid Agreement). Sprint is responsible for billing and collecting the monthly premium, while eSecuritel assumes the financial risk of the program. Premiums collected monthly are

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 5

Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions

transferred to eSecuritel minus Sprint s billing and commission fee equal to 32% of the monthly premium amount per subscriber. Sprint incurred costs of less than \$0.2 million in fiscal year 2014 pursuant to this agreement. The total eSecuritel value of this agreement is estimated at \$108 million.

We have determined that the two transactions described below regarding eSecuritel stablet insurance and the Brightstar Consulting Services Agreement constituted related party transactions and that our procedures were not followed so as to properly identify the transactions as related party transactions and submit them in advance to the Audit Committee and the board for their examination and approval. When those two transactions were identified by certain members of management to be related party transactions, they were promptly reported to the Audit Committee and the board.

As noted above, the parties had entered into the eSecuritel Prepaid Agreement, which was approved by the Audit Committee. In accordance with a new statement of work under the eSecuritel Prepaid Agreement, the parties also entered into a transaction, which was not pre-approved by the Audit Committee or our board in accordance with written policy, by which Sprint uses eSecuritel to provide related insurance services for Sprint s tablet device protection program. Sprint is expected to receive approximately \$89 million in billing commissions over the life of the transaction.

Sprint and Brightstar entered into a Consulting Services Agreement whereby Brightstar provided the services of certain of its employees to Sprint on a full time basis for the 2015 calendar year, which was not pre-approved by the Audit Committee or our board in accordance with written policy due to a misunderstanding of the consultants employment status at Sprint. Sprint is expected to pay approximately \$2.6 million in fees to Brightstar for such services during the 2015 calendar year.

In July 2014, Sprint and Brightstar entered into a term sheet whereby Brightstar will provide fourth-party logistics services to Sprint and charge Sprint a per-device fee. Primarily, these services include end-to-end supply chain services. In addition, Brightstar is to purchase handsets from manufacturers, which it is then to sell directly to Sprint s retailers and dealers. During fiscal year 2014, Sprint incurred approximately \$66.4 million in fees payable to Brightstar and reimbursed Brightstar for approximately \$46.2 million in pass through costs. To facilitate this arrangement with Brightstar, Sprint has extended a \$1 billion credit line to Brightstar to assist with the purchasing and distribution by Brightstar of devices and under the credit line. No interest is payable under the credit line and no interest was paid during fiscal year 2014. The maximum amount that has been outstanding on the \$1 billion credit line is \$890 million on December 15, 2014 and the amount outstanding as of March 31, 2015 was \$406 million. In addition, Sprint has guaranteed, on behalf of Brightstar, approximately \$25 million in increases to credit lines and payment plans between Brightstar and various dealers and national retailers as requested by Sprint. Brightstar is to provide financing to dealers and customers consistent with Sprint past practices; additional credit may be extended based on Sprint s financial assurance as to repayment, subject to a \$25 million limit. Sprint and Brightstar are currently

negotiating a Settlement Agreement worth approximately \$10.2 million and which confirms negotiated terms relating to cost savings, additional costs, value creation in terms of sales increases, and payments for special projects for the period ending December 31, 2014.

On January 20, 2015, we entered into a series of ordinary course transactions between Sprint and Brightstar whereby Sprint would repurchase excess handsets previously sold to Brightstar pursuant to the 4PL arrangement described above in order to fulfill Sprint s inventory needs. We incurred expenses payable to Brightstar of approximately \$7.3 million pursuant to this arrangement during fiscal year 2014.

58 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions

We have entered into various ordinary course transactions between Sprint and Brightstar whereby Sprint agreed to sell device cases, speakers and other accessories, and excess handsets to Brightstar. The total value of these transactions is approximately \$23 million since April 1, 2014.

Effective November 21, 2014, Sprint and Brightstar entered into a Sublease Agreement whereby Brightstar leases approximately 7,500 square feet from Sprint at Sprint s campus in Overland Park, Kansas. Sprint is expected to receive \$0.8 million in base rent during the five-year and three month term. Brightstar will also pay for: (i) certain utility services on a pass-through basis; (ii) its proportionate share of Sprint s increased operating costs (which do not include the utility pass-throughs) over the base calendar year 2015; and (iii) its proportionate share of Sprint s increased property taxes, over the base calendar year 2015.

Transactions with SoftBank Product Group (a Subsidiary of Brightstar)

Effective September 1, 2013, Sprint entered into an agreement with the SoftBank Product Group (SBPG) (f/k/a Buying and Innovation Group). The agreement provides for reimbursement to Sprint by SBPG for compensation, benefits, travel, and related expenses for Sprint employees providing services to SBPG, with a transaction value of approximately \$0.2 million for fiscal year 2014.

Effective March 1, 2014, Sprint, SoftBank, and other related parties entered into agreements with SBPG. Under these agreements, SBPG may procure mobile devices and accessories on behalf of such parties. In connection with the transactions, Sprint paid SBPG an initial annual service fee of approximately \$7.5 million for device services. For accessory services, Sprint has compensated SBPG by paying a percentage markup above SBPG s cost of acquiring accessories. The markup varies based on the accessory type, and may be increased or decreased so that the total amount paid to SBPG for accessory services is equal to one half of the estimated net savings attributable to SBPG s efforts. The total accessory fees paid to SBPG are further limited to not more than certain costs related to the operation of SBPG s accessories business unit, plus an agreed upon percentage of overhead. Other than these service fees, the estimated value of the transactions to SBPG is nominal as the agreements are primarily structured to enable SBPG to deliver savings and benefits to the Company and other participants in the arrangement (including SoftBank and Brightstar). Prior to entering into these agreements, these services were generally provided to Sprint without charge for setup and testing purposes. We incurred expenses payable to SBPG of approximately \$5 billion under the device services agreement and \$233 million under the accessories agreement during fiscal year 2014.

Forward-Looking Statements

We include certain estimates, projections and other forward-looking statements in the transactions described above. Statements regarding expectations, including expected expenditures, revenues, and other amounts, as well as other statements that are not historical facts, are forward-looking statements. These statements reflect management s

judgments based on currently available information and involve a number of assumptions that could cause actual amounts to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements. With respect to these forward-looking statements, management has made assumptions regarding, among other things, subscriber and network usage, subscriber growth and retention, pricing, operating costs, the timing of various events, and the economic and regulatory environment. Readers are cautioned that other factors, although not listed above, could also materially affect our future performance. The reader should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this proxy statement. We are not obligated to publicly release any revisions to forward-looking statements to reflect events

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

59

Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions

after the date of this proxy statement, including unforeseen events. For additional factors that could cause the results of the Company to differ materially from those indicated above, please refer to Item 1A. Risk Factors in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2015.

60 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Security Ownership

Security Ownership

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

The following table provides information about the only known beneficial owner of five percent or more of our common stock. For purposes of the table below, beneficial ownership is determined based on Rule 13d-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which states that a beneficial owner is any person who directly or indirectly has or shares voting and/or investment or dispositive power.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership	Percent of Class ⁽¹⁾
SoftBank Corp. 1-9-1 Higashi-Shimbashi, Minato-ku, Tokyo, 105-7303 Japan	3,205,665,088(2)	80.8%

- (1) The ownership percentages set forth in this column are based on Sprint s outstanding shares on June 9, 2015 plus shares of Sprint common stock issuable upon exercise of a warrant to SoftBank, dated July 10, 2013, and assumes that SoftBank continued to own the number of shares reflected in the table above on June 9, 2015.
- (2) According to Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on September 18, 2013, by SoftBank Corp. According to the Schedule 13D, SoftBank is the beneficial owner of, and has sole voting power and sole dispositive power with respect to, all of the shares.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Security Ownership

Security Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers

The following table states the number of shares of our common stock beneficially owned as of June 9, 2015 by each director, named executive officer, and all directors and executive officers as a group. Except as otherwise indicated, each individual named has sole investment and voting power with respect to the shares owned.

Name of Beneficial Owner	Shares Owned	Shares Covered by Exercisable Options and RSUs to be Delivered	Percentage of Common Stock
Nikesh Arora		21,596	*
Robert Bennett	56,553	25,424	*
Gordon Bethune	134,864		*
Marcelo Claure ⁽²⁾	5,093,480		*
Joseph Euteneuer	508,478	1,176,847	*
Ronald Fisher	156,482		*
Julius Genachowski			*
Daniel Hesse	2,671,510		*
Frank Ianna	48,649	25,424	*
Robert Johnson	122,428	162,799	*
Adm. Michael Mullen	41,206		*
Michael Schwartz		39,361	*
Masayoshi Son			*
Sara Martinez Tucker	42,638		*
Charles Wunsch	605	169,663	*
Directors and Executive Officers as a group (22 persons)	8,955,987	1,853,172	*

*Indicates ownership of less than 1%.

- (1) Represents shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of stock options exercisable, and shares of stock that underlie restricted stock units to be delivered, on or within 60 days after June 9, 2015 under our equity-based incentive plans.
- (2) According to a Form 4 filed on February 27, 2015, in an open market purchase, Mr. Claure acquired 5,080,000 shares of Sprint stock, all of which are currently pledged as security for a line of credit with an unrelated third party bank.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our directors and executive officers, and persons who own more than 10% of a registered class of our equity securities, to file with the SEC and the NYSE initial reports of beneficial ownership and reports of changes in beneficial ownership of our shares and other equity securities. These people are required by the SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) reports they file, and we make these reports available at www.sprint.com/investors/sec.

62 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Security Ownership

To our knowledge, based solely on a review of the copies of these reports furnished to us and written representations that no other reports were required, during fiscal year 2014, all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to our directors, executive officers and beneficial owners of more than 10% of our equity securities were met, except that Jeff Hallock, formerly our Chief Marketing Officer, missed the filing deadline to report a transfer of shares within his 401(k) account due to an administrative error.

otice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 63

U.S

Proposal 2 Ratification of the Selection of the

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Proposal 2. Ratification of the Selection of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

(Item 2 on Proxy Card)

Our Audit Committee has voted to appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm to audit the consolidated financial statements and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting for our Company and our subsidiaries for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2016. Our stockholders are asked to ratify that appointment at the annual meeting. In keeping with good corporate governance, the Audit Committee will periodically assess the suitability of our incumbent independent registered public accounting firm taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances, including the possible consideration of the qualifications of other accounting firms.

Deloitte has served as the independent registered accounting firm of Sprint Corporation (formerly known as Starburst II, Inc.) since its formation in 2012. Prior to the completion of the SoftBank Merger on July 10, 2013, KPMG LLP served as the independent registered accounting firm of Sprint Nextel Corporation.

Representatives of Deloitte are expected to be present at the annual meeting and will have the opportunity to make a statement and to respond to appropriate questions. If the appointment of Deloitte is not ratified at the meeting, the Audit Committee will consider the selection of another accounting firm.

The Audit Committee has adopted policies and procedures concerning our independent registered public accounting firm, including the pre-approval of services to be provided. Our Audit Committee pre-approved all of the services described above. The Audit Committee is responsible for the pre-approval of all audit, audit-related, tax and non-audit services; however, pre-approval authority may be delegated to one or more members of the Audit Committee. The details of any services approved under this delegation must be reported to the full Audit Committee at its next regular meeting. Our independent registered public accounting firm is generally prohibited from providing certain non-audit services under our policy, which is more restrictive than the SEC rules related to non-audit services. Any permissible non-audit service engagement must be specifically approved in advance by the Audit Committee. We provide quarterly reporting to the Audit Committee regarding all audit, audit-related, tax and non-audit services provided by our independent registered public accounting firm.

Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR Proposal 2.

64 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The Audit Committee has appointed Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal year 2014. As described above, stockholders are being asked to ratify the appointment of Deloitte at the annual meeting pursuant to **Proposal No. 2**. Representatives of Deloitte are expected to be present at the annual meeting, will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so, and are expected to be available to respond to appropriate questions.

The following table provides the fees billed for professional services rendered by Deloitte for fiscal year 2014, the three month transition period ended March 31, 2014, and for the calendar year ended December 31, 2013. The Audit Committee determined that the non-audit services rendered by Deloitte in fiscal year 2014 were compatible with maintaining its independence as our auditors.

The most significant engagement giving rise to the non-audit related services is in connection with a Federal Communications Commission (FCC) order (the FCC Order) for which a Deloitte affiliate serves as a subcontractor of the FCC. This FCC Order provides for an independent Transition Administrator (TA) to oversee the band reconfiguration process on behalf of the FCC. In 2009, Deloitte Consulting LLP, one of Deloitte s affiliates (Deloitte Consulting), entered into a subcontractor agreement with the TA to provide certain services to the TA on behalf of the FCC and not Sprint. Sprint is obligated to fund implementation of the FCC Order and, therefore, pays the fees of the TA and Deloitte Consulting. Accordingly, the Audit Committee did not engage the Deloitte affiliate or otherwise approve those services. The interaction between Deloitte Consulting and Sprint under the subcontractor agreement is limited to routine interactions of exchanging factual information relevant to Deloitte Consulting s or Sprint s obligations under the FCC Order. Deloitte Consulting has no obligation to provide services to or for Sprint. In addition, the FCC is the only entity that can compel any obligation. Sprint does not supervise, direct, manage, or otherwise have any responsibility or accountability for Deloitte Consulting s products or services under the subcontractor agreement with the TA, other than to pay the costs associated with the FCC Order. Given the nature of this relationship with Deloitte and Deloitte Consulting, the Audit Committee concluded that payments made pursuant to the FCC Order do not affect the independence of Deloitte with respect to its audits.



Edgar Filing: SPRINT Corp - Form DEF 14A

Audit Fees ⁽¹⁾	\$12.6 million	\$5.0 million	\$9.1 million
	40 - 111	40.0 1111	64.4 1111
Audit-Related Fees ⁽²⁾	\$0.7 million	\$0.0 million	\$1.1 million
Tax Fees	\$0.2 million	\$0.0 million	\$0.1 million
Tax rees	φυ.2 mmon	φυ.υ mmnon	φυ.1 IIIIIIIIIII
All Other Fees	\$22.2 million ⁽³⁾	\$5.6 million ⁽⁴⁾	\$13.6 million ⁽⁵⁾

- (1) For professional services rendered for the audit of our consolidated financial statements, the audit of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, the review of the consolidated financial statements, and the audits of certain subsidiaries for statutory reporting purposes.
- (2) For professional audit-related services rendered to us, generally related to other attestation services including registration statements and other offering-related services.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

125

Principal Accounting Fees and Services

- (3) Included approximately \$7.7 million for management advisory services and \$14.5 million for amounts paid by Sprint directly related to Deloitte for work performed on behalf of the FCC pursuant to the FCC Order during fiscal year 2014. When excluding the \$14.5 million of fees required to be paid to Deloitte Consulting pursuant to the arrangement described above, the non-audit fees are approximately 36 percent of the total fees received by Deloitte in fiscal year 2014.
- (4) Included approximately \$1.3 million for management advisory services and \$4.3 million for amounts paid by Sprint directly related to Deloitte for work performed on behalf of the FCC pursuant to the FCC Order during the period from January 1, 2014 through March 31, 2014. When excluding the \$4.3 million of fees required to be paid to Deloitte Consulting pursuant to the arrangement described above, the non-audit fees are approximately 21 percent of the total fees received by Deloitte during the period from January 1, 2014 through March 31, 2014.
- (5) Included approximately \$3.3 million for management advisory services and \$10.3 million for amounts paid by Sprint directly related to Deloitte for work performed on behalf of the FCC pursuant to the FCC Order during the period from January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013. When excluding the \$10.3 million of fees required to be paid to Deloitte Consulting pursuant to the arrangement described above, the non-audit fees are approximately 24 percent of the total fees received by Deloitte during the period from January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013.

66 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Proposal 3 Advisory Approval of the

Company s Named Executive Officer Compensation

Proposal 3. Advisory Approval of the Company s Named Executive Officer Compensation

(Item 3 on Proxy Card)

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, or the Dodd-Frank Act, and Section 14A of the Exchange Act require that we permit our stockholders to vote to approve, on an advisory (non-binding) basis, the compensation of our named executive officers as disclosed in Executive Compensation Compensation Discussion and Analysis and the accompanying Executive Compensation Tables and related narrative disclosures beginning on page 24. At our 2011 Annual Meeting, Sprint Nextel stockholders approved, on an advisory basis, that an advisory vote on named executive officer compensation should be held annually. Based on such result, our board determined that the advisory vote on named executive officer compensation will be held every year until the next advisory vote on the frequency of future advisory votes on named executive officer compensation, which will be no later than the Company s 2017 annual meeting of stockholders. The next stockholder advisory vote on named executive officer compensation will be held in connection with the 2016 annual meeting of stockholders.

Our executive compensation programs are designed to attract, motivate, and retain our named executive officers, who can contribute to our success. We believe our incentive compensation must strike a balance between rewarding achievement of our short-term objectives and rewarding long-term stockholder return and must be highly sensitive to the degree to which those results are realized. Please read Executive Compensation Compensation Discussion and Analysis for additional details about our executive compensation programs.

We are asking our stockholders to indicate their support for our named executive officer compensation as described in this proxy statement. This proposal, commonly known as a say-on-pay proposal, gives our stockholders the opportunity to express their views on our named executive officers compensation. This vote is not intended to address any specific item of compensation, but rather the overall compensation of our named executive officers and the philosophy, policies and practices described in this proxy statement.

Our board recommends a vote <u>FOR</u> the approval of the compensation of our named executive officers, including as described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the compensation tables and narrative discussion following such compensation tables, and the other related disclosures in this proxy statement.

The say-on-pay vote is advisory, and therefore not binding on Sprint, the Compensation Committee, or our board of directors. Our board of directors and our Compensation Committee value the opinions of our stockholders and expect to take into account the outcome of the vote when considering future named executive officer compensation decisions to the extent they can determine the cause or causes of any significant negative voting results.

Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR Proposal 3.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

Proposal 4. Approval of the 2015 Omnibus Incentive Plan

(Item 4 on Proxy Card)

On May 21, 2015, our board unanimously approved the 2015 Omnibus Incentive Plan, or the 2015 Plan, subject to your approval at the annual meeting. The 2015 Plan will replace the 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan, or the 2007 Plan, which originally was approved by our stockholders on May 8, 2007.

The 2015 Plan will allow us to continue to offer our employees performance-based compensation and equity awards, which the board believes is necessary for us to retain, motivate and attract experienced and highly qualified employees who will contribute to our financial success. We would be at a distinct competitive disadvantage if we could not use equity-based awards to recruit, motivate, and retain our officers and other employees. The use of our common stock as part of our compensation program fosters a pay-for-performance culture that is an important element of our overall compensation philosophy. We believe that equity compensation motivates employees to appropriately focus on actions that enhance stockholder value because they will share in that value enhancement through improved share price performance. Our equity compensation also effectively retains our officers and other employees and promotes a focus on sustained enhancement through improved share price performance. Some of the key features of the 2015 Plan that reflect our commitment to effective management of equity and incentive compensation are set forth below.

The 2015 Plan provides for the grant of stock options, stock appreciation rights, or SARs, restricted stock, RSUs, performance shares, performance units, and other equity-based and cash awards (collectively referred to as awards) to our employees, outside directors and certain other service providers.

Your approval of the 2015 Plan not only will allow us to grant these awards, it will also permit us to structure incentive compensation to potentially preserve certain tax deductions under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (IRC). We refer to these awards as qualified performance-based awards. Section 162(m) denies a corporation s tax deduction for compensation it pays to certain executive officers in excess of \$1 million per year for each such officer. Section 162(m) provides an exception to this limitation for qualified performance-based compensation, the material terms of which must be approved by a corporation s stockholders. To that end, in connection with approval of the 2015 Plan, you are also being asked to approve the management objectives upon which qualified performance-based awards may be based, the annual maximum limits per individual, and eligible employees, as further described below.

You are also being asked to approve the following non-employee director limits as follows: the aggregate grant date fair value (computed as of the date of grant in accordance with applicable financial accounting rules) of all awards

granted to any non-employee director during any single fiscal year (excluding awards made at the election of the director in lieu of all or a portion of annual and committee cash retainers pursuant to the 2015 Plan) will not exceed \$500,000 (\$1,000,000 for the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the board).

Historical Annual Share Usage

While the use of equity is an important part of our compensation program, we are mindful of our responsibility to our stockholders to exercise judgment in the granting of equity awards.

68 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

Share Usage. The annual share usage under the Company s equity compensation program for the last three fiscal years is described in the table below:

	All S	All Share Counts in Millions		
	Fiscal Year 2014	Fiscal Year 2014		
	and Transition Period	Fiscal Year 2013	Fiscal Year 2012	
Weighted-Average Common Shares Outstanding	3,953	3,475	3,953	
Options:				
Granted	23	2	13	
Forfeited	14	4	9	
Exercised	17	21	7	
Outstanding at period end	40	48	71	
Full Value Awards:				
Granted	9	18	11	
Forfeited	5	3	1	
Vested	18	3	5	
Outstanding at period end	19	33	21	

As of May 31, 2015, there were 48 million unexercised stock options outstanding with a weighted average exercise price of \$4.87 and a weighted average remaining term of 8.0 years. In addition, as of this date, there were 27 million unvested full value share awards outstanding. As of May 31, 2015, 66,220,642 shares remained available for issuance under the plan, and the company had a total of 3,967,381,501 shares outstanding.

The principal features of the 2015 Plan are summarized below. The full text of the 2015 Plan is attached as Annex A to this proxy statement, and the following summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the 2015 Plan itself.

Shares Available Under the 2015 Plan

No new grants may be made under the 2007 Plan after the date that the 2015 Plan becomes effective. Subject to adjustment as described below, the maximum number of shares which may be issued or delivered under the 2015 Plan is the number of shares that remain available for grant under the 2007 Plan as of the effective date of the 2015 Plan.

When the 2007 Plan was adopted, the shares available under the 2007 Plan included any remaining shares available under the Company s 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Program, or the 1997 Plan. Similarly, as is proposed for the 2015 Plan, no new grants could be made under the 1997 Plan after the 2007 Plan was adopted. We refer to the 2007 Plan and the 1997 Plan as predecessor plans.

If any stock option, SAR, restricted stock, RSU or other award (other than an award that can be paid only in cash) granted under the 2015 Plan, or outstanding under the predecessor plans as of the effective date of the 2015 Plan, expires, is forfeited or otherwise terminates without being fully exercised, or is settled in cash, the shares subject to such award will again be available for grant under the 2015 Plan, and will be credited to the number of shares available for grants under the 2015 Plan on a 1-to-1 ratio. For example, if 100 RSUs are forfeited, 100 shares will become available under the 2015 Plan.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 69

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

The 2015 Plan does not permit liberal share recycling. Shares tendered or withheld for the payment of the exercise price or purchase price of an award, or for taxes upon exercise, vesting or earning of an award, will not again be available for issuance under the 2015 Plan. In addition, when a SAR is exercised and settled in shares, all of the shares underlying the SAR will be counted against the 2015 Plan limit regardless of the number of shares used to settle the SAR.

Subject to adjustment as described in the 2015 Plan, the aggregate number of shares of common stock actually issued or transferred by us upon the exercise of incentive stock options, or ISOs, intended to qualify under Section 422 of the IRC, will not exceed 50,000,000. Other individual participant limits apply under the 2015 Plan, which limits are described below under Tax Consequences to Us.

The 2007 Plan provided that full-value awards, meaning all awards other than stock options and SARs, would be counted against the 2007 Plan maximum in a 2.5-to-1 ratio. For example, if we granted 100 RSUs under the 2007 Plan, we would reduce the 2007 Plan maximum by 250 shares. Stock options and SARs were counted against the 2007 Plan maximum in a 1-to-1 ratio.

If the 2015 Plan is approved by the stockholders, the 2.5-to-1 ratio described above will be removed and all awards, including full-value awards, will be counted against the 2015 Plan maximum in a 1-to-1 ratio.

Other 2015 Plan Highlights

Administration. The 2015 Plan will be administered by the Compensation Committee.

Clawbacks. The 2015 Plan includes a clawback mechanism applicable to our officers by which an award to an officer may be rescinded if such officer engages in certain types of misconduct, fraud, or other detrimental activity as specified in the 2015 Plan, The Compensation Committee shall retain discretion concerning the content of our clawback policy and the use and invocation thereof.

No Repricing Without Shareholder Approval. Subject to adjustment as described under Adjustment below, the 2015 Plan does not permit, without the approval of our stockholders, what is commonly known as the repricing of stock options or SARs, including:

An amendment to reduce the exercise price of any outstanding stock option or base price of any outstanding SAR;

The cancellation of an outstanding stock option or SAR and replacement with a stock option having a lower exercise price or with a SAR having a lower base price; and

The cancellation of an underwater outstanding stock option or SAR and replacement with another award under the 2015 Plan or cash.

70 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

Further, no stock option or SAR will provide for the payment, at the time of exercise, of a cash bonus or grant of stock options, SARs, performance shares, performance units, or grant or sale of restricted stock, RSUs or other awards under the 2015 Plan, without further approval of our stockholders.

Change in Control. The 2015 Plan includes a definition of change in control, which is set forth below.

Recoupment of Awards. Any evidence of award may provide that if the board or the Compensation Committee determines a participant has engaged in any detrimental activity (as defined in the 2015 Plan), either during service with us or a subsidiary or within a specified period after termination of such service, then, promptly upon receiving notice of the board s finding, the participant will:

forfeit that award to the extent then held by the participant;

in exchange for payment by us or the subsidiary of any amount actually paid for such award by the participant, return to us or the subsidiary, all shares of common stock that the participant has not disposed of that had been acquired pursuant to that award;

with respect to any shares of common stock acquired pursuant to that award that were disposed of, pay to us or the subsidiary, in cash, the difference between:

- any amount actually paid by the participant, and
- the market value per share of our common stock on the date acquired; and pay to us or the subsidiary in cash the spread of the market value of our common stock over the applicable exercise price, with respect to any stock options or SARs exercised, where no shares of common stock were retained by the participant upon such exercise.

To the extent that such amounts are not paid to us or the subsidiary, we may seek other remedies, including a set off of the amounts so payable to us against any amounts that may be owing from time to time by us or a subsidiary to the participant for any reason, including, without limitation, wages, deferred compensation, or vacation pay. To the extent that any set off under these provisions of the 2015 Plan causes the participant to become subject to taxes under Section 409A of the IRC, the responsibility for payment of such taxes lies solely with the participant.

Other Features.

The 2015 Plan also provides that no stock options or SARs will be granted with an exercise or base price less than the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant; and The 2015 Plan is designed to allow awards made under the 2015 Plan to potentially qualify as qualified performance-based compensation—under Section 162(m) of the IRC. Substitute awards may be granted under the 2015 Plan for grants or awards held by employees of a company or entity who become employees of us or a subsidiary as a result of the acquisition, merger or consolidation of the employer company by or with us or a subsidiary. Except as otherwise provided by applicable law and notwithstanding anything in the 2015 Plan to the contrary, the terms, provisions and benefits of such substitute awards may vary from those set forth in or required or authorized by the 2015 Plan to such extent as the Compensation Committee at the time of the grant deems appropriate to conform, in whole or part, to the terms, provisions and benefits of grants

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement |

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

or awards in substitution for which they are granted. Such substitute awards will not reduce the shares of common stock available for awards under the 2015 Plan or count towards the individual participant award limits under the 2015 Plan.

Administration and Term of the 2015 Plan

The 2015 Plan will be administered by the Compensation Committee. Our board or the Compensation Committee may delegate all or any part of its authority under the 2015 Plan to any other committee of the board or a subcommittee consisting of at least two members of the board, each of whom is a non-employee director within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act), an outside director within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the IRC and an independent director within the meaning of the NYSE rules. Any interpretation, construction and determination by the Compensation Committee of any provision of the 2015 Plan, or of any agreement, notification or document evidencing the grant of awards under the 2015 Plan, will be final and conclusive. To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, the board or the Compensation Committee may delegate to one or more of its members or to one or more officers, or to one or more agents or advisors, such administrative duties or powers as it deems advisable, and the board, the Compensation Committee, or any person to whom duties or powers have been delegated may employ one or more persons to render advice with respect to any responsibility the board, the Compensation Committee or such person may have under the 2015 Plan. In addition, the Compensation Committee may by resolution, subject to certain restrictions set forth in the 2015 Plan, authorize one or more of our officers to (1) designate participants to be recipients of awards under the 2015 Plan, and (2) determine the size of such awards. However, the Compensation Committee may not delegate such responsibilities to officers for awards granted to certain individuals who are subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16 of the Exchange Act or subject to Section 162(m) of the IRC.

Our full board will make participation and compensation determinations as to outside directors. The Compensation Committee will have the authority to, among other things, interpret the 2015 Plan, to establish and revise rules and regulations relating to the 2015 Plan, and to make any other determinations that it believes necessary or advisable for the administration of the 2015 Plan.

No new awards may be granted under the 2015 Plan after ten years following the effective date of the 2015 Plan, but all grants made on or prior to such date will continue in effect thereafter subject to the terms of such awards and the 2015 Plan. The 2015 Plan may be terminated earlier by our board.

Eligibility

From time to time, the Compensation Committee, or as to outside directors the full board, will determine who will be granted awards, the number of shares or performance units subject to such grants, and the terms of awards. Under the 2015 Plan, awards may be granted to our and our subsidiaries employees, our outside directors, and other individuals providing services to us or our subsidiaries (provided that such persons satisfy the Form S-8 definition of employee), including but not limited to consultants, advisors, and independent contractors. As of May 31, 2015, approximately 34,192 people would have been eligible to receive awards under the 2015 Plan, which includes active employees and those on both paid and unpaid leave.

Stock Options

A stock option is a right to purchase shares of common stock upon the exercise of the stock option. Stock options granted under the 2015 Plan may consist of either an incentive stock option

72 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

(ISO), a non-qualified stock option that does not comply with the requirements for ISOs, or a combination of both. However, ISOs may only be granted to employees of us or certain subsidiaries. Each grant of stock options will be evidenced by an evidence of award which specifies the applicable terms and conditions of such award. The Compensation Committee determines the terms of each stock option grant at the time of the grant. The exercise price of any stock option granted may not be less than the market value of our common stock (*i.e.*, the closing price on the NYSE) on the date the option is granted. However, in the case of ISOs granted to certain 10% stockholders, the exercise price may not be less than 110% of the market value of our common stock on the date of grant. The exercise price is payable in cash or by check or wire transfer of immediately available funds, by delivery of shares of our common stock (or other consideration authorized under the 2015 Plan) having a value at the time of exercise equal to the exercise price, by a combination of such methods, or by other methods approved by the Compensation Committee. No stock option will authorize the payment of dividend equivalents or be exercisable for a period of more than ten years from the date of grant.

Each grant of stock options will specify the period or periods of continuous service by the optionee that is necessary before the stock options become exercisable. Any grant of stock options may specify management objectives that must be achieved as a condition to the exercise of the stock options. To the extent permitted by law, any grant may provide for deferred payment of the exercise price from the proceeds of a sale through a bank or broker of some or all of the shares to which the exercise relates. In addition, any grant of stock options may provide for the earlier exercise of such stock options or other modifications in the event of termination without cause (as defined in the 2015 Plan), resignation for good reason (as defined in the 2015 Plan), normal retirement (as defined in the 2015 Plan), termination due to death or disability (as defined in the 2015 Plan), a change in control (as defined in the 2015 Plan), or the grant of certain substitute awards.

Except as provided in an evidence of award, in the event of an optionee s termination of employment or service, any stock options that have not vested as of the optionee s date of termination will be cancelled and immediately forfeited, without further action on the part of us or the Compensation Committee, and the optionee will have no further rights with respect to such stock options.

Stock Appreciation Rights

SARs may be granted as tandem SARs or freestanding SARs. A tandem SAR is a SAR that is granted in tandem with a stock option or similar right. A freestanding SAR is a SAR that is not granted in tandem with a stock option or similar right. A SAR is a right, exercisable by the surrender of a related stock option (if a tandem SAR) or by itself (if a freestanding SAR), to receive from us an amount equal to 100%, or such lesser percentage as the Compensation Committee may determine, of the spread between the base price (or option exercise price if a tandem SAR) and the

value of our common stock on the date of exercise.

The Compensation Committee determines the terms of each SAR at the time of the grant. Each grant of a SAR will be evidenced by Evidence of Award, which specifies the applicable terms and conditions of such award. Any grant of SARs may specify waiting periods before exercise and permissible exercise dates or periods. Any grant of SARs may specify management objectives that must be achieved as a condition of the exercise of such SARs. A SAR may be paid in cash, shares of our common stock, or any combination thereof. Any grant of SARs may provide for the earlier exercise of such SARs or other modifications in the event of termination without cause, resignation for good reason, normal retirement, termination due to death or disability of the participant, a change in control,

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 73

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

or the grant of certain substitute awards. Except as provided in an evidence of award, in the event of a participant s termination of employment or service, any of the participant s SARs that have not vested as of the participant s date of termination will be cancelled and immediately forfeited, without further action on the part of us or the Compensation Committee, and the participant will have no further rights in respect of such SARs. Except with respect to awards issued in substitution for, in conversion of, or in connection with an assumption of appreciation rights held by awardees of an entity engaging in a corporate acquisition or merger with us or any of our subsidiaries, the base price of a SAR may not be less than the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the date of grant. The term of a SAR may not extend more than ten years from the date of grant.

Tandem SARs may be exercised only at a time when the related stock options are also exercisable and the spread (generally, the excess of the fair market value of a share of common stock over the exercise price) is positive, by surrender of the related stock option for cancellation. No freestanding SAR may be granted at less than the market value of our common stock on the date that the SAR is granted nor have a term of longer than ten years. Distributions to a holder of a SAR may be made in shares of our common stock, in cash or in a combination of both. No SAR will authorize the payment of dividend equivalents. Generally, no freestanding SAR may be exercised more than 10 years from the grant date.

Restricted Stock

Restricted stock awarded under the 2015 Plan will consist of an award of shares of our common stock in consideration for the performance of services, which shares are subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture for a period of time determined by the Compensation Committee or until certain management objectives specified by the Compensation Committee are achieved. Any grant of restricted stock may specify management objectives that, if achieved, will result in termination or early termination of the restrictions applicable to the restricted stock. Restricted stock may not be disposed of by the participant until certain restrictions established by the Compensation Committee lapse. Any grant of restricted stock may require that any or all dividends or distributions paid on restricted stock that remains subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture be automatically deferred and reinvested in additional shares of restricted stock, which may be subject to the same restrictions as the underlying restricted stock, or be paid in cash on a deferred or contingent basis. Each grant of restricted stock will be evidenced by an evidence of award which specifies the applicable terms and conditions of such award.

Restricted stock may be issued for such consideration as the Compensation Committee determines, including no consideration other than the rendering of services. The holder of restricted stock has all of the rights of a stockholder, including the right to vote shares and the right to receive cash dividends.

Any grant of restricted stock may provide for the earlier lapse or other modification in the event of termination without cause, resignation for good reason, normal retirement, termination due to death or disability, change in control, or the grant of certain substitute awards.

Restricted Stock Units

An RSU represents the right for the participant to receive one share of our common stock or cash from us at a particular date in the future in consideration of the performance of services, but subject to the fulfillment of such conditions (which may include the achievement of management objectives) during the restriction period as the Compensation Committee or an authorized officer may specify. Each grant or sale of RSUs may be made without additional consideration or in

74 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

consideration of a payment by the participant that is less than the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. Unlike the holder of restricted stock, the holder of an RSU will have none of the rights of a holder of any shares of our common stock underlying the RSU until the shares are delivered, but the Compensation Committee may authorize the payment of dividend equivalents on RSUs on either a current, deferred or contingent basis, either in cash or in additional shares of common stock.

Each grant of an RSU award will be evidenced by an evidence of award, which specifies the applicable terms and conditions of such award, including any vesting and forfeiture provisions. If the restriction period applicable to an RSU award lapses only by the passage of time, each such grant or sale will be subject to a restriction period (which may include pro-rata, graded or cliff vesting over such period), as determined by the Compensation Committee or an authorized officer on the date of grant. Each such grant or sale of RSUs may provide for the earlier lapse or other modification of such restriction period in the event of termination without cause, resignation for good reason, normal retirement, termination due to death or disability, a change in control, or the grant of certain substitute awards. Each grant or sale of RSUs will specify the time and manner of payment of such RSUs, and may specify that the amount payable with respect thereto may be paid by us in cash, in shares of our common stock or in any combination of the two. Each grant or sale of RSUs will provide that during the period for which such restriction period is to continue, the transferability of the RSUs will be prohibited in the manner and to the extent prescribed by the Compensation Committee at the date of grant (which restrictions may include, without limitation, rights of repurchase or first refusal in us or provisions subjecting the RSUs to a continuing substantial risk of forfeiture in the hands of any transferee).

Except as provided in an evidence of award, in the event of a participant s termination of employment or service, any of the participant s RSUs that remain subject to the restriction period on the date of termination will be cancelled and immediately forfeited without further action on the part of us or the Compensation Committee, and the participant will have no further rights in respect of such RSUs.

Performance Shares and Performance Units

A performance share is the equivalent of one share of our common stock, and a performance unit is the equivalent of \$1.00. Performance shares and performance units may be paid in cash, shares of our common stock, restricted stock, RSUs, or any combination thereof. Performance shares and performance units will be subject to terms and conditions that the Compensation Committee deems advisable or appropriate, consistent with the provisions of the 2015 Plan. The management objectives and performance levels to be achieved for each performance period and the amount of the award to be distributed will be determined by the Compensation Committee.

Each grant will specify the number or amount of performance shares or performance units, which number or amount may be subject to adjustment to reflect changes in compensation or other factors. However, no such adjustment will be made in the case of an award intended to qualify as qualified performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the IRC (other than in connection with the death or disability of the participant or a change in control of us) where it would result in the loss of the otherwise available exemption under Section 162(m) of the IRC. These awards, when granted under the 2015 Plan, become payable to participants upon of the achievement of specified management objectives. Each grant may specify with respect to the management objectives a minimum acceptable level of achievement and may set forth a formula for determining the number of performance shares or performance units that will be earned if performance is at or

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 75

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

above the minimum or threshold level, or is at or above the target level but falls short of maximum achievement. Each grant will specify the time and manner of payment of cash incentive awards, performance shares or performance units that have been earned. Any grant of performance shares may provide for the payment of dividend equivalents on either a current, deferred or contingent basis, in cash or in additional shares of common stock. Each grant of performance shares or performance units will be evidenced by an evidence of award which specifies the applicable terms and conditions of such award.

Any grant of performance shares or performance units may provide for the earlier lapse or other modification in the event of termination without cause, resignation for good reason, normal retirement, termination due to death or disability, a change in control, or the grant of certain substitute awards. Except as provided in an evidence of award, in the event of a participant s termination of employment or service, any of the participant s performance shares and performance units that remain subject to a performance period on the participant s termination date will be cancelled and immediately forfeited, without further action on the part of us or the Compensation Committee, and the participant will have no further rights in respect of such performance share or performance units.

Awards to Non-Employee Directors; Payment of Outside Directors Fees in Common Stock

The board may, upon such conditions as it determines, authorize the granting to non-employee directors of stock options, SARs or other awards contemplated under the 2015 Plan, and may also authorize the grant or sale of shares of our common stock, restricted stock or RSUs to non-employee directors. Such awards will be subject to substantially the same terms as apply under the 2015 Plan to comparable awards granted to employees and other service providers. If a non-employee director subsequently becomes an employee of us or a subsidiary while remaining a member of the board, any award held under the 2015 Plan by such individual at the time of such commencement of employment will not be affected thereby.

The 2015 Plan provides that, in lieu of cash payments, outside directors may elect to receive all or part of their annual retainer and their meeting and committee meeting fees in shares of our common stock, restricted stock, RSUs or other awards under the 2015 Plan, subject to Section 409A of the IRC. The price at which outside directors may acquire shares of stock is the market value of our common stock on the last trading day of the quarter in which the fees are earned.

In addition, outside directors may elect annually to defer receipt of such common stock. Shares deferred under this election will be transferred by us to a trust, which will hold the shares until the outside director s termination of board service, subject to certain requirements and terms as described in the 2015 Plan. The outside directors also may elect annually to receive payment out of the trust in a lump sum or installments and in shares of our common stock or cash.

During the period the shares are held in trust, the outside director will have voting rights with respect to the shares and the trustee will reinvest the dividends on the shares in additional shares of our common stock. The trust will be subject to the claims of creditors of our Company.

Other Awards

The 2015 Plan also permits grants of awards valued in whole or in part by reference to, or otherwise based on or related to, (1i) shares of our common stock or factors that may influence the value of such shares, including convertible or exchangeable debt securities, other rights convertible or exchangeable into shares of our common stock, purchase rights for shares of common stock, awards with value and payment contingent upon performance of our Company or specified

76 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

subsidiaries, affiliates or other business units or any other factors designated by the Compensation Committee, and awards valued by reference to the book value of shares of our common stock or the value of securities of, or the performance of specified subsidiaries or affiliates or other business units of, ours, (2) cash, or (3) any combination of the foregoing. The Compensation Committee or an authorized officer will determine the terms and conditions of such awards, which may include the achievement of management objectives. Shares of common stock delivered pursuant to an award in the nature of a purchase right will be purchased for such consideration, paid for at such time, by such methods, and in such forms, including cash, shares of common stock, other awards, notes or other property, as the Compensation Committee will determine.

Each grant may specify the period or periods of continuous service, if any, by the participant with us or any subsidiary that are necessary before such awards or installments thereof will become fully transferable, as determined by the Compensation Committee or an authorized officer on the date of grant.

Each grant may provide for the earlier termination of the period or periods of continuous service or other modifications in the event of termination without cause, resignation for good reason, normal retirement, termination due to death or disability of the participant, a change in control, or the grant of certain substitute awards. The Compensation Committee may also grant shares of our common stock as a bonus, or may grant other awards in lieu of obligations of us or a subsidiary to pay cash or deliver other property under the 2015 Plan or under other plans or compensatory arrangements, subject to terms determined by the Compensation Committee. Each grant or sale of such other awards may be made without additional consideration or in consideration of a payment by the participant that is less than the market value of our common stock (except with respect to awards that are substantially similar to option rights).

Adjustment

In the event of a recapitalization, merger, consolidation, reorganization, separation, liquidation, stock split, stock dividend, combination of shares or any other transaction having a similar effect, the board will make or provide for such adjustments:

In the number and kind of shares for which awards may be granted, both in the aggregate and the individual limitations each fiscal year;

In the number and kind of shares subject to outstanding awards; and In the exercise price of a stock option or base price of a SAR;

as is equitably required to prevent dilution or enlargement of the rights of participants that otherwise would result from such transaction or event, subject to Section 409A of the IRC. Such adjustments will be made automatically, without the necessity of board action, on the customary arithmetical basis in the case of any stock split, including a stock split effected by means of a stock dividend, and in the case of any other dividend paid in shares of our common stock. However, any adjustment shall be in compliance with or maintain exemption from Section 409A of the IRC. Moreover, in the event of any such transaction or event specified above, the board, in its discretion, and subject to ensuring compliance with or exemption from Section 409A of the IRC may provide in substitution for any or all outstanding awards under the 2015 Plan such alternative consideration (including cash), if any, as it may determine, in good faith, to be equitable in the circumstances and may require the surrender of all awards so replaced. The board also will provide for such adjustments in the share limits under the 2015 Plan as is appropriate to reflect any transaction or event described above. However, any such adjustment to the number of ISOs that may be issued or transferred under the 2015 Plan will be

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 77

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

made only if and to the extent that such adjustment would not cause any stock option intended to qualify as an ISO to fail so to qualify.

Change in Control

Unless otherwise provided in an award agreement or by the Compensation Committee, if there is a change in control of us (as defined in the 2015 Plan) and the resulting entity assumes, converts or replaces the outstanding awards under the 2015 Plan, the awards will become fully vested only upon the participant s involuntary termination of employment without cause, or resignation with good reason for certain executives, in either case, within 18 months following the change in control (or prior to the change in control in certain circumstances). On the other hand, if the resulting entity does not assume, convert or replace awards outstanding under the 2015 Plan, the awards will become fully vested and no longer be subject to any restrictions, and any management objectives will be deemed to have been satisfied at target.

In the event of a change in control, the board in its discretion may provide for the cancellation of each outstanding and unexercised stock option or SAR in exchange for a cash payment to be made within 60 days of the change in control in an amount equal to the amount by which the highest price per share of common stock paid for a share of common stock in the change in control exceeds the exercise price or base price, as applicable, multiplied by the number of shares of common stock granted under the stock option or SAR.

If the acceleration of vesting of outstanding awards, together with all other payments or benefits contingent on the change in control within the meaning of section 280G of the IRC, results in any portion of the payment or benefits not being deductible by us as a result of the application of section 280G, the benefits will be reduced until the entire amount of the benefits is deductible, unless a participant s employment agreement or other arrangement with us provides otherwise.

The 2015 Plan includes a definition of change in control. In general, except as may be otherwise prescribed by the Compensation Committee in any evidence of award, a change of control will be deemed to have occurred if:

> any individual, entity or group (within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act) (a Person), except Softbank Corp. or any other entity that controls, is controlled by or is under common control with us or Softbank Corp. within the meaning of Rule 405 of Regulation C under the Securities Act, becomes the beneficial owner (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated

under the Exchange Act) of thirty percent (30%) or more of the combined voting power of our securities entitled to vote generally in the election of our directors, or Voting Stock (excluding certain purchases from us or by us, our subsidiaries or our benefit plans, certain purchases that do not involve a substantial change in ownership or leadership, and certain inadvertent purchases); or we consummate a reorganization, merger or consolidation, or one of certain other transactions, in each case, resulting in a substantial change in our ownership or leadership, as further described in the 2015 Plan; or

during any consecutive 18-month period, more than 30% of the board ceases to be comprised of incumbent directors (as defined in the 2015 Plan); or

we consummate a transaction that implements in whole or in part a resolution of our stockholders authorizing a sale of all or substantially all of our assets or a complete

78 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

liquidation or dissolution of us, other than pursuant to a transaction that does not result in a substantial change in ownership or leadership, as further described in the 2015 Plan; or the listing of, or the requirement to list, all classes of our equity securities on a national securities exchange ceases.

Transferability

Except as otherwise determined by the board or the Compensation Committee pursuant to the terms of the 2015 Plan, awards made under the 2015 Plan are generally not transferable by participants except by will or the laws of descent and distribution, or otherwise in a manner that protects our interests as the board or the Compensation Committee may determine. Further, the Compensation Committee or an authorized officer may specify at the date of grant that part or all of the shares of common stock that are subject to outstanding awards will be subject to further restrictions on transfer.

Our board or the Compensation Committee may permit transfers of awards to certain family members, as further described in the 2015 Plan.

Effective Date

The 2015 Plan will be effective as of the date it is approved by our stockholders. As of the effective date, no further grants of awards will be permitted under the 2007 Plan or the 1997 Plan, but all awards under those plans that remain outstanding will be administered and paid in accordance with the provisions of the applicable plan and award agreement.

New Plan Benefits

It is not possible to determine the specific amounts and types of awards that may be awarded in the future under the 2015 Plan because the grant and actual settlement of awards under the 2015 Plan are subject to the discretion of the plan administrator. However, current benefits granted to our outside directors, named executive officers, and all other employees would not have been increased if they had been made under the proposed 2015 Plan. Grants of stock options and RSUs in fiscal year 2014 to our named executive officers are shown in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards table in this proxy statement. In addition, we have agreed in his employment agreement to, no later than September 1, 2015, grant to our new Chief Marketing Officer, Kevin Crull, an award of 2.5 million RSUs which can be earned upon the achievement of specified volume-weighted average prices of our common stock during any 150-calendar day period during a four-year period from June 1, 2015 through May 31, 2019.

Tax Aspects of the 2015 Plan

Under present law, the following are the federal income tax consequences generally arising with respect to awards to be granted under the 2015 Plan.

Tax Consequences to Participants

Restricted Stock. The recipient of restricted stock generally will be subject to tax at ordinary income rates on the fair market value of the restricted stock (reduced by any amount paid by the recipient for such restricted stock) at such time as the shares are no longer subject to forfeiture or restrictions on transfer for purposes of Section 83 of the Code (Restrictions). However, a recipient who so elects under Section 83(b) of the Code within 30 days of the date of transfer of the shares will have taxable ordinary income on the date of transfer of the shares equal to the excess of the fair market value of such shares (determined without regard to the Restrictions) over the purchase price,

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 79

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

if any, of such restricted shares. If a Section 83(b) election has not been made, any dividends received with respect to restricted shares that are subject to the Restrictions generally will be treated as compensation that is taxable as ordinary income to the recipient.

Performance Shares and Performance Units. No income generally will be recognized upon the grant of performance shares or performance units. Upon payment in respect of the earn-out of performance shares or performance units, the recipient generally will be required to include as taxable ordinary income in the year of receipt an amount equal to the amount of cash received and the fair market value of any nonrestricted shares of common stock received.

Nonqualified Stock Options. In general:

no income will be recognized by an optionee at the time a non-qualified stock option is granted; at the time of exercise of a non-qualified stock option, ordinary income will be recognized by the optionee in an amount equal to the difference between the option price paid for the shares and the fair market value of the shares, if unrestricted, on the date of exercise; and at the time of sale of shares acquired pursuant to the exercise of a non-qualified stock option, appreciation (or depreciation) in value of the shares after the date of exercise will be treated as either short-term or long-term capital gain (or loss) depending on how long the shares have been held.

ISOs. No income generally will be recognized by an optionee upon the grant or exercise of an ISO. The exercise of an ISO, however, may result in alternative minimum tax liability. If shares of common stock are issued to the optionee pursuant to the exercise of an ISO, and if no disqualifying disposition of such shares is made by such optionee within two years after the date of grant or within one year after the transfer of such shares to the optionee, then upon sale of such shares, any amount realized in excess of the option price will be taxed to the optionee as a long-term capital gain and any loss sustained will be a long-term capital loss.

If shares of common stock acquired upon the exercise of an ISO are disposed of prior to the expiration of either holding period described above, the optionee generally will recognize ordinary income in the year of disposition in an amount equal to the excess (if any) of the fair market value of such shares at the time of exercise (or, if less, the amount realized on the disposition of such shares if a sale or exchange) over the exercise price paid for such shares. Any further gain (or loss) realized by the participant generally will be taxed as short-term or long-term capital gain (or loss) depending on the holding period.

SARs. No income will be recognized by a participant in connection with the grant of a tandem SAR or a freestanding SAR. When the SAR is exercised, the participant normally will be required to include as taxable ordinary income in the year of exercise an amount equal to the amount of cash received and the fair market value of any unrestricted shares of common stock received on the exercise.

Restricted Stock Units. No income generally will be recognized upon the award of RSUs. The recipient of an RSU award generally will be subject to tax at ordinary income rates on the fair market value of unrestricted shares of common stock on the date that such shares are transferred to the participant under the award (reduced by any amount paid by the participant for such RSUs), and the capital gains/loss holding period for such shares will also commence on such date.

80 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

Tax Consequences to Us

To the extent that a participant recognizes ordinary income in the circumstances described above, we are entitled to a corresponding deduction provided that, among other things, the income:

Meets the test of reasonableness, is an ordinary and necessary business expense and is not an excess parachute payment within the meaning of Section 280G of the IRC; and Is not disallowed by the \$1 million limitation on certain executive compensation under Section 162(m) of the IRC.

Section 162(m) provides an exception to this limitation for qualified performance-based compensation the material terms of which have been approved by a corporation s stockholders. To that end, in connection with approval of the 2015 Plan, you are also being asked to approve the management objectives upon which qualified performance-based awards may be based, the annual maximum limits, and eligible employees. The annual maximum limits are as follows:

No individual may be granted stock options or SARs (or other awards with rights which are substantially similar to stock options or SARs) for more than 5,000,000 shares of our common stock in any fiscal year; and

For awards intended to qualify as qualified performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the IRC that are full-value awards (restricted stock, RSUs, performance shares, or other awards with rights that are substantially similar to performance shares), no individual may be granted such awards of more than 10,000,000 shares of our common stock in the aggregate in any fiscal year.

These limits are subject to adjustment as described under Adjustment above. There is also a maximum amount for performance units that are intended to qualify as qualified performance-based compensation. For these awards, no participant may be granted performance units or other awards with rights which are substantially similar to performance units, in the aggregate, for more than \$20,000,000 during any fiscal year.

Management Objectives

Under the 2015 Plan, management objectives are defined as the measurable performance objective or objectives established pursuant to the 2015 Plan for participants who have received grants of performance shares, performance

units or, when so determined by the Compensation Committee or an authorized officer, stock options, SARs, restricted stock, RSUs, dividend equivalents, or other awards. Management objectives may be described in terms of company-wide objectives or objectives that are related to the performance of one or more joint ventures, subsidiaries, business units, divisions, departments, business segments, regions or functions and/or that are related to the performance of the individual participant. The management objectives may be made relative to the performance of other companies or subsidiaries, divisions, departments, regions, functions, or other organizational units within such other companies, or an index covering multiple companies.

The Compensation Committee may grant awards to covered employees subject to management objectives that are either qualified performance-based awards or are not qualified performance-based awards. The management objectives applicable to any award intended to qualify as qualified performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the IRC may be based on one or more, or a combination of the following criteria:

net sales;
revenue;

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 81

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

employee satisfaction;

Incentive Plan

```
revenue growth or product revenue growth;
operating income (before or after taxes, including operating income before depreciation and
amortization);
income (before or after taxes and before or after allocation of corporate overhead and bonus);
net earnings;
earnings per share;
net income (before or after taxes);
return on equity;
total stockholder return;
return on assets or net assets;
appreciation in and/or maintenance of share price;
market share;
gross profits;
earnings (including earnings before taxes, earnings before interest and taxes or earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization);
economic value-added models or equivalent metrics;
reductions in costs;
cash flow or cash flow per share (before or after dividends);
return on capital (including return on total capital or return on invested capital);
cash flow return on investment;
improvement in or attainment of expense levels or working capital levels;
operating, gross, or cash margins;
year-end cash;
debt reductions;
stockholder equity;
regulatory achievements;
operating performance;
market expansion;
customer acquisition;
customer satisfaction;
```

Table of Contents 157

implementation, completion, or attainment of measurable objectives with respect to research,

a published or a special index deemed applicable by the Compensation Committee or any of the above criteria as compared to the performance of any such index, including, but not limited to, the Dow Jones

development, products or projects and recruiting and maintaining personnel; or

U.S. Telecom Index.

Any management objectives that are financial metrics may be determined in accordance with United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) or may be adjusted when established to include or exclude any items otherwise includable or excludable under GAAP. In the case of qualified performance-based awards, each management objective will be objectively determined to the extent required under Section 162(m) of the Code.

In connection with the establishment of management objectives, or with respect to the measurement of achievement with respect to a management objective, the Compensation Committee may exclude the impact on performance of extraordinary, unusual, or infrequently occurring items, including charges for restructurings; other non-operating items; acquisitions,

82 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

divestitures, discontinued operations; and other unusual or non-recurring items and the cumulative effects of changes in tax law or accounting principles, as such are defined by generally accepted accounting principles or the SEC and as identified in our audited financial statements, notes to such financial statements or management s discussion and analysis in our annual report or other filings with the SEC. With respect to any grant under the 2015 Plan, if the Compensation Committee determines that a change in the business, operations, corporate structure or capital structure of us, or the manner in which we conduct our business, or other events or circumstances render the management objectives unsuitable, the Compensation Committee may in its discretion modify such management objectives or the related minimum acceptable level or levels of achievement, in whole or in part, as the Compensation Committee deems appropriate and equitable, except in the case of an award intended to qualify as qualified performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the IRC when such action would result in the loss of the otherwise available exemption of such award under Section 162(m) of the IRC. In such case, the Compensation Committee will not make any modification of the management objectives or the minimum acceptable level or levels of achievement with respect to such award. In addition, unless otherwise specified in the evidence of award, the Compensation Committee may, in its discretion, increase, reduce or eliminate the amount payable to any participant with respect to an award, based on such factors as the Compensation Committee may deem relevant. For purpose of clarity, (1) the amount payable pursuant to performance measures based on qualification of an award as qualified performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the IRC for any award intended to so qualify may not be increased when such action would result in the loss of the otherwise available exemption of such award under Section 162(m) of the IRC as described above, and (2) the Compensation Committee may exercise the discretion in the foregoing sentence in a non-uniform manner among participants.

Amendment and Termination

Our board, subject to Section 409A of the IRC, may amend or terminate the 2015 Plan. However, if any amendment (1) would materially increase the benefits accruing to participants under the 2015 Plan, (2) would materially increase the number of shares which may be issued under the 2015 Plan, (3) would materially modify the requirements for participation in the 2015 Plan, or (4) must otherwise be approved by our stockholders in order to comply with applicable law or the rules of the NYSE, then such amendment will be subject to stockholder approval and will not be effective unless and until such approval has been obtained. Termination of the 2015 Plan will not affect the rights of participants or their successors under any awards outstanding under the 2015 Plan and not exercised in full on the date of termination.

If permitted by Section 409A of the IRC, in case of termination of service by reason of death, disability or normal retirement, or in the case of unforeseeable emergency or other special circumstances, of a participant who holds a stock option or SAR not immediately exercisable in full, or any shares of restricted stock as to which the substantial

risk of forfeiture or the prohibition or restriction on transfer has not lapsed, or any RSUs as to which the restriction period has not been completed, or any performance shares or performance units which have not been fully earned, or any other awards made pursuant to the 2015 Plan subject to any vesting schedule or transfer restriction, or who holds shares of our common stock subject to any transfer restriction imposed pursuant to the 2015 Plan, the Compensation Committee may, in its sole discretion, accelerate the time at which such stock option, SAR or other award may be exercised or the time at which such substantial risk of forfeiture or prohibition or restriction on transfer will lapse or the time when such restriction period will end or the time at which such performance shares or performance units will be deemed to have been fully earned or the time when such transfer restriction will terminate or may waive any other limitation

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 83

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

or requirement under any such award, except in the case of an award intended to qualify as qualified performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the IRC where such action would result in the loss of the otherwise available exemption of the award under Section 162(m) of the IRC.

Subject to the prohibition on option and SAR repricing without stockholder approval described above, the Compensation Committee may amend the terms of any award granted under the 2015 Plan prospectively or retroactively, except in the case of an award intended to qualify as qualified performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the IRC where such action would result in the loss of the otherwise available exemption of such award under Section 162(m) of the IRC. In such case, the Compensation Committee will not make any modification of the management objectives or the level or levels of achievement with respect to such award. Subject to adjustments as described in the 2015 Plan, no amendment will materially impair the rights of any participant without his or her consent.

Deferral of Shares

Except with respect to stock options and SARs, the Compensation Committee may permit participants to elect to defer the issuance of shares of our common stock or the settlement of awards in cash under the 2015 Plan pursuant to such rules, procedures or programs as it may establish for purposes of the 2015 Plan. The Compensation Committee also may provide that deferred issuances and settlements include the payment or crediting of dividend equivalents or interest on the deferral amounts. All elections and deferrals permitted under this provision shall comply with Section 409A of the IRC, including setting forth the time and manner of the election (including a compliant time and form of payment), the date on which the election is irrevocable, and whether the election can be changed until the date it is irrevocable.

Registration with the SEC

We intend to file a Registration Statement on Form S-8 relating to the issuance of shares of our common stock under the 2015 Plan with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (Securities Act), as soon as practicable after approval of the 2015 Plan by our stockholders.

Existing Equity Compensation Plan Information

We have two compensation plans under which we may issue awards of shares of our common stock, or grant securities exercisable for or convertible into shares of our common stock, to employees and directors. These plans consist of the 2007 Plan and the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, or ESPP. The 2007 Plan and the ESPP were approved by our stockholders.

84 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

Proposal 4 Approval of the 2015 Omnibus

Incentive Plan

The following table provides information about the shares of our common stock that may be issued upon exercise of awards as of March 31, 2015:

	Number of		
	Securities	Weighted	
	Securities	Average	
	To be Issued	Exercise	Number of Securities
		Price of	D
	Upon Exercise of	Outstanding	Remaining Available for
	OI.	Outstanding	Future Issuance Under
	Outstanding	Options,	
	0-4:	Warrants and	Equity Compensation Plans
	Options,		(Excluding Securities
	Warrants and		(g ~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	Rights	Rights	Reflected in Column (a)
	(a)	(b)	(c)
Equity compensation plans approved by			
holders of common stock	59,874,722(1)(2)	\$5.34 ⁽³⁾	$127,908,702^{(4)(5)(6)}$
Equity compensation plans not approved	2 0 7 0 (7)	410.66	
by holders of common stock	3,979 ⁽⁷⁾	\$18.66	
Total	59,878,701		127,908,702

- (1) Includes 38,775,540 shares covered by options and 19,225,044 restricted stock units under the 2007 Plan, and 1,082,308 shares covered by options and 41,336 restricted stock units outstanding under the 1997 Program. Also includes purchase rights to acquire 750,494 shares of common stock accrued at March 31, 2015 under the ESPP. Under the ESPP, each eligible employee may purchase common stock at quarterly intervals at a purchase price per share equal to 95% of the market value on the last business day of the offering period.
- (2) Included in the total of 59,874,722 shares are 19,225,044 restricted stock units under the 2007 Plan, which will be counted against the 2007 Plan maximum in a 2.5 to 1 ratio.

Table of Contents 163

(3)

The weighted average exercise price does not take into account the shares of common stock issuable upon vesting of restricted stock units issued under the 1997 Program or the 2007 Plan. These restricted stock units have no exercise price. The weighted average purchase price also does not take into account the 750,494 shares of common stock issuable as a result of the purchase rights accrued under the ESPP; the purchase price of these shares was \$4.47 for each share.

- (4) Of these shares, 95,847,404 shares of common stock were available under the 2007 Plan. Through March 31, 2015, 151,939,999 cumulative shares came from the 1997 Program, the Nextel Plan, and the MISOP.
- (5) Includes 76,082,409 shares of common stock available for issuance under the ESPP after issuance of the 750,494 shares purchased in quarter ended March 31, 2014 offering. See note 1 above.
- (6) No new awards may be granted under the 1997 Program, the Nextel Plan, or the MISOP.
- (7) Consists of 3,979 options outstanding under the Nextel Plan. There are no deferred shares outstanding under the Nextel Plan.

On June 9, 2015, the closing price of our common stock traded on the NYSE was \$4.53 per share.

Adoption of this proposal requires the affirmative vote of the majority of the votes cast in person or by proxy by holders of our common stock entitled to vote at the annual meeting.

Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote <u>FOR</u> Proposal 4.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 85

General Information

General Information

Information Regarding Solicitation

Mailing Date: On or about June 26, 2015, we mailed to our stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting the Notice or, for stockholders who have already requested to receive printed materials, this proxy statement, the accompanying proxy card, and the Form 10-K for fiscal year 2014.

Address of Principal Executive Offices: 6200 Sprint Parkway, Overland Park, Kansas 66251.

Solicitation: These proxy materials are delivered in connection with the solicitation by our board of directors of proxies to be voted at our annual meeting of stockholders.

Purpose of the Annual Meeting

At the virtual annual meeting, you will be asked to:

elect the nine directors named herein (*Item 1 on the proxy card*); ratify the selection of the independent registered public accounting firm (*Item 2 on the proxy card*); approve, on an advisory basis, our named executive officer compensation (*Item 3 on the proxy card*); approve the 2015 Omnibus Incentive Plan (*Item 4 on the proxy card*); and take action on any other business that properly comes before the meeting and any adjournment or postponement of the meeting.

Record Date: Stockholders Entitled to Vote

The close of business on June 9, 2015 has been fixed as the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the 2015 annual meeting or any adjournments or postponements of the 2015 annual meeting.

As of the record date, we had 3,967,386,409 shares of our common stock outstanding of which 410,157 are not entitled to vote. These shares represent shares originally issued by Sprint Nextel Corporation that have not been exchanged for Sprint Corporation shares. Each share of our common stock entitles the record holder to one vote on each matter presented at the 2015 annual meeting.

A complete list of stockholders entitled to vote at the 2015 annual meeting will be available for examination by any stockholder at our Principal Executive Offices for purposes pertaining to the 2015 annual meeting during normal business hours for a period of ten days before the annual meeting and at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/SprintCorp15 during the annual meeting.

Street Name and Broker Non-Votes

You are a record holder if you hold our shares directly in your name through our transfer agent, Computershare Trust Company, N.A., as a stockholder of record. If you hold our shares through a broker, bank, financial institution, trust, or other nominee, then you are a holder of our shares in street name. If you hold your shares in street name, you must instruct the broker or other nominee about how to vote your shares.

A broker non-vote occurs when a stockholder holding in street name fails to provide voting instructions to his or her broker or other nominee. Under the rules of the NYSE, if you do not provide such instructions, the firm that holds your shares will have discretionary authority to vote your shares with respect to routine matters. Of the four items to be considered at our annual meeting, only the appointment of Deloitte (Item 2) is considered routine. Those non-routine items for which a stockholder s broker or other nominee does not have discretion to vote are treated as broker non-votes.

86 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

General Information

Voting Standards

	Election of Directors	Auditor Ratification	Advisory Approval of Executive Compensation	Approval of 2015 Omnibus Incentive
Voting Standard	Plurality, which means directors receiving the highest number of votes FOR will be elected	Majority of shares present and entitled d to vote	Majority of shares present and entitled to vote	Majority of shares present and entitled to vote
Broker Non-Votes	Not counted as entitled to vote and therefore no effect	Not applicable	Not counted as entitled to vote and therefore no effect	Not counted as entitled to vote and therefore no effect
Treatment of Abstentions	Not applicable	Will be treated as a vote AGAINST	Will be treated as a vote AGAINST	Will be treated as a vote AGAINST
Uninstructed Proxy	this item.	this item.	this item.	Will be voted FOR this item.
Board Recommendation	FOR	FOR	FOR	FOR

We do not intend to bring any other matters before the meeting, and we do not know of any matters to be brought before the meeting by others. Should any matter not described above be properly presented at the meeting, the persons named in the proxy card will vote in accordance with their judgment as permitted.

Quorum

In order to carry on the business of the meeting, we must have a quorum. A quorum requires the presence, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast at the meeting. We count abstentions and broker non-votes as present and entitled to vote for purposes of determining a quorum.

Voting of Proxies

Giving a proxy means that you authorize the persons named in the proxy card to vote your shares at the 2015 annual meeting in the manner directed. You may vote by proxy or, if you attend the annual meeting via the Internet, by following the instructions at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/SprintCorp15. To vote by proxy, you may use one of the following methods if you are a record holder:

By Internet You can vote over the Internet at www.proxyvote.com by entering the control number found on your Notice or proxy card;

By Telephone You can vote by telephone by calling 1-800-690-6903 and entering the control number found on your Notice or proxy card; or

By Mail If you received your proxy materials by mail, you can vote by signing, dating, and mailing the proxy card in the pre-paid enclosed envelope. Your proxy card must be received before the voting polls close at the annual meeting.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 87

General Information

We request that you vote as soon as possible. When the proxy is properly submitted, the shares of stock represented by the proxy will be voted at the 2015 annual meeting in accordance with the instructions contained in the proxy.

If your shares are held in street name by a broker or other nominee, you should review the voting form used by that firm to determine whether you may provide voting instructions to the broker or other nominee by telephone or the Internet.

The deadline for voting by phone or via the Internet, except with respect to shares acquired through participation in our 401(k) plan, is 11:59 p.m. Eastern on August 6, 2015.

Your vote is important. Accordingly, you should vote via the Internet or by telephone; sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card if you received it by mail; or provide instructions to your broker or other nominee whether or not you plan to attend the annual meeting online.

Revocability of Proxies and Changes to a Stockholder s Vote

You have the power to revoke your proxy or change your vote at any time before the proxy is voted at the annual meeting. You can revoke your proxy or change your vote in one of four ways:

by sending a signed notice of revocation to our corporate secretary to revoke your proxy;

by sending to our corporate secretary a completed proxy card bearing a later date than your original proxy indicating the change in your vote;

by logging on to www.proxyvote.com in the same manner you would to submit your proxy electronically or calling 1-800-690-6903, and, in each case, following the instructions to revoke or change your vote; or

by attending the annual meeting online and voting, which will automatically cancel any proxy previously given. Attendance alone will not revoke any proxy that you have given previously.

If you choose any of the first three methods, you must take the described action no later than the beginning of the 2015 annual meeting. Once voting on a particular matter is completed at the annual meeting, you will not be able to revoke your proxy or change your vote. If your shares are held in street name by a broker or other nominee, you must

contact that institution to change your vote.

Solicitation of Proxies

This solicitation is made on behalf of our board, and we will pay the cost and expenses of printing and mailing this proxy statement and soliciting and obtaining the proxies, including the cost of reimbursing brokers, banks, and other financial institutions for forwarding proxy materials to their customers. Proxies may be solicited, without extra compensation, by our officers and employees by mail, telephone, email, personal interviews or other methods of communication.

Voting by Our Employees Participating in Sprint s 401(k) Plan

If you are an employee of Sprint who has a right to vote shares acquired through your participation in our 401(k) plan, you are entitled to instruct the trustee, Fidelity Management Trust Company, how to vote the shares allocated to your account. The trustee will vote those shares as you instruct. You will receive voting information for any shares held in your 401(k) plan account, as well as any other shares registered in your own name.

If you do not instruct the trustee how to vote your shares, the 401(k) plan provides for the trustee to vote those shares in the same proportion as the shares for which it receives instructions

88 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

General Information

from all other participants. To allow sufficient time for the trustee to vote, your voting instructions must be received by the trustee by 11:59 p.m. Eastern on August 4, 2015.

Delivery of Proxy Materials to Households Where Two or More Stockholders Reside

SEC rules allow us to deliver multiple Notices in a single envelope or a single copy of an annual report and proxy statement to any household where two or more stockholders reside if we believe the stockholders are members of the same family. This rule benefits stockholders by reducing the volume of duplicate information they receive at their households. It also benefits us by reducing our printing and mailing costs and reducing the environmental impact associated with our annual meeting.

We mailed Notices in a single envelope, or a single set of proxy materials, as applicable, to each household this year unless the stockholders in these households provided instructions to the contrary in response to a notice previously mailed to them. However, for stockholders who previously requested a printed set of the proxy materials, we mailed each stockholder in a single household a separate proxy card or voting instruction form. If you prefer to receive your own copy of the proxy materials for this or future annual meetings and you are a record holder, you may request a duplicate set by writing to shareholder relations, 6200 Sprint Parkway, Mailstop KSOPHF0302-3B424, Overland Park, Kansas 66251, by email at *shareholder.relations@sprint.com*, or by calling 913-794-1091, and we will promptly furnish such materials. If a broker or other nominee holds your shares, you may instruct your broker to send duplicate mailings by following the instructions on your voting instruction form or by contacting your broker.

If you share a household address with another stockholder, and you receive duplicate mailings of the proxy materials this year, you may request that your household receive a single set of proxy materials in the future. If you are a record holder, please contact Sprint Shareholder Relations using one of the contact methods described above. If a broker or other nominee holds your shares, you should follow the instructions on your voting instruction form or contact your broker.

If you hold some shares as a record holder or through our 401(k) plan, and other shares in the name of a broker or other nominee, we must send you proxy materials for each account. To avoid receiving duplicate sets of proxy materials, you may consolidate accounts or consent to electronic delivery as described in the following section.

Internet Availability of the Proxy Materials

We are able to distribute the annual report and proxy statement to stockholders in a fast and efficient manner via the Internet. This reduces the amount of paper delivered to a stockholder s address, eliminates the cost of sending these documents by mail and reduces the environmental impact associated with our annual meeting. You may elect to view all future annual reports and proxy statements on the Internet instead of receiving them by mail. Alternatively, you

may elect to receive all future annual reports and proxy statements by mail instead of viewing them via the Internet. To make an election, please log on to *www.proxyvote.com* and enter your control number.

If you have enrolled for electronic delivery, you will receive an email notice of stockholder meetings. The email will provide links to our annual report and our proxy statement. These documents are in PDF format so you will need Adobe Acrobat[®] Reader to view these documents online, which you can download for free by visiting www.adobe.com. The email will also provide a link to a voting web site and a control number to use to vote via the Internet.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 89

General Information

Attending the Annual Meeting Online

We are having a completely virtual meeting of stockholders. Anyone can view the annual meeting live via the internet at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/SprintCorp15.

We encourage you to access the meeting prior to the start time.

Webcast starts at 8:00 a.m. Pacific time.

Instructions on how to attend and participate via the Internet, including how to demonstrate proof of stock ownership, are posted on the meeting website. We will have technicians ready to assist you with any technical difficulties you may have accessing the virtual meeting. If you encounter any difficulties accessing the virtual meeting during the check-in or meeting time, please call (855) 499-0991.

Stockholders may vote and submit questions while attending the meeting on the Internet.

The webcast will be available for replay until midnight on August 17, 2015.

Proposals Submitted Pursuant to Rule 14a-8

You may submit proposals for consideration at future stockholder meetings. Such proposals also must comply with SEC regulations under Rule 14a-8 regarding the inclusion of stockholder proposals in company-sponsored proxy materials. The deadline for submitting stockholder proposals to be included in the proxy statement for our 2016 annual meeting of stockholders is February 20, 2016. If you intend to submit a proposal, it must be received by our Corporate Secretary at 6200 Sprint Parkway, Overland Park, KS 66251, KSOPHF0302-3B424, no later than that date.

Proposals or Nominations Not Submitted Pursuant to Rule 14a-8

For a stockholders proposal or nomination that is not intended to be included in our proxy statement for the 2016 annual meeting under Rule 14a-8, the stockholder must provide the information required by our bylaws and give timely notice to our Corporate Secretary in accordance with our bylaws, which, in general, require that the notice be received by our Corporate Secretary not earlier than the close of business on April 9, 2016; and no later than the close of business on May 9, 2016. If the date of the annual meeting is advanced or delayed by more than 30 days from the anniversary of this year s meeting, notice will be timely if received, no earlier than the close of business 120 days and no later than the close of business 90 days in advance of such annual meeting or 10 calendar days following the date on which public announcement of the date of the meeting is first made.

Availability of Sprint s Bylaws

Our bylaws, which contain provisions regarding the requirements for making stockholder proposals and nominating director candidates, are available on our website at www.sprint.com/governance.

Form 10-K

Upon written request to the Corporate Secretary at Sprint Corporation at 6200 Sprint Parkway, Overland Park, KS 66251, KSOPHF0302-3B424, we will provide without charge a copy of our annual report on Form 10-K, including the financial statements and financial statement schedules, filed with the SEC for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015.

Litigation

In March 2009, a stockholder brought suit, *Bennett v. Sprint Nextel Corp.*, in the U.S. District Court for the District of Kansas, alleging that Sprint Communications and three of its former officers

90 | Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement

General Information

violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 by failing adequately to disclose certain alleged operational difficulties subsequent to the Sprint-Nextel merger, and by purportedly issuing false and misleading statements regarding the write-down of goodwill. The plaintiff sought class action status for purchasers of Sprint Communications common stock from October 26, 2006 to February 27, 2008. On January 6, 2011, the Court denied the motion to dismiss. Subsequently, our motion to certify the January 6, 2011 order for an interlocutory appeal was denied. On March 27, 2014, the court certified a class including bondholders as well as stockholders. On April 11, 2014 we filed a petition to appeal that certification order to the Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals but that petition was denied. After mediation, the parties have reached an agreement in principle to settle the matter, and the settlement amount is expected to be substantially paid by the Company s insurers. The district court granted preliminary approval of the proposed settlement on April 10, 2015 and a final approval hearing has been scheduled for August 5, 2015. We do not expect the resolution of this matter to have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.

In addition, five related stockholder derivative suits were filed against Sprint Communications and certain of its present and/or former officers and directors. The first, *Murphy v. Forsee*, was filed in state court in Kansas on April 8, 2009, was removed to federal court, and was stayed by the court pending resolution of the motion to dismiss the *Bennett* case; the second, *Randolph v. Forsee*, was filed on July 15, 2010 in state court in Kansas, was removed to federal court, and was remanded back to state court; the third, *Ross-Williams v. Bennett*, *et al.*, was filed in state court in Kansas on February 1, 2011; the fourth, *Price v. Forsee*, et al., was filed in state court in Kansas on April 15, 2011; and the fifth, *Hartleib v. Forsee*, *et. al.*, was filed in federal court in Kansas on July 14, 2011. These cases are essentially stayed while the *Bennett* case is being resolved. We do not expect the resolution of these matters to have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.

Sprint Communications, Inc. is also a defendant in a complaint filed by stockholders of Clearwire Corporation, asserting claims for breach of fiduciary duty by Sprint Communications, and related claims and otherwise challenging the Clearwire Acquisition. *ACP Master, LTD, et al. v. Sprint Nextel Corp., et al.*, was filed April 26, 2013 in Chancery Court in Delaware. Our motion to dismiss the suit was denied and discovery has begun. The plaintiffs in the *ACP Master, LTD* suit have also filed suit requesting an appraisal of the fair value of their Clearwire stock, and discovery is proceeding in that case. Sprint Communications, Inc. intends to defend the *ACP Master, LTD* cases vigorously. We do not expect the resolution of these matters to have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.

Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement | 91

ANNEX A

SPRINT CORPORATION

2015 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN

(EFFECTIVE , 2015)

A-1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	Purpose	Page A-2
2.	Definitions	A-2
3.	Shares Subject to this Plan	A-12
4.	Option Rights	A-13
5.	Appreciation Rights	A-15
6.	Restricted Stock	A-17
7.	Restricted Stock Units	A-18
8.	Performance Shares and Performance Units	A-19
9.	Awards to Non-Employee Directors	A-20
10.	Other Awards	A-21
11.	Administration of this Plan	A-22
12.	Adjustments	A-23
13.	Change in Control	A-24
14.	Detrimental Activity	A-25
15.	Non-U.S. Participants	A-25
16.	Transferability	A-26
17.	Withholding Taxes	A-26
18.	Compliance with Section 409A of the Code	A-27
19.	Effective Date and Term of Plan	A-27
20.	Amendments and Termination	A-28
21.	Substitute Awards for Awards Granted by Other Entities	A-29
22.	Governing Law	A-29
23.	Miscellaneous Provisions	A-29

SPRINT CORPORATION

2015 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN

1. **Purpose**. The purpose of this 2015 Omnibus Incentive Plan is to attract and retain directors, officers, other employees and consultants of Sprint Corporation and its Subsidiaries and to motivate and provide to such persons incentives and rewards for superior performance.

2. **Definitions**. As used in this Plan:

- (a) Appreciation Right means a right granted pursuant to Section 5 of this Plan and will include both Free-Standing Appreciation Rights and Tandem Appreciation Rights.
- (b) Authorized Officer has the meaning specified in Section 11(d) of the Plan.

A-2

- (c) Award means a grant of Option Rights, Appreciation Rights, Performance Shares or Performance Units, or a grant or sale of Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units or other awards contemplated by Section 10 of the Plan.
- (d) Base Price means the price to be used as the basis for determining the Spread upon the exercise of a Free-Standing Appreciation Right or a Tandem Appreciation Right.
- (e) Board means the Board of Directors of the Corporation and, to the extent of any delegation by the Board to a committee (or subcommittee thereof) pursuant to Section 11 of this Plan, such committee (or subcommittee).
- (f) Business Transaction has the meaning set forth in Section 2(h)(ii).
- (g) Cause as a reason for a Participant s termination of employment shall have the meaning assigned such term in (i) the employment agreement, if any, between the Participant and an Employer, or (ii) during the CIC Severance Protection Period (as defined in the CIC Severance Plan), the CIC Severance Plan, if the Participant is a participant in such plan. If the Participant is not a party to an employment agreement with an Employer in which such term is defined, or if during the CIC Severance Protection Period, the Participant is not a participant in the CIC Severance Plan, then unless otherwise defined in the applicable Evidence of Award, Cause shall mean:
- (i) the intentional engagement in any acts or omissions constituting dishonesty, breach of a fiduciary obligation, wrongdoing or misfeasance, in each case, in connection with a Participant s duties or otherwise during the course of a Participant s employment with an Employer;
- (ii) the commission of a felony or the indictment for any felony, including, but not limited to, any felony involving fraud, embezzlement, moral turpitude or theft;
- (iii) the intentional and wrongful damaging of property, contractual interests or business relationships of an Employer;
- (iv) the intentional and wrongful disclosure of secret processes or confidential information of an Employer in violation of an agreement with or a policy of an Employer;
- (v) the continued failure to substantially perform the Participant s duties for an Employer;
- (vi) current alcohol or prescription drug abuse affecting work performance;
- (vii) current illegal use of drugs; or
- (viii) any intentional conduct contrary to an Employer s announced policies or practices (including, but not limited to, those contained in the Corporation s Code of Conduct).
- (h) For purposes of this Plan, except as may be otherwise prescribed by the Compensation Committee in an Evidence of Award, a Change in Control of the Corporation shall be deemed to have occurred upon the happening of any of the following events:
- (i) any individual, entity or group (within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act) (a Person), except SOFTBANK CORP. or any other entity that controls, is controlled by or is under common control with the Corporation or SOFTBANK CORP. within the meaning of Rule 405 of Regulation C under the Securities Act, becomes the beneficial owner (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act) of thirty percent (30%) or more of the combined voting power of the then-outstanding Voting Stock of the Corporation; except,

that:

(A) for purposes of this clause (i), the following acquisitions shall not constitute a Change in Control: (1) any acquisition of Voting Stock of the Corporation directly

A-3

from the Corporation that is approved by a majority of the Incumbent Directors, (2) any acquisition of Voting Stock of the Corporation by the Corporation or any Subsidiary, (3) any acquisition of Voting Stock of the Corporation by the trustee or other fiduciary holding securities under any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Corporation or any Subsidiary, and (4) any acquisition of Voting Stock of the Corporation by any Person pursuant to a Business Transaction that complies with clauses (A), (B) and (C) of clause (ii) below;

- (B) if any Person becomes the beneficial owner of thirty percent (30%) or more of combined voting power of the then-outstanding Voting Stock of the Corporation as a result of a transaction or series of transactions described in sub-clause (1) of clause (i)(A) above and such Person thereafter becomes the beneficial owner of any additional shares of Voting Stock of the Corporation representing one percent (1%) or more of the then-outstanding Voting Stock of the Corporation, other than as a result of (x) a transaction described in sub-clause (1) of clause (i)(A) above, or (y) a stock dividend, stock split or similar transaction effected by the Corporation in which all holders of Voting Stock are treated equally, then such subsequent acquisition shall be treated as a Change in Control;
- (C) a Change in Control will not be deemed to have occurred if a Person becomes the beneficial owner of thirty percent (30%) or more of the Voting Stock of the Corporation as a result of a reduction in the number of shares of Voting Stock of the Corporation outstanding pursuant to a transaction or series of transactions that is approved by a majority of the Incumbent Directors unless and until such Person thereafter becomes the beneficial owner of additional shares of Voting Stock of the Corporation representing one percent (1%) or more of the then-outstanding Voting Stock of the Corporation, other than as a result of a stock dividend, stock split or similar transaction effected by the Corporation in which all holders of Voting Stock are treated equally; and
- (D) if at least a majority of the Incumbent Directors determine in good faith that a Person has acquired beneficial ownership of thirty percent (30%) or more of the Voting Stock of the Corporation inadvertently, and such Person divests as promptly as practicable, but no later than the date, if any, set by the Incumbent Directors, a sufficient number of shares so that such Person beneficially owns less than thirty percent (30%) of the Voting Stock of the Corporation, then no Change in Control shall have occurred as a result of such Person s acquisition; or
- (ii) the consummation of a reorganization, merger or consolidation of the Corporation with, or the acquisition of the stock or assets of the Corporation by, another Person, or similar transaction (each, a Business Transaction), unless, in each case, immediately following such Business Transaction (A) the Voting Stock of the Corporation outstanding immediately prior to such Business Transaction continues to represent, directly or indirectly, (either by remaining outstanding or by being converted into Voting Stock of the surviving entity or any parent thereof), more than fifty percent (50%) of the combined voting power of the then outstanding shares of Voting Stock or comparable equity interests of the entity resulting from such Business Transaction (including, without limitation, an entity which as a result of such transaction owns the Corporation or all or substantially all of the Corporation s assets either directly or through one or more subsidiaries), (B) no Person (other than the Corporation or SOFTBANK CORP. or any other entity that controls, is controlled by or is under common control with the Corporation or SOFTBANK CORP. within the meaning of Rule 405 of Regulation C under the Securities Act, such entity resulting from such Business

Edgar Filing: SPRINT Corp - Form DEF 14A

Transaction, or any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Corporation or any Subsidiary or such entity resulting from such Business Transaction)

A-4

beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, thirty percent (30%) or more of the combined voting power of the then outstanding shares of Voting Stock of the entity resulting from such Business Transaction, and (C) at least a majority of the members of the board of directors of the entity resulting from such Business Transaction were Incumbent Directors at the time of the execution of the initial agreement or of the action of the Board providing for such Business Transaction; or

- (iii) during any consecutive 18-month period, more than thirty percent (30%) of the Board ceases to be comprised of Incumbent Directors; or
- (iv) consummation of a transaction that implements in whole or in part a resolution of the stockholders of the Corporation authorizing a sale of all or substantially all of Corporation s assets or a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Corporation, except pursuant to a Business Transaction that complies with sub-clauses (A), (B) and (C) of clause (ii) above; or
- (v) the cessation of the listing of, or the cessation of the requirement to list, all classes of the Corporation s equity securities on a national securities exchange.
- (i) CIC Severance Plan means the Sprint Corporation Change in Control Severance Plan, as it may be amended from time to time or any successor plan, program, agreement or arrangement.
- (j) CIC Severance Protection Period means, except as otherwise provided in a Participant s Evidence of Award, the time period commencing on the date of the first occurrence of a Change in Control and continuing until the earlier of: (i) the 18-month anniversary of such date, and (ii) the Participant s death. To the extent provided in a Participant s Evidence of Award, a CIC Severance Protection Period also shall include the time period before the occurrence of a Change in Control for a Participant who is subject to a Pre-CIC Termination.
- (k) Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, including any rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, along with Treasury and IRS interpretations thereof. Reference to any section or subsection of the Code includes reference to any comparable or succeeding provisions of any legislation that amends, supplements or replaces such section or subsection.
- (1) Common Stock means the common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, of the Corporation or any security into which such shares of Common Stock may be changed by reason of any transaction or event of the type referred to in Section 12 of this Plan.
- (m) Compensation Committee means the Compensation Committee of the Board, or any other committee of the Board or subcommittee thereof authorized to administer this Plan in accordance with Section 11 of the Plan.
- (n) Corporation means Sprint Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and its successors.
 - Covered Employee means a Participant who is determined by the Compensation Committee to be likely to become a covered employee within the meaning of Section 162(m) if the Code (or any successor provision).
- (o) Date of Grant means the date as of which an Award is determined to be effective and designated in a resolution by the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer and is granted pursuant to the Plan. The Date of Grant shall not be earlier than the date of the resolution and action therein by the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer. In no event shall the Date of Grant be earlier than the Effective Date.

A-5

- (p) Detrimental Activity, except as may be otherwise specified in a Participant s Evidence of Award, means:
- (i) engaging in any activity of competition, as specified in any covenant not to compete set forth in any agreement between a Participant and the Corporation or a Subsidiary, including, but not limited to, the Participant s Evidence of Award, during the period of restriction specified in the agreement prohibiting the Participant from engaging in such activity;
- (ii) engaging in any activity of solicitation, as specified in any covenant not to solicit set forth in any agreement between a Participant and the Corporation or a Subsidiary, including, but not limited to, the Participant s Evidence of Award, during the period of restriction specified in the agreement prohibiting the Participant from engaging in such activity;
- (iii) the disclosure to anyone outside the Corporation or a Subsidiary, or the use in other than the Corporation s or a Subsidiary s business, (A) without prior written authorization from the Corporation, of any confidential, proprietary or trade secret information or material relating to the business of the Corporation and its Subsidiaries, acquired by the Participant during his or her service with the Corporation or any of its Subsidiaries, or (B) in violation of any covenant not to disclose set forth in any agreement between a Participant and the Corporation or a Subsidiary, including, but not limited to, the Participant s Evidence of Award, during the period of restriction specified in the agreement prohibiting the Participant from engaging in such activity;
- (iv) the (A) failure or refusal to disclose promptly and to assign to the Corporation or a Subsidiary upon request all right, title and interest in any invention or idea, patentable or not, made or conceived by the Participant during his or her service with the Corporation or any of its Subsidiaries, relating in any manner to the actual or anticipated business, research or development work of the Corporation or any Subsidiary or the failure or refusal to do anything reasonably necessary to enable the Corporation or any Subsidiary to secure a patent where appropriate in the United States and in other countries, or (B) violation of any development and inventions provision set forth in any agreement between a Participant and the Corporation or a Subsidiary, including, but not limited to, the Participant s Evidence of Award;
- (v) if the Participant is or was an officer, activity that the Board determines entitles the Corporation to seek recovery from an officer under any policy promulgated by the Board as in effect when an Award was made or vested under this Plan; or
- (vi) activity that results in termination of the Participant s employment for Cause.
- (q) Director means a member of the Board.
- (r) Disability except as may be otherwise specified in a Participant s Evidence of Award, shall mean, in the case of an Employee, termination of employment under circumstances that would make the Employee eligible to receive benefits under the Sprint Basic Long-Term Disability Plan, as it may be amended from time to time, or any successor plan, program, agreement or arrangement, and in the case of a Participant who is a Non-Employee Director, termination of service as a Non-Employee Director under circumstances that would make the Non-Employee Director eligible to receive Social Security disability benefits. For purposes of paying an amount that is subject to Section 409A of the Code at a time that references Disability, Disability shall mean Separation from Service under these circumstances.
- (s) Effective Date means the date that this Plan is approved by the stockholders of the Corporation.
- (t) Employee means any employee of the Corporation or of any Subsidiary.

A-6

- (u) Employer means the Corporation or any successor thereto or a Subsidiary.
- (v) Evidence of Award means an agreement, certificate, resolution or other written evidence, whether or not in electronic form, that sets forth the terms and conditions of an Award. Each Evidence of Award shall be subject to this Plan and shall contain such terms and provisions, consistent with this Plan, as the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer may approve. An Evidence of Award may be in an electronic medium, may be limited to notation on the books and records of the Corporation and, unless determined otherwise by the Compensation Committee, need not be signed by a representative of the Corporation or a Participant. If an Evidence of Award is limited to notation on the books and records of the Corporation, in the event of any inconsistency between a Participant s records and the records of the Corporation, the records of the Corporation will control.
- (w) Exchange Act means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the regulations promulgated thereunder. Reference to any section or subsection of the Exchange Act includes reference to any comparable or succeeding provisions of any legislation that amends, supplements or replaces such section or subsection.
- (x) Executive Officer means an officer of the Corporation that is subject to the liability provisions of Section 16 of the Exchange Act.
- (y) Free-Standing Appreciation Right means an Appreciation Right granted pursuant to Section 5 of this Plan that is not granted in tandem with an Option Right.
- (z) Good Reason, except as may be otherwise specified in a Participant s Evidence of Award, shall have the meaning assigned such term in (i) the employment agreement, if any, between a Participant and an Employer, or (ii) during the CIC Severance Protection Period (as defined in the CIC Severance Plan), the CIC Severance Plan, if a Participant is a participant in such plan.
- (aa) Incentive Stock Options means Option Rights that are intended to qualify as incentive stock options under Section 422 of the Code.
- (bb) Incumbent Directors means the individuals who, as of the Effective Date, are Directors of the Corporation, and any individual becoming a Director after the Effective Date whose election, nomination for election by the Corporation s stockholders, or appointment, was approved by a vote of at least two-thirds of the then Incumbent Directors (either by a specific vote or by approval of the proxy statement of the Corporation in which such person is named as a nominee for director, without objection to such nomination); provided, however, that an individual shall not be an Incumbent Director if the individual s election or appointment to the Board occurs as a result of an actual or threatened election contest (as described in Rule 14a-12(c) of the Exchange Act) with respect to the election or removal of Directors or other actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consents by or on behalf of a Person other than the Board.
- (cc) Management Objectives means the measurable performance objective or objectives established pursuant to this Plan for Participants who have received grants of Performance Shares or Performance Units or, when so determined by the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer, Option Rights, Appreciation Rights, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, other awards contemplated by Section 10 of this Plan or dividend credits pursuant to this Plan. Management Objectives may be described in terms of Corporation-wide objectives or objectives that are related to the performance of one or more joint ventures, Subsidiaries, business units, divisions, departments, business segments, regions or functions and/or that are related to the performance of the individual Participant. The Management Objectives may be made relative to the performance of other companies or subsidiaries, divisions, departments, regions, functions, or other organizational units

A-7

within such other companies, or an index covering multiple companies. The Compensation Committee may grant Awards to Covered Employees subject to Management Objectives that are either Qualified Performance-Based Awards or are not Qualified Performance-Based Awards. The Management Objectives applicable to any Qualified Performance-Based Award will be based on one or more, or a combination of the following criteria:

(i) net sales; (ii) revenue; (iii) revenue growth or product revenue growth; (iv) operating income (before or after taxes, including operating income before depreciation and amortization); (v) income (before or after taxes and before or after allocation of corporate overhead and bonus); (vi) net earnings; (vii) earnings per share; (viii) net income (before or after taxes); (ix) return on equity; (x) total stockholder return; (xi) return on assets or net assets; (xii) appreciation in and/or maintenance of share price; (xiii) market share; (xiv) gross profits; (xv) earnings (including earnings before taxes, earnings before interest and taxes or earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization); (xvi) economic value-added models or equivalent metrics; (xvii) reductions in costs; (xviii) cash flow or cash flow per share (before or after dividends); (xix) return on capital (including return on total capital or return on invested capital); (xx) cash flow return on investment;

Table of Contents 190

(xxi) improvement in or attainment of expense levels or working capital levels;

Edgar Filing: SPRINT Corp - Form DEF 14A

(xxii) operating, gross, or cash margins;
(xxiii) year-end cash;
(xxiv) debt reductions;
(xxv) stockholder equity;
(xxvi) regulatory achievements;
(xxvii) operating performance;
(xxviii) market expansion;
(xxix) customer acquisition;
(xxx) customer satisfaction;
(xxxi) employee satisfaction:

A-8

(xxxii) implementation, completion, or attainment of measurable objectives with respect to research, development, products or projects and recruiting and maintaining personnel; or

(xxxiii) a published or a special index deemed applicable by the Compensation Committee or any of the above criteria as compared to the performance of any such index, including, but not limited to, the Dow Jones U.S. Telecom Index.

Any Management Objectives that are financial metrics may be determined in accordance with United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) or may be adjusted when established to include or exclude any items otherwise includable or excludable under GAAP. In the case of Qualified Performance-Based Awards, each Management Objective will be objectively determined to the extent required under Section 162(m) of the Code.

In connection with the establishment of Management Objectives, or with respect to the measurement of achievement with respect to a Management Objective, the Compensation Committee may exclude the impact on performance of extraordinary, unusual, or infrequently occurring items, including charges for restructurings; other non-operating items; acquisitions, divestitures, discontinued operations; and other unusual or non-recurring items and the cumulative effects of changes in tax law or accounting principles, as such are defined by generally accepted accounting principles or the Securities and Exchange Commission and as identified in the Corporation s audited financial statements, notes to such financial statements or management s discussion and analysis in the Corporation s annual report or other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. With respect to any grant under the Plan, if the Compensation Committee determines that a change in the business, operations, corporate structure or capital structure of the Corporation, or the manner in which it conducts its business, or other events or circumstances render the Management Objectives unsuitable, the Compensation Committee may in its discretion modify such Management Objectives or the related minimum acceptable level or levels of achievement, in whole or in part, as the Compensation Committee deems appropriate and equitable, except in the case of a Qualified Performance-Based Award when such action would result in the loss of the otherwise available exemption of such Award under Section 162(m) of the Code. In such case, the Compensation Committee will not make any modification of the Management Objectives or the minimum acceptable level or levels of achievement with respect to such Qualified Performance-Based Award. In addition, unless otherwise specified in the Evidence of Award, the Compensation Committee may, in its discretion, increase, reduce or eliminate the amount payable to any Participant with respect to an Award, based on such factors as the Compensation Committee may deem relevant. For purpose of clarity, (i) the amount payable pursuant to performance measures based on qualification of an Award as qualified performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the Code for any Qualified Performance-Based Award may not be increased when such action would result in the loss of the otherwise available exemption of such Award under Section 162(m) of the Code as described above, and (ii) the Compensation Committee may exercise the discretion in the foregoing sentence in a non-uniform manner among Participants.

(dd) Market Value Per Share means, as of any particular date the closing sale price of the Common Stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape or, if not listed on such exchange, on any other national securities exchange on which the Common Stock is listed. If the Common Stock is not traded as of any given date, the Market Value Per Share means the closing price for the Common Stock on the principal exchange on which the Common Stock is traded for the immediately preceding date on which the Common Stock was traded. If there is no regular public trading market for such Common Stock, the Market Value Per Share of the Common Stock shall be the fair market value of the Common Stock as determined in good faith by the Board. The Board is authorized to adopt another fair market value pricing method, provided such method is stated in the Evidence of Award, and is in compliance with the fair market value pricing rules set forth in Section 409A of the Code.

Edgar Filing: SPRINT Corp - Form DEF 14A

A-9

- (ee) Non-Employee Director means a member of the Board who is not an Employee.
- (ff) Non-Qualified Options means Option Rights that are not intended to qualify as incentive stock options under Section 422 of the Code.
- (gg) Normal Retirement except as may be otherwise specified in a Participant s Evidence of Award, means, with respect to any Employee, termination of employment (other than termination for Cause or due to death or Disability) at or after age 65. For purposes of paying an amount that is subject to Section 409A of the Code at a time that references Normal Retirement, Normal Retirement shall mean Separation from Service at or after age 65.
- (hh) Optionee means the Participant named in an Evidence of Award evidencing an outstanding Option Right.
- (ii) Option Price means the purchase price payable on exercise of an Option Right.
- (jj) Option Right means the right to purchase shares of Common Stock upon exercise of a Non-Qualified Option or an Incentive Stock Option granted pursuant to Section 4 of this Plan.
- (kk) Participant means a person who is selected by the Board, the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer to receive benefits under this Plan and who is at the time (i) an Employee or a Non-Employee Director, or (ii) providing services to the Corporation or a Subsidiary, including but not limited to, a consultant, an advisor, independent contractor, or other non-Employee of the Corporation or any one or more of its Subsidiaries (provided that such person satisfies the Form S-8 definition of an employee).
- (ll) Performance Period means, in respect of a Performance Share or Performance Unit, a period of time established pursuant to Section 8 of this Plan within which the Management Objectives relating to such Performance Share or Performance Unit are to be achieved.
- (mm) Performance Share means a bookkeeping entry that records the equivalent of one share of Common Stock awarded pursuant to Section 8 of this Plan.
- (nn) Performance Unit means a bookkeeping entry awarded pursuant to Section 8 of this Plan that records a unit equivalent to \$1.00 or such other value as is determined by the Compensation Committee.
- (oo) Person has the meaning set forth in Section 2(h)(i).
- (pp) Plan means this Sprint Corporation 2015 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as it may be amended from time to time.
- (qq) Plan Year has the meaning set forth in Section 9(g) and (h).
- (rr) Pre-CIC Termination means the termination of a Participant s employment without Cause, provided that both (i) the termination was made in the six (6) month period prior to a Change in Control at the request of a third party in contemplation of a Change in Control, and (ii) the Change in Control occurs. For purposes of paying an amount that is subject to Section 409A of the Code at a time that references a Pre-CIC Termination, Pre-CIC Termination shall mean Separation from Service under these circumstances
- (ss) Predecessor Plans means (i) the Sprint 2007 Plan, and (ii) the Sprint 1997 Plan.

Edgar Filing: SPRINT Corp - Form DEF 14A

(tt) Qualified Performance-Based Award means any Award or portion of an Award that is intended to satisfy the requirements for qualified performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the Code.

A-10

- (uu) Restricted Stock means shares of Common Stock granted or sold pursuant to Section 6 of this Plan as to which neither the substantial risk of forfeiture nor the prohibition on transfer has expired.
- (vv) Restricted Stock Unit means an award granted or sold pursuant to Section 7 of this Plan of the right to receive shares of Common Stock or cash at the end of the Restriction Period.
- (ww) Restriction Period means the period of time during which Restricted Stock Units are subject to restrictions, as provided in Section 7 of this Plan.
- (xx) Separation From Service means a separation from service as such term is defined under Code Section 409A and the Treasury regulations issued thereunder. Except as otherwise required to comply with Code Section 409A, an Employee shall be considered not to have had a Separation From Service where the level of bona fide services performed continues at a level that is at least 21 percent or more of the average level of service performed by the Employee during the immediately preceding 36-month period (or if providing services for less than 36 months, such lesser period) after taking into account any services that the Employee provided prior to such date or that the Corporation and the Employee reasonably anticipate the Employee may provide (whether as an Employee or independent contractor) after such date.

For purposes of the determination of whether a Participant has had a separation from service as described under Code Section 409A and the guidance and Treasury regulations issued thereunder, the terms—Sprint, employer and service recipient mean Sprint Corporation and any affiliate with which Sprint Corporation would be considered a single employer under Code Section 414(b) or 414(c), provided that in applying Code Sections 1563(a)(1), (2), and (3) for purposes of determining a controlled group of corporations under Code Section 414(b), the language—at least 50 percent—is used instead of—at least 80 percent—, each place it appears in Code Sections 1563(a)(1), (2) and (3), and in applying Treasury Regulation Section 1.414(c)-2 for purposes of determining trades or businesses (whether or not incorporated) that are under common control for purposes of Code Section 414(c), at least 50 percent—is used instead of—at least 80 percent—each place it appears in Treasury Regulation Section 1.414(c)-2.

- (yy) Six-Month Payment Delay means the required delay in payment to a Participant who is a specified employee of amounts subject to Section 409A that are paid upon Separation from Service, pursuant to Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code. When a Six-Month Delay is required, the payment date shall be not before the date which is six months after the date of Separation from Service or, if earlier, the date of the Participant s death. The term specified employee shall have the meaning ascribed to this term under Section 409A of the Code.
- (zz) Spread means the excess of the Market Value Per Share on the date when an (i) Option Right is exercised over the Option Price, or (ii) Appreciation Right is exercised over the Option Price or Base Price provided for in the related Option Right or Free-Standing Appreciation Right, respectively.
- (aaa) Sprint 1997 Plan means the 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Program, effective April 15, 1997.
- (ccc) Sprint 2007 Plan means the 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan, effective May 8, 2007.
- (bbb) Subsidiary means (i) any individual, corporation, partnership, association, joint-stock company, trust, incorporated organization or government or political subdivision thereof, that directly,

Edgar Filing: SPRINT Corp - Form DEF 14A

A-11

or through one or more intermediaries, controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Corporation, or (ii) any entity in which the Corporation has a significant equity interest, as determined by the Compensation Committee except that for purposes of determining whether any person may be a Participant for purposes of any grant of Incentive Stock Options, Subsidiary means any corporation in which the Corporation owns or controls, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the total combined voting power represented by all classes of stock issued by such corporation at the time of grant.

- (ccc) Substitute Awards means Awards that are granted in assumption of, or in substitution or exchange for, outstanding awards previously granted by an entity acquired directly or indirectly by the Corporation or with which the Corporation directly or indirectly combines.
- (ddd) Tandem Appreciation Right means an Appreciation Right granted pursuant to Section 5 of this Plan that is granted in tandem with an Option Right.
- (eee) Ten Percent Stockholder shall mean any Participant who owns more than 10% of the combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Corporation, within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code.
- (fff) Termination Date, for purposes of this Plan, except as may be otherwise prescribed by the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer in an Evidence of Award, shall mean (i) with respect to any Employee, the date on which the Employee ceases to be employed by an Employer, or (ii) with respect to any Participant who is not an Employee, the date on which such Participant s provision of services to the Corporation or any one or more of its Subsidiaries ends.
- (ggg) Voting Stock means securities entitled to vote generally in the election of Directors.
- 3. Shares Subject to this Plan.
- (a) Maximum Shares Available Under Plan.
- (i) Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 12 of this Plan, the maximum aggregate number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued or delivered under the Plan is the shares of Common Stock available for grant under the Predecessor Plans as of May 31, 2015. Common Stock to be issued or delivered pursuant to the Plan may be authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock, treasury shares or a combination of the foregoing.
- (ii) In addition to the shares of Common Stock authorized in Section 3(a)(i):
 - (A) any Award (other than an Award that can only be paid in cash) granted pursuant to this Plan (1) that terminates, is forfeited, or expires without having been exercised in full, or (2) is settled in cash, then the underlying shares of Common Stock, to the extent of any such forfeiture, termination, expiration, or cash settlement, again shall be available for grant under this Plan and credited toward the Plan limit as set forth in Section 3(a)(i).
 - (B) any (1) option, stock appreciation right, restricted stock, restricted stock unit, or other award (other than an award that can only be paid in cash) granted pursuant to the Predecessor Plans that terminates, is forfeited, or expires without having been exercised in full or is settled in cash, then

Edgar Filing: SPRINT Corp - Form DEF 14A

the underlying shares of Common Stock, to the extent of any such forfeiture, termination or cash settlement, shall be available for grant under this Plan and credited toward the Plan limit as one share of Common Stock for every one share of Common Stock allocable to any such award.

(iii) Shares of Common Stock that are tendered, whether by physical delivery or by attestation, to the Corporation by a Participant or withheld from the Award by the Corporation

A-12

as full or partial payment of the exercise or purchase price of any Award or in payment of any applicable withholding for Federal, state, city, local or foreign taxes incurred in connection with the exercise, vesting or earning of any Award under the Plan or under the Predecessor Plans will not become available for future grants under the Plan. With respect to an Appreciation Right, when such Appreciation Right is exercised and settled in shares of Common Stock, the shares of Common Stock subject to such Appreciation Right shall be counted against the shares of Common Stock available for issuance under the Plan as one share of Common Stock for every one share of Common Stock subject thereto, regardless of the number of shares of Common Stock used to settle the Appreciation Right upon exercise.

- (b) Life-of-Plan Limits. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 3, or elsewhere in this Plan, to the contrary and subject to adjustment pursuant to Section 12 of this Plan, the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock actually issued or transferred by the Corporation upon the exercise of Incentive Stock Options shall not exceed 150,000,000.
- (c) Individual Participant Limits. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 3, or elsewhere in this Plan, to the contrary and subject to adjustment pursuant to Section 12 of this Plan:
- (i) No Participant shall be granted Option Rights or Appreciation Rights or other awards granted pursuant to Section 10 of this Plan with rights which are substantially similar to Option Rights or Appreciation Rights, in the aggregate, for more than 5,000,000 shares of Common Stock during any fiscal year.
- (ii) For grants of Qualified Performance-Based Awards, no Participant shall be granted Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, Performance Shares or other awards granted pursuant to Section 10 of this Plan with rights which are substantially similar to Performance Shares, in the aggregate, for more than 10,000,000 shares of Common Stock during any fiscal year.
- (iii) For grants of Qualified Performance-Based Awards, no Participant shall be granted Performance Units or other awards granted pursuant to Section 10 of this Plan with rights which are substantially similar to Performance Units, in the aggregate, for more than \$20,000,000 during any fiscal year.
- (d) Limits on Awards to Non-Employee Directors. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan to the contrary, the aggregate grant date fair value (computed as of the date of grant in accordance with applicable financial accounting rules) of all Awards granted to any Non-Employee Director during any single fiscal year (excluding Awards made at the election of the Director in lieu of all or a portion of annual and committee cash retainers pursuant to Section 9(g) or Section 9(h)) shall not exceed \$500,000 (\$1,000,000 for the Chairman or Vice-Chairman).
- (e) Substitute Awards. Any Substitute Awards granted by the Corporation shall not reduce the shares of Common Stock available for Awards under the Plan and will not count against the limits specified in Sections 3(c) or (d) above.
- 4. **Option Rights**. The Compensation Committee or, in accordance with Section 11(d), an Authorized Officer may, from time to time and upon such terms and conditions as it or the Authorized Officer may determine, grant Option Rights to Participants. Each such grant will utilize any or all of the authorizations as specified in the following provisions:
- (a) Each grant will specify the number of shares of Common Stock to which it pertains, subject to the limitations set forth in Section 3 of this Plan.
- (b) Each Option Right will specify an Option Price per share of Common Stock, which (except with respect to Substitute Awards) may not be less than the Market Value Per Share on the Date of

A-13

Grant. In the case of an Incentive Stock Option granted to a Ten Percent Stockholder, the Option Price per share of Common Stock shall not be less than one hundred ten percent (110%) of the Market Value Per Share on the Date of Grant.

- (c) Each Option Right will specify whether the Option Price will be payable (i) in cash or by check or by wire transfer of immediately available funds, (ii) by the actual or constructive transfer to the Corporation of shares of Common Stock owned by the Optionee for at least 6 months (or other consideration authorized pursuant to Section 4(d)) having a value at the time of exercise equal to the total Option Price, (iii) by a combination of such methods of payment and may either grant to the Participant or retain in the Compensation Committee the right to elect among the foregoing alternatives, or (iv) by such other methods as may be approved by the Compensation Committee. No fractional shares of Common Stock will be issued or accepted.
- (d) To the extent permitted by law, any grant may permit deferred payment of the Option Price from the proceeds of sale through a bank or broker designated by, and on a date satisfactory to, the Corporation of some or all of the shares of Common Stock to which such exercise relates.
- (e) Successive grants may be made to the same Participant whether or not any Option Rights previously granted to such Participant remain unexercised.
- (f) Each grant will specify the period or periods of continuous service by the Optionee with the Corporation or any Subsidiary that is necessary before the Option Rights or installments thereof will become exercisable.
- (g) Any grant of Option Rights may specify Management Objectives that must be achieved as a condition to the exercise of such rights. Each grant may specify in respect of such Management Objectives a minimum acceptable level or levels of achievement and may set forth a formula for determining the number of Option Rights that will become exercisable if performance is at or above the minimum level(s), but falls short of full achievement of the specified Management Objectives. The grant will specify that, before the exercise of such Option Rights become exercisable, the Compensation Committee must certify that the Management Objectives have been satisfied.
- (h) Any grant of Option Rights may provide for the earlier exercise of such Option Rights or other modifications, including in the event of termination without Cause, resignation for Good Reason, Normal Retirement, termination due to death or Disability of the Participant, a Change in Control, or the grant of a Substitute Award.
- (i) Option Rights granted under this Plan may be (i) options, including, without limitation, Incentive Stock Options, (ii) Non-Qualified Options, or (iii) combinations of the foregoing. Incentive Stock Options may be granted only to Participants who meet the definition of employee under Section 3401(c) of the Code.
- (j) The exercise of an Option Right will result in the cancellation on a share-for-share basis of any related Tandem Appreciation Right authorized under Section 5 of this Plan.
- (k) No Option Right will be exercisable more than ten (10) years from the Date of Grant. In the case of an Incentive Stock Option granted to an Employee who is a Ten Percent Stockholder, the Incentive Stock Option will not be exercisable more than five (5) years from the Date of Grant.
- (l) An Option Right granted hereunder may be exercisable, in whole or in part, by written notice delivered in person, by mail or by approved electronic medium to the Treasurer of the Corporation at its principal office, or by such other means as the Treasurer or other authorized

A-14

representative of the Corporation shall designate, specifying the number of shares of Common Stock to be purchased and accompanied by payment thereof and otherwise in accordance with the Evidence of Award pursuant to which the Option Right was granted.

- (m) No grant of Option Rights will authorize the payment of dividend equivalents on the Option Right.
- (n) Each grant of Option Rights will be evidenced by an Evidence of Award, which Evidence of Award will describe such Option Rights, and contain such other terms as the Compensation Committee or Authorized Officer may approve.
- (o) Except as provided in an Evidence of Award, in the event of an Optionee s termination of employment or service, any Option Rights that have not vested as of the Optionee s Termination Date will be cancelled and immediately forfeited, without further action on the part of the Corporation or the Compensation Committee, and the Optionee will have no further rights in respect of such Option Rights.

5. Appreciation Rights.

- (a) The Compensation Committee or, in accordance with Section 11(d), an Authorized Officer may grant (i) to any Optionee, Tandem Appreciation Rights in respect of Option Rights granted hereunder, and (ii) to any Participant, Free-Standing Appreciation Rights. All grants of Appreciation Rights will specify the number of shares of Common Stock to which the grant pertains, subject to the limitations set forth in Section 3 of this Plan.
- (b) A Tandem Appreciation Right will be a right of the Optionee, exercisable by surrender of the related Option Right, to receive from the Corporation an amount determined by the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer, which will be expressed as a percentage of the Spread on the related Option Right (not exceeding 100%) at the time of exercise. Tandem Appreciation Rights must be granted concurrently with the related Option Right.
- (c) A Free-Standing Appreciation Right will be a right of the Participant to receive from the Corporation an amount determined by the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer, which will be expressed as a percentage of the Spread (not exceeding one hundred percent (100%)) at the time of exercise.
- (d) No grant of Appreciation Rights will authorize the payment of dividend equivalents on the Appreciation Right.
- (e) Each grant of Appreciation Rights will utilize any or all of the authorizations as specified in the following provisions:
- (i) Any grant may specify that the amount payable on exercise of an Appreciation Right may be paid by the Corporation in cash, in shares of Common Stock or in any combination thereof and may either grant to the Participant or retain in the Compensation Committee the right to elect among those alternatives.
- (ii) Any grant may specify that the amount payable on exercise of an Appreciation Right may not exceed a maximum specified by the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer at the Date of Grant.
- (iii) Any grant may specify waiting periods before exercise and permissible exercise dates or periods.

A-15

- (iv) Any grant of Appreciation Rights may specify Management Objectives that must be achieved as a condition of the exercise of such Appreciation Rights. Each grant may specify in respect of such Management Objectives a minimum acceptable level or levels of achievement and may set forth a formula for determining the number of Appreciation Rights that will become exercisable if performance is at or above the minimum level(s), but falls short of full achievement of the specified Management Objectives. The grant of such Appreciation Rights will specify that, before the exercise of such Appreciation Rights, the Compensation Committee must certify that the Management Objectives have been satisfied.
- (v) Any grant of Appreciation Rights may provide for the earlier exercise of such Appreciation Rights or other modifications, including in the event of termination without Cause, resignation for Good Reason, Normal Retirement, termination due to death or Disability of the Participant, a Change in Control, or the grant of a Substitute Award.
- (vi) Each grant of Appreciation Rights will be evidenced by an Evidence of Award, which Evidence of Award will describe such Appreciation Rights, identify the related Option Rights (if applicable), and contain such other terms and provisions, consistent with this Plan, as the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer may approve.
- (vii) Except as provided in an Evidence of Award, in the event of a Participant s termination of employment or service, any of the Participant s Appreciation Rights that have not vested as of the Participant s Termination Date will be cancelled and immediately forfeited, without further action on the part of the Corporation or the Compensation Committee, and the Participant will have no further rights in respect of such Appreciation Rights.
- (f) Any grant of Tandem Appreciation Rights will provide that such Tandem Appreciation Rights may be exercised only at a time when the related Option Right is also exercisable (and will expire when the related Option Right would have expired) and at a time when the Spread is positive, and by surrender of the related Option Right for cancellation. Successive grants of Tandem Appreciation Rights may be made to the same Participant regardless of whether any Tandem Appreciation Rights previously granted to the Participant remain unexercised. In the case of a Tandem Appreciation Right granted in relation to an Incentive Stock Option to an Employee who is a Ten Percent Stockholder on the Date of Grant, the amount payable with respect to each Tandem Appreciation Right shall be equal in value to the applicable percentage of the excess, if any, of the Market Value Per Share on the exercise date over the Base Price of the Tandem Appreciation Right, which Base Price shall not be less than 110 percent of the Market Value Per Share on the date the Tandem Appreciation Right is granted, and the Incentive Stock Option and related Tandem Appreciation Right shall not be exercisable more than five (5) years from the Date of Grant.
- (g) Regarding Free-Standing Appreciation Rights only:
- (i) Each grant will specify in respect of each Free-Standing Appreciation Right a Base Price, which (except with respect to Substitute Awards) may not be less than the Market Value Per Share on the Date of Grant;
- (ii) Successive grants may be made to the same Participant regardless of whether any Free-Standing Appreciation Rights previously granted to the Participant remain unexercised; and
- (iii) No Free-Standing Appreciation Right granted under this Plan may be exercised more than ten (10) years from the Date of Grant.

A-16

- 6. **Restricted Stock**. The Compensation Committee or, in accordance with Section 11(d), an Authorized Officer may grant or sell Restricted Stock to Participants. Each such grant or sale will utilize any or all of the authorizations as specified in the following provisions:
- (a) Each such grant or sale will constitute an immediate transfer of the ownership of shares of Common Stock to the Participant in consideration of the performance of services, entitling such Participant to voting, dividend and other ownership rights, but subject to the substantial risk of forfeiture and restrictions on transfer hereinafter referred to.
- (b) Each such grant or sale may be made without additional consideration or in consideration of a payment by such Participant, as determined by the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer at the Date of Grant.
- (c) Each such grant or sale will provide that the Restricted Stock covered by such grant or sale that vests upon the passage of time will be subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture within the meaning of Section 83 of the Code, as determined by the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer at the Date of Grant and may provide for the earlier lapse of such substantial risk of forfeiture as provided in Section 6(e) below. In the case of grants that are a form of payment for earned Performance Shares or Performance Units or other awards, such grant may provide for no minimum vesting period.
- (d) Each such grant or sale will provide that during the period for which such substantial risk of forfeiture is to continue, the transferability of the Restricted Stock will be prohibited or restricted in the manner set forth in this Plan, and to the extent prescribed by the Compensation Committee at the Date of Grant (which restrictions may include, without limitation, rights of repurchase or first refusal in the Corporation or provisions subjecting the Restricted Stock to a continuing substantial risk of forfeiture in the hands of any transferee).
- (e) Any grant of Restricted Stock may specify Management Objectives that, if achieved, will result in termination or early termination of the restrictions applicable to such Restricted Stock. Each grant may specify in respect of such Management Objectives a minimum acceptable level or levels of achievement and may set forth a formula for determining the number of shares of Restricted Stock on which restrictions will terminate if performance is at or above the minimum level(s), but falls short of full achievement of the specified Management Objectives. The grant or sale of Restricted Stock will specify that, before the termination or early termination of the restrictions applicable to such Restricted Stock, the Compensation Committee must certify that the Management Objectives have been satisfied.
- (f) Any grant of Restricted Stock may provide for the earlier lapse or other modification, including in the event of termination without Cause, resignation for Good Reason, Normal Retirement, termination due to death or Disability of the Participant, Change in Control, or the grant of a Substitute Award.
- (g) Any such grant or sale of Restricted Stock may require that any or all dividends or other distributions paid thereon during the period of such restrictions be automatically deferred and/or reinvested in additional shares of Restricted Stock (which may be subject to the same restrictions as the underlying Award) or be paid in cash on a deferred or contingent basis.
- (h) Each grant or sale of Restricted Stock will be evidenced by an Evidence of Award and will contain such terms and provisions, consistent with this Plan, as the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer may approve. Unless otherwise directed by the Compensation Committee, (i) all certificates representing shares of Restricted Stock will be held in custody by the Corporation until all restrictions thereon have lapsed, together with a stock power or powers executed by the Participant in

Edgar Filing: SPRINT Corp - Form DEF 14A A-17

whose name such certificates are registered, endorsed in blank and covering such shares of Common Stock, or (ii) all uncertificated shares of Restricted Stock will be held at the Corporation s transfer agent in book entry form with appropriate restrictions relating to the transfer of such shares of Restricted Stock.

- 7. **Restricted Stock Units**. The Compensation Committee or, in accordance with Section 11(d), an Authorized Officer may grant or sell Restricted Stock Units to Participants. Each such grant or sale will utilize any or all of the authorizations as specified in the following provisions:
- (a) Each such grant or sale of Restricted Stock Units will constitute the agreement by the Corporation to deliver shares of Common Stock or cash to the Participant in the future in consideration of the performance of services, but subject to the fulfillment of such conditions (which may include the achievement of Management Objectives) during the Restriction Period as the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer may specify. Each grant may specify in respect of such Management Objectives a minimum acceptable level or levels of achievement and may set forth a formula for determining the number of shares of Restricted Stock Units on which restrictions will terminate if performance is at or above the minimum level(s), but falls short of full achievement of the specified Management Objectives. The grant or sale of such Restricted Stock Units will specify that, before the termination or early termination of the restrictions applicable to such Restricted Stock Units, the Compensation Committee must certify that the Management Objectives have been satisfied.
- (b) Each such grant or sale of Restricted Stock Units may be made without additional consideration or in consideration of a payment by such Participant that is less than the Market Value Per Share at the Date of Grant.
- (c) If the Restriction Period lapses only by the passage of time, each such grant or sale will be subject to a Restriction Period (which may include pro-rata, graded or cliff vesting over such period), as determined by the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer at the Date of Grant. In the case of grants that are a form of payment for earned Performance Shares or Performance Units or other awards, such grant may provide for no Restriction Period.
- (d) Each such grant or sale of Restricted Stock Units may provide for the earlier lapse or other modification of such Restriction Period, including in the event of termination without Cause, resignation for Good Reason, Normal Retirement, termination due to death or Disability of the Participant, a Change in Control, or the grant of a Substitute Award and, to the extent that any grant, sale, or Substitute Award is subject to, or determined to be subject to Section 409A of the Code, the time and form of payment shall be indicated in the Evidence of Award as upon one or more of the permissible payment events under Section 409A of the Code and as subject to the Six-Month Payment Delay, if required.
- (e) During the Restriction Period, the Participant will have none of the rights of a stockholder of any shares of Common Stock with respect to such Restricted Stock Units, but the Compensation Committee may, at the Date of Grant, authorize the payment of dividend equivalents on such Restricted Stock Units on either a current, deferred or contingent basis, either in cash or in additional shares of Common Stock and, the Evidence of Award shall specify the time of payment of such dividend equivalents and indicate that such payment is subject to the Six-Month Payment Delay, if required.
- (f) Each grant or sale of Restricted Stock Units will specify the time and manner of payment of Restricted Stock Units that have been earned and, that such payment is subject to the Six-Month Payment Delay, if required. Any grant or sale may specify that the amount payable with respect thereto may be paid by the Corporation in cash, in shares of Common Stock or in any combination thereof and may either grant to the Participant or retain in the Compensation Committee the right to elect among those alternatives.

A-18

- (g) Each such grant or sale of Restricted Stock Units will provide that during the period for which such Restriction Period is to continue, the transferability of the Restricted Stock Units will be prohibited or restricted in the manner and to the extent prescribed by the Compensation Committee at the Date of Grant (which restrictions may include, without limitation, rights of repurchase or first refusal in the Corporation or provisions subjecting the Restricted Stock Units to a continuing substantial risk of forfeiture in the hands of any transferee).
- (h) Each grant or sale of Restricted Stock Units will be evidenced by an Evidence of Award and will contain such terms and provisions, consistent with this Plan, as the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer may approve.
- (i) Except as provided in an Evidence of Award, in the event of a Participant s termination of employment or service, any of the Participant s Restricted Stock Units that remain subject to the Restriction Period on the Participant s Termination Date will be cancelled and immediately forfeited without further action on the part of the Corporation or the Compensation Committee, and the Participant will have no further rights in respect of such Restricted Stock Units.
- 8. **Performance Shares and Performance Units**. The Compensation Committee or, in accordance with Section 11(d), an Authorized Officer may grant Performance Shares and Performance Units that will become payable to a Participant upon achievement of specified Management Objectives during the Performance Period. Each such grant will utilize any or all of the authorizations as specified in the following provisions:
- (a) Each grant will specify the number of Performance Shares or Performance Units to which it pertains, which number may be subject to adjustment to reflect changes in compensation or other factors; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that no such adjustment will be made in the case of a Qualified Performance-Based Award where such action would result in the loss of the otherwise available exemption of the award under Section 162(m) of the Code.
- (b) The Performance Period with respect to each Performance Share or Performance Unit will be such period of time, as determined by the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer at the Date of Grant.
- (c) Any grant of Performance Shares or Performance Units will specify Management Objectives, which, if achieved, will result in payment of the Award, and each grant may specify in respect of such specified Management Objectives a minimum acceptable level or levels of achievement and will set forth a formula for determining the number of Performance Shares or Performance Units that will be earned if performance is at or above the level(s), but falls short of full achievement of the specified Management Objectives. The grant of Performance Shares or Performance Units will specify that, before the Performance Shares or Performance Units will be earned and paid, the Compensation Committee must certify that the Management Objectives have been satisfied.
- (d) Any grant of Performance Shares or Performance Units may provide for the earlier lapse or other modification, including in the event of termination without Cause, resignation for Good Reason, Normal Retirement, termination due to death or Disability of the Participant, a Change in Control, or the grant of a Substitute Award and to the extent that any grant or Substitute Award is subject to, or determined to be subject to, Section 409A of the Code, the time and form of payment shall be indicated in the Evidence of Award as upon one or more of the permissible payment events under Section 409A of the Code and, as subject to the Six-Month Payment Delay, if required.
- (e) Each grant will specify the time and manner of payment of Performance Shares or Performance Units that have been earned and, that such payment is subject to the Six-Month Delay, if required. Any grant may specify that the amount payable with respect thereto may be paid by the

Edgar Filing: SPRINT Corp - Form DEF 14A A-19

Corporation in cash, in shares of Common Stock, in Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units or in any combination thereof and may either grant to the Participant or retain in the Compensation Committee the right to elect among those alternatives; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that as applicable, the amount payable may not exceed the maximum amount payable, as may be specified by the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer on the Date of Grant.

- (f) The Compensation Committee may provide for the payment of dividend equivalents to the holder thereof on either a current, deferred or contingent basis, either in cash or in additional shares of Common Stock. In this case, the Evidence of Award will specify, the time of payment of such dividend equivalents and, that such payment is subject to the Six-Month Delay, if required.
- (g) Each grant of Performance Shares or Performance Units will be evidenced by an Evidence of Award and will contain such other terms and provisions, consistent with this Plan, as the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer may approve.
- (h) Except as provided in an Evidence of Award, in the event of a Participant s termination of employment or service, any of the Participant s Performance Shares and Performance Units that remain subject to a Performance Period on the Participant s Termination Date will be cancelled and immediately forfeited, without further action on the part of the Corporation or the Compensation Committee, and the Participant will have no further rights in respect of such Performance Shares or Performance Units.
- 9. **Awards to Non-Employee Directors**. The Board may, from time to time and upon such terms and conditions as it may determine, authorize the granting to Non-Employee Directors, Option Rights, Appreciation Rights or other awards contemplated by Section 10 of this Plan and may also authorize the grant or sale of shares of Common Stock, Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units to Non-Employee Directors.
- (a) Each grant of Option Rights awarded pursuant to this Section 9 will be upon terms and conditions consistent with Section 4 of this Plan.
- (b) Each grant of Appreciation Rights pursuant to this Section 9 will be upon terms and conditions consistent with Section 5 of this Plan.
- (c) Each grant or sale of Restricted Stock pursuant to this Section 9 will be upon terms and conditions consistent with Section 6 of this Plan.
- (d) Each grant or sale of Restricted Stock Units pursuant to this Section 9 will be upon terms and conditions consistent with Section 7 of this Plan.
- (e) Non-Employee Directors may be granted, sold, or awarded other awards contemplated by Section 10 of this Plan.
- (f) If a Non-Employee Director subsequently becomes an employee of the Corporation or a Subsidiary while remaining a member of the Board, any Award held under this Plan by such individual at the time of such commencement of employment will not be affected thereby.
- (g) Non-Employee Directors, pursuant to this Section 9, may be awarded, or may be permitted to elect to receive, pursuant to procedures established by the Board or a committee of the Board, all or any portion of their annual retainer, meeting fees or other fees in shares of Common Stock, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units or other Awards contemplated by Section 10 of this Plan in lieu of cash. Any such election shall comply with Section 409A of the Code, if applicable. The election, if subject to Section 409A of the Code, (i) shall apply to the annual retainer,

meeting fees, or

A-20

other fees earned during the period to which it pertains (the Plan Year), (ii) must be received in writing by the administrator of the Plan by the established enrollment deadline of any Plan Year, which must be no later than the last business day of the calendar year immediately preceding the calendar year in which that Plan Year commences, in order to cause that Plan Year s annual retainer, meeting fees, or other fees to be subject to the provision of this Plan, and (iii) must specify the form of distribution (in shares of Common Stock, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, or other Awards contemplated by Section 10 of the Plan in lieu of cash) to the Non-Employee Director. Any such election is irrevocable on the last day set by the administrator for making elections.

- (h) Non-Employee Directors may under policies approved from time to time by the Board or a committee of the Board, elect to defer their annual retainer, meeting fees or other fees and, in which case, the shares of Common Stock purchased under Section 9(g) will be payable to a trust. The election: (i) shall apply to the annual retainer and fees earned during the period to which it pertains (the Plan Year) and shall specify the applicable percentage of such annual retainer and fees that such Non-Employee Director wishes to direct to the trust, (ii) must be received in writing by the administrator of the Plan by the established enrollment deadline of any Plan Year which must be no later than the last business day of the calendar year immediately preceding the calendar year in which that Plan Year commences, in order to cause that Plan Year s annual retainer and fees to be subject to the provisions of this Plan, and (iii) must specify the time and manner of the distribution of the shares of Common Stock to the Non-Employee Director. Any such election is irrevocable on the last day set by the administrator for making elections. The shares of Common Stock covered by this election will be issued in the name of the trustee of the trust for the benefit of the Non-Employee Director; provided, however, that each Non-Employee Director shall be entitled to vote the shares of Common Stock. The trustee shall retain all dividends (which shall be reinvested in shares of Common Stock) and other distributions paid or made with respect thereto in the trust, and all dividends and other distributions will be paid in accordance with the election applicable to the underlying annual retainer and fees. The shares of Common Stock credited to the account of an Non-Employee Director shall remain subject to the claims of the Corporation s creditors, and the interests of the Non-Employee Director in the trust may not be sold, hypothecated or transferred (including, without limitation, transferred by gift or donation) while such shares of Common Stock are held in the trust.
- (i) Notwithstanding anything in Section 5, 6 or 7 to the contrary, each grant pursuant to this Section 9 may specify the period or periods of continuous service, if any, by the Non-Employee Director with the Corporation that are necessary before such awards or installments thereof shall become fully exercisable or restrictions thereon will lapse, which shall be determined on the Date of Grant.

10. Other Awards.

(a) The Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer may, subject to limitations under applicable law, authorize grants or sales to any Participant other awards that may be denominated or payable in, valued in whole or in part by reference to, or otherwise based on, or related to, (i) shares of Common Stock or factors that may influence the value of such shares, including, without limitation, convertible or exchangeable debt securities, other rights convertible or exchangeable into shares of Common Stock, purchase rights for shares of Common Stock, awards with value and payment contingent upon performance of the Corporation or specified Subsidiaries, affiliates or other business units thereof or any other factors designated by the Compensation Committee, and awards valued by reference to the book value of shares of Common Stock or the value of securities of, or the performance of specified Subsidiaries or affiliates or other business units of, the Corporation, (ii) cash, or (iii) any combination of the foregoing. The Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer shall determine the terms and conditions of such awards, which may include the achievement of Management Objectives, which may specify in respect of such Management Objectives a minimum

Edgar Filing: SPRINT Corp - Form DEF 14A A-21

acceptable level or levels of achievement and may set forth a formula for determining the portion or all of the award on which restrictions will terminate if performance is at or above the minimum level(s), but falls short of full achievement of the specified Management Objectives. The grant or sale of such award will specify that, before the termination or early termination of the restrictions applicable to such award, the Compensation Committee must certify that the Management Objectives have been satisfied. Shares of Common Stock delivered pursuant to an award in the nature of a purchase right granted under this Section 10 shall be purchased for such consideration, paid for at such time, by such methods, and in such forms, including, without limitation, cash, shares of Common Stock, other awards, notes or other property, as the Compensation Committee shall determine.

- (b) Each grant may specify the period or periods of continuous service, if any, by the Participant with the Corporation or any Subsidiary that are necessary before such awards or installments thereof shall become fully transferable, which shall be determined by the Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer on the Date of Grant.
- (c) Each grant may provide for the earlier termination of the period or periods of continuous service or other modifications, including in the event of termination without Cause, resignation for Good Reason, Normal Retirement, termination due to death or Disability of the Participant, a Change in Control, or the grant of a Substitute Award and, to the extent that any grant or Substitute Award is subject to, or determined to be subject to, Section 409A of the Code, the time and form of payment shall be indicated in the Evidence of Award as upon one or more of the permissible payment events under Section 409A of the Code and, as subject to the Six-Month Payment Delay, if required.
- (d) The Compensation Committee may authorize grants or sales of shares of Common Stock as a bonus, or may grant other awards in lieu of obligations of the Corporation or a Subsidiary to pay cash or deliver other property under this Plan or under other plans or compensatory arrangements, subject to such terms as shall be determined by the Compensation Committee.
- (e) Each grant or sale pursuant to this Section 10 may be made without additional consideration from the Participant or in consideration of a payment by the Participant that is less than the Market Value Per Share on the Date of Grant; provided, however, that with respect to a payment of an award that is substantially similar to an Option Right, no such payment shall be less than Market Value Per Share on the Date of Grant.

11. Administration of this Plan.

- (a) This Plan will be administered by the Compensation Committee. The Board or the Compensation Committee, as applicable, may from time to time delegate all or any part of its authority under this Plan to any other committee of the Board or subcommittee thereof consisting exclusively of not less than two or more members of the Board, each of whom shall be a non-employee director within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 of the Securities and Exchange Commission promulgated under the Exchange Act, an outside director within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code and an independent director within the meaning of the rules of the New York Stock Exchange, as constituted from time to time. To the extent of any such delegation, references in this Plan to the Board or the Compensation Committee, as applicable, will be deemed to be references to such committee or subcommittee.
- (b) The interpretation and construction by the Compensation Committee of any provision of this Plan or of any agreement, notification or document evidencing the grant of an Award, and any determination by the Compensation Committee pursuant to any provision of this Plan or of any such agreement, notification or document will be final and conclusive.

(c) To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Board or the Compensation Committee, as applicable, may, from time to time, delegate to one or more of its members or to one or more officers

A-22

of the Corporation, or to one or more agents or advisors, such administrative duties or powers as it may deem advisable, and the Board, the Compensation Committee, the committee, or any person to whom duties or powers have been delegated as aforesaid, may employ one or more persons to render advice with respect to any responsibility the Board or the Compensation Committee, the committee or such person may have under this Plan.

- (d) To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Compensation Committee may, by resolution, authorize one or more Executive Officers of the Corporation (each, an Authorized Officer), including the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation, to do one or both of the following on the same basis as the Compensation Committee: (i) designate Participants to be recipients of Awards under this Plan, (ii) determine the size of any such Awards; provided, however, that (A) the Compensation Committee shall not delegate such responsibilities to any Executive Officer for Awards granted to a Participant who is an Executive Officer, a Director, or a more than 10% beneficial owner of any class of the Corporation sequity securities that is registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act, as determined by the Board in accordance with Section 16 of the Exchange Act, and (B) the resolution providing for such authorization sets forth the total number of shares of Common Stock the Authorized Officer(s) may grant, and (iii) the Authorized Officer(s) shall report periodically to the Compensation Committee, as the case may be, regarding the nature and scope of the Awards granted pursuant to the authority delegated. In no event shall any such delegation of authority be permitted with respect to Awards to any Executive Officer or any person subject to Section 162(m) of the Code.
- 12. **Adjustments**. The Board shall make or provide for such adjustments in the numbers of shares of Common Stock covered by outstanding Option Rights, Appreciation Rights, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, Performance Shares, Performance Units and, if applicable, in the number of shares of Common Stock covered by other awards granted pursuant to Section 10 hereof, in the Option Price and Base Price provided in outstanding Option Rights and Appreciation Rights, and in the kind of shares covered thereby, and in other Award terms, as is equitably required to prevent dilution or enlargement of the rights of Participants or Optionees that otherwise would result from (i) any stock dividend, stock split, combination of shares, recapitalization or other change in the capital structure of the Corporation, or (ii) any merger, consolidation, spin-off, split-off, spin-out, split-up, reorganization, partial or complete liquidation or other distribution of assets, issuance of rights or warrants to purchase securities, or (iii) any other corporate transaction or event having an effect similar to any of the foregoing; however, in the event of any such transaction or event, any adjustments shall be in compliance with or maintain exemption from Section 409A of the Code. Such adjustments shall be made automatically, without the necessity of Board action, on the customary arithmetical basis in the case of any stock split, including a stock split effected by means of a stock dividend, and in the case of any other dividend paid in shares of Common Stock; however, any adjustment shall be in compliance with or maintain exemption from Section 409A of the Code. Moreover, in the event of any such transaction or event specified in this Section 12, the Board, in its discretion, and subject to ensuring compliance with or exemption from Section 409A of the Code, may provide in substitution for any or all outstanding Awards under this Plan such alternative consideration (including cash), if any, as it may determine, in good faith, to be equitable in the circumstances and may require in connection therewith the surrender of all Awards so replaced. In addition, for each Option Right or Appreciation Right with an Option Price or Base Price greater than the consideration offered in connection with any such transaction or event, the Compensation Committee may in its discretion elect to cancel such Option Right or Appreciation Right without any payment to the person holding such Option Right or Appreciation Right. The Board also shall make or provide for such adjustments in the numbers of shares specified in Section 3 of this Plan as is appropriate to reflect any transaction or event described in this Section 12; provided, however, that any such adjustment to the number specified in Section 3(b) will be made only if and to the extent that such adjustment would not cause any Option Right intended to qualify as an Incentive Stock Option to fail so to qualify.

13. Change in Control.

- (a) Except as otherwise provided in an Evidence of Award or by the Compensation Committee at the Date of Grant, to the extent outstanding Awards granted under this Plan are not assumed, converted or replaced by the resulting entity in the event of a Change in Control, all outstanding Awards that may be exercised shall become fully exercisable, all restrictions with respect to outstanding Awards shall lapse and become vested and non-forfeitable, and any specified Management Objectives with respect to outstanding Awards shall be deemed to be satisfied at target. If the Award is considered a deferral of compensation (as such term is defined under Code Section 409A), and if the failure of the Award to be assumed, converted or replaced by the resulting entity following the Change in Control would result in a payment of deferred compensation upon the closing of such Change in Control, except as otherwise provided in an Evidence of Award, the payment will occur within 30 days after the Change in Control, provided that such Change in Control may be treated as a change in ownership of the Corporation, a change in the effective control of the Corporation or a change in the effective ownership of a substantial portion of the Corporation s assets as described in Treasury regulations issued under Code Section 409A (each a Code Section 409A Change in Control).
- (b) Except as otherwise provided in an Evidence of Award or by the Compensation Committee, to the extent outstanding Awards granted under this Plan are assumed, converted or replaced by the resulting entity in the event of a Change in Control, any outstanding Awards that are subject to Management Objectives shall be converted by the resulting entity, as if target performance had been achieved as of the date of the Change in Control, and each award of:
- (i) Performance Shares or Performance Units shall continue to vest during the remaining Performance Period,
- (ii) Restricted Stock shall continue to be subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture for the remaining applicable period,
- (iii) Restricted Stock Units shall continue to vest during the Restriction Period, and (iv) all other Awards shall continue to vest during the applicable vesting period, if any.
- (c) Except as otherwise provided in an Evidence of Award or by the Compensation Committee, to the extent outstanding Awards granted under this Plan are either assumed, converted or replaced by the resulting entity in the event of a Change in Control, if a Participant service is terminated without Cause by the Corporation, any of its Subsidiaries or the resulting entity or a Participant resigns his or her employment with an Employer for Good Reason, in either case, during the CIC Severance Protection Period, all outstanding Awards held by the Participant that may be exercised shall become fully exercisable and all restrictions with respect to outstanding Awards shall lapse and become vested and non-forfeitable.
- (d) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, in the event of a Change in Control, the Board in its discretion, may provide for the cancellation of each outstanding and unexercised Option Right or Appreciation Right in exchange for a cash payment to be made within 60 days of the Change in Control in an amount equal to the amount by which the highest price per share of Common Stock paid for a share of Common Stock in the Change in Control exceeds the Option Price or Base Price, as applicable, multiplied by the number of shares of Common Stock granted under the Option Right or Appreciation Right.
- (e) Notwithstanding any provision of this Plan to the contrary, to the extent an Award shall be deemed to be vested or restrictions lapse, expire or terminate upon the occurrence of a Change in Control and such Change in Control is not a Code Section 409A Change in Control, then even though such Award may be deemed to be vested or restrictions lapse, expire or terminate upon the occurrence of the Change in Control or any other provision of this Plan, payment will be made, to the extent necessary to comply with the provisions of Section 409A of the Code, to the Participant on the earliest of: (i) the Participant s Separation from Service with the Corporation: provided, however, that if

the Participant is a specified employee (within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code), the payment date shall be the date that is six (6) months after the date of the Participant s Separation from Service with the Employer, (ii) the date payment otherwise would have been made in the absence of any provisions in this Plan to the contrary (provided such date is permissible under Section 409A of the Code), or (iii) the Participant s death.

(f) Unless otherwise provided in a Participant s employment agreement, if any, between the Participant and an Employer or any other arrangement with the Corporation or any of its Subsidiaries to which the Participant is a party or participant, if the acceleration of exercisability under this Section 13, together with all other payments or benefits contingent on the Change in Control within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code, results in any portion of such payments or benefits not being deductible by the Corporation as a result of the application of Section 280G of the Code, the payments or benefits shall be reduced until the entire amount of the payments or benefits is deductible. The reduction shall be effected from Awards made under this Plan by the exclusion, first, of Awards, or portions thereof, that are not permitted to be valued under Treasury Regulation section 1.280G-1, Q&A 24(c), or any successor provision, and, second, of Awards, or portions thereof, that are permitted to be valued under Treasury Regulation section 1.280G-1, Q&A 24(c).

14. Detrimental Activity.

- (a) Any Evidence of Award may provide that if the Board or the Compensation Committee determines a Participant has engaged in any Detrimental Activity, either during service with the Corporation or a Subsidiary or within a specified period after termination of such service, then, promptly upon receiving notice of the Board s finding, the Participant shall:
- (i) forfeit that Award to the extent then held by the Participant;
- (ii) in exchange for payment by the Corporation or the Subsidiary of any amount actually paid therefor by the Participant, return to the Corporation or the Subsidiary, all shares of Common Stock that the Participant has not disposed of that had been acquired pursuant to that Award;
- (iii) with respect to any shares of Common Stock acquired pursuant to that Award that were disposed of, pay to the Corporation or the Subsidiary, in cash, the difference between:
 - (A) any amount actually paid by the Participant, and
- (B) the Market Value Per Share of the shares of Common Stock on the date acquired; and (iv) pay to the Corporation or the Subsidiary in cash the Spread, with respect to any Option Rights or Appreciation Rights exercised where no shares of Common Stock were retained by the Participant upon such exercise.
- (b) To the extent that such amounts are not paid to the Corporation or the Subsidiary, the Corporation may seek other remedies, including a set off of the amounts so payable to it against any amounts that may be owing from time to time by the Corporation or a Subsidiary to the Participant for any reason, including, without limitation, wages, deferred compensation or vacation pay. To the extent that any set off under this section of the Plan causes the Participant to become subject to taxes under Section 409A of the Code, the responsibility for payment of such taxes lies solely with the Participant.

15. **Non-U.S. Participants**. In order to facilitate the making of any grant or combination of grants under this Plan, the Board or the Compensation Committee may provide for such special terms for awards to Participants who are foreign nationals or who are employed by the Corporation or any Subsidiary outside of the United States of America or who provide services to the Corporation or any

A-25

Subsidiary under an agreement with a foreign nation or agency, as the Board or the Compensation Committee may consider necessary or appropriate to accommodate differences in local law, tax policy or custom. Moreover, the Compensation Committee may approve such supplements to or amendments, restatements or alternative versions of this Plan (including, without limitation, sub-plans) as it may consider necessary or appropriate for such purposes, without thereby affecting the terms of this Plan as in effect for any other purpose, and the Secretary of the Board or other appropriate officer of the Corporation may certify any such document as having been approved and adopted in the same manner as this Plan. No such special terms, supplements, amendments or restatements, however, will include any provisions that are inconsistent with the terms of this Plan as then in effect unless this Plan could have been amended to eliminate such inconsistency without further approval by the stockholders of the Corporation.

16. Transferability.

- (a) Except as otherwise determined by the Board or the Compensation Committee pursuant to the provisions of Section 16(c), no Award or dividend equivalents paid with respect to Awards made under this Plan shall be transferable by the Participant except by will or the laws of descent and distribution, and may be otherwise transferred in a manner that protects the interest of the Corporation as the Board or the Compensation Committee may determine; provided, that if so determined by the Compensation Committee, each Participant may, in a manner established by the Board or the Compensation Committee, designate a beneficiary to exercise the rights of the Participant with respect to any Award upon the death of the Participant and to receive shares of Common Stock or other property issued upon such exercise.
- (b) The Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer may specify at the Date of Grant that part or all of the shares of Common Stock that are (i) to be issued or transferred by the Corporation upon the exercise of Option Rights or Appreciation Rights, upon the termination of the Restriction Period applicable to Restricted Stock Units or upon payment under any grant of Performance Shares or Performance Units or (ii) no longer subject to the substantial risk of forfeiture and restrictions on transfer referred to in Section 6 of this Plan, will be subject to further restrictions on transfer.
- (c) Notwithstanding Section 16(a), the Board or the Compensation Committee may determine that Awards (other than Incentive Stock Options) may be transferable by a Participant, without payment of consideration therefor by the transferee, only to any one or more family members (as defined in the General Instructions to Form S-8 under the Securities Act of 1933) of the Participant; provided, however, that (i) no such transfer shall be effective unless reasonable prior notice thereof is delivered to the Corporation and such transfer is thereafter effected in accordance with any terms and conditions that shall have been made applicable thereto by the Board or the Compensation Committee, and (ii) any such transferee shall be subject to the same terms and conditions hereunder as the Participant.
- 17. **Withholding Taxes**. To the extent that the Corporation is required to withhold federal, state, local or foreign taxes in connection with any payment made or benefit realized by a Participant or other person under this Plan, and the amounts available to the Corporation for such withholding are insufficient, it will be a condition to the receipt of such payment or the realization of such benefit that the Participant or such other person make arrangements satisfactory to the Corporation for payment of the balance of such taxes required to be withheld, which arrangements (in the discretion of the Compensation Committee) may include relinquishment of a portion of such benefit. If a Participant s benefit is to be received in the form of shares of Common Stock, and such Participant fails to make arrangements for the payment of tax, the Corporation shall withhold such shares of Common Stock having a value equal to the amount required to be withheld. Notwithstanding the foregoing, when a

Participant is required to pay the Corporation an amount required to be withheld under applicable income and employment tax laws, the Participant may elect to satisfy the obligation, in whole or in part, by electing to have withheld, from the shares required to be delivered to the Participant, shares of Common Stock having a value equal to the amount required to be withheld (except in the case of Restricted Stock where an election under Section 83(b) of the Code has been made), or by delivering to the Corporation other shares of Common Stock held by such Participant. In no event shall the Market Value Per Share of the shares of Common Stock to be withheld pursuant to this section to satisfy applicable withholding taxes in connection with the benefit exceed the minimum amount of taxes required to be withheld or such other amount that will not result in a negative accounting impact. Participants shall also make such arrangements as the Corporation may require for the payment of any withholding tax obligation that may arise in connection with the disposition of shares of Common Stock acquired upon the exercise of Option Rights.

18. Compliance with Section 409A of the Code.

- (a) To the extent applicable, it is intended that this Plan and any grants made hereunder are exempt from Section 409A of the Code or are structured in a manner that would not cause a Participant to be subject to taxes and interest pursuant to Section 409A of the Code. This Plan and any grants made hereunder shall be administrated in a manner consistent with this intent, and any provision that would cause this Plan or any grant made hereunder to become subject to taxation under Section 409A of the Code shall have no force and effect until amended to comply with Section 409A of the Code (which amendment may be retroactive to the extent permitted by Section 409A of the Code and may be made by the Corporation without the consent of Participants).
- (b) In order to determine for purposes of Section 409A of the Code whether a Participant is employed by a member of the Corporation s controlled group of corporations under Section 414(b) of the Code (or by a member of a group of trades or businesses under common control with the Corporation under Section 414(c) of the Code) and, therefore, whether the shares of Common Stock that are or have been purchased by or awarded under this Plan to the Participant are shares of service recipient stock within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code:
- (i) In applying Code Section 1563(a)(1), (2) and (3) for purposes of determining the Corporation s controlled group under Section 414(b) of the Code, the language at least 50 percent is to be used instead of at least 80 percent each place it appears in Code Section 1563(a)(1), (2) and (3); and
- (ii) In applying Treasury Regulation Section 1.414(c)-2 for purposes of determining trades or businesses under common control with the Corporation for purposes of Section 414(c) of the Code, the language at least 50 percent is to be used instead of at least 80 percent each place it appears in Treasury Regulation Section 1.414(c)-2.

19. Effective Date and Term of Plan.

- (a) This Plan will be effective as of the Effective Date. No grant will be made under this Plan more than ten (10) years after the date on which this Plan is first approved by the stockholders of the Corporation, but all grants made on or prior to such date will continue in effect thereafter subject to the terms thereof and of this Plan.
- (b) Upon the Effective Date, no further grants of awards are permitted under the Predecessor Plans. All awards under the Predecessor Plans that remain outstanding shall be administered and paid in accordance with the provisions of the applicable Predecessor Plan and award agreement.

20. Amendments and Termination.

- (a) The Board may at any time and from time to time, to the extent permitted by Section 409A of the Code, amend, suspend or terminate this Plan in whole or in part; provided, however, that if an amendment to this Plan (i) would materially increase the benefits accruing to Participants under this Plan, (ii) would materially increase the number of securities which may be issued under this Plan, (iii) would materially modify the requirements for participation in this Plan, or (iv) must otherwise be approved by the stockholders of the Corporation in order to comply with applicable law or the rules of the New York Stock Exchange or, if the shares of Common Stock are not traded on the New York Stock Exchange, the principal national securities exchange upon which the shares of Common Stock are traded or quoted, then, such amendment will be subject to stockholder approval and will not be effective unless and until such approval has been obtained.
- (b) Termination of this Plan will not affect the rights of Participants or their successors under any Awards outstanding hereunder and not exercised in full on the date of termination.
- (c) Except in connection with a corporate transaction or event described in Section 12, the Board or the Compensation Committee will not, without the further approval of the stockholders of the Corporation, authorize the amendment of any outstanding Option Right or Appreciation Right to reduce the Option Price or Base Price, respectively. No Option Right or Appreciation Right will be cancelled and replaced with awards having a lower Option Price or Base Price, respectively, or for another award, or for cash without further approval of the stockholders of the Corporation, except in connection with a corporate transaction or event described in Section 12. Furthermore, no Option Right or Appreciation Right will provide for the payment, at the time of exercise, of a cash bonus or grant of Option Rights, Appreciation Rights, Performance Shares, Performance Units, or grant or sale of Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units or other awards pursuant to Section 10 of this Plan, without further approval of the stockholders of the Corporation. This Section 20(c) is intended to prohibit the repricing of underwater Option Rights or Appreciation Rights without stockholder approval and will not be construed to prohibit the adjustments provided for in Section 12 of this Plan.
- (d) If permitted by Section 409A of the Code, in case of termination of service by reason of death, Disability or Normal Retirement, or in the case of unforeseeable emergency or other special circumstances, of a Participant who holds an Option Right or Appreciation Right not immediately exercisable in full, or any shares of Restricted Stock as to which the substantial risk of forfeiture or the prohibition or restriction on transfer has not lapsed, or any Restricted Stock Units as to which the Restriction Period has not been completed, or any Performance Shares or Performance Units which have not been fully earned, or any other awards made pursuant to Section 10 subject to any vesting schedule or transfer restriction, or who holds shares of Common Stock subject to any transfer restriction imposed pursuant to Section 16 of this Plan, the Compensation Committee may, in its sole discretion, accelerate the time at which such Option Right, Appreciation Right or other award may be exercised or the time at which such substantial risk of forfeiture or prohibition or restriction on transfer will lapse or the time when such Restriction Period will end or the time at which such Performance Shares or Performance Units will be deemed to have been fully earned or the time when such transfer restriction will terminate or may waive any other limitation or requirement under any such award, except in the case of a Qualified Performance-Based Award where such action would result in the loss of the otherwise available exemption of the Award under Section 162(m) of the Code.
- (e) Subject to Section 20(c) hereof, the Compensation Committee may amend the terms of any Award theretofore granted under this Plan prospectively or retroactively, except in the case of a Qualified Performance-Based Award where such action would result in the loss of the otherwise available exemption of such Award under Section 162(m) of the Code. In such case, the Compensation Committee will not make any modification of the Management Objectives or the level

A-28

or levels of achievement with respect to such Qualified Performance-Based Award. Subject to Section 12 above, no amendment shall materially impair the rights of any Participant without his or her consent.

- 21. Substitute Awards for Awards Granted by Other Entities. Substitute Awards may be granted under this Plan for grants or awards held by Employees of a company or entity who become Employees of the Corporation or a Subsidiary as a result of the acquisition, merger or consolidation of the employer company by or with the Corporation or a Subsidiary. Except as otherwise provided by applicable law and notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, the terms, provisions and benefits of the Substitute Awards so granted may vary from those set forth in or required or authorized by this Plan to such extent as the Compensation Committee at the time of the grant may deem appropriate to conform, in whole or part, to the terms, provisions and benefits of grants or awards in substitution for which they are granted.
- 22. **Governing Law**. This Plan and all grants and Awards and actions taken thereunder shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal substantive laws of the State of Delaware.

23. Miscellaneous Provisions.

- (a) The Corporation will not be required to issue any fractional shares of Common Stock pursuant to this Plan. The Board or the Compensation Committee may provide for the elimination of fractions or for the settlement of fractions in cash.
- (b) This Plan will not confer upon any Participant any right with respect to continuance of employment or other service with the Corporation or any Subsidiary, nor will it interfere in any way with any right the Corporation or any Subsidiary would otherwise have to terminate such Participant s employment or other service at any time.
- (c) To the extent that any provision of this Plan would prevent any Option Right that was intended to qualify as an Incentive Stock Option from qualifying as such, that provision will be null and void with respect to such Option Right. Such provision, however, will remain in effect for other Option Rights and there will be no further effect on any provision of this Plan.
- (d) The Compensation Committee or an Authorized Officer may provide for termination of an Award in the case of termination of employment or service of a Participant or any other reason; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that all Awards of a Participant will be immediately forfeited and cancelled to the extent the Participant s employment or service has been terminated for Cause, and the Participant will have no further rights in respect of such Awards.
- (e) No Award under this Plan may be exercised by the holder thereof if such exercise, and the receipt of cash or stock thereunder, would be, in the opinion of counsel selected by the Compensation Committee, contrary to law or the regulations of any duly constituted authority having jurisdiction over this Plan.
- (f) Except as required by Section 409A of the Code in connection with a Separation from Service, absence on leave approved by a duly constituted officer of the Corporation or any of its Subsidiaries shall not be considered interruption or termination of service of any Employee for any purposes of this Plan or Awards granted hereunder, except that no Awards may be granted to an Employee while he or she is absent on leave.
- (g) Except as specifically provided in Section 9(h), no Participant shall have any rights as a stockholder with respect to any shares of Common Stock subject to Awards granted to him or her under this Plan prior to the date as of which he or she is actually recorded as the holder of such shares upon the stock records of the Corporation.

A-29

- (h) The Compensation Committee may condition the grant of any Award or combination of Awards authorized under this Plan on the surrender or deferral by the Participant of his or her right to receive a cash bonus or other compensation otherwise payable by the Corporation or a Subsidiary to the Participant.
- (i) Except with respect to Option Rights and Appreciation Rights, the Compensation Committee may permit Participants to elect to defer the issuance of shares of Common Stock or the settlement of Awards in cash under this Plan pursuant to such rules, procedures or programs as it may establish for purposes of this Plan. The Compensation Committee also may provide that deferred issuances and settlements include the payment or crediting of dividend equivalents or interest on the deferral amounts. All elections and deferrals permitted under this provision shall comply with Section 409A of the Code, including setting forth the time and manner of the election (including a compliant time and form of payment), the date on which the election is irrevocable, and whether the election can be changed until the date it is irrevocable.
- (j) Any Award granted under the terms of this Plan may specify in the Evidence of Award that the Participant is subject to restrictive covenants including, but not limited to, covenants not to compete and covenants not to solicit, unless otherwise determined by the Compensation Committee.
- (k) Participants shall provide the Corporation with a completed, written election form setting forth the name and contact information of the person who will have beneficial ownership rights of Awards made to the Participant under this Plan upon the death of the Participant.
- (1) If any provision of this Plan is or becomes invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, or would disqualify this Plan or any Award under any law deemed applicable by the Board or the Compensation Committee, such provision shall be construed or deemed amended or limited in scope to conform to applicable laws or, in the discretion of the Board or the Compensation Committee, it shall be stricken and the remainder of this Plan shall remain in full force and effect.
- (m) <u>Clawback/Recoupment of Awards</u>. All Awards granted under the Plan will be subject to deduction, forfeiture, recoupment or similar requirement in accordance with any clawback policy that may be implemented by the Company from time to time, including such policies that may be implemented after the date an Award is granted, pursuant to the listing standards of any national securities exchange or association on which the Company securities are listed or as is otherwise required by the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act or other applicable law, or other agreement or arrangement with a Participant.

A-30

SPRINT CORPORATION
6200 SPRINT PARKWAY
OVERLAND PARK, KS 66251

SPRINT CORPORATION

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

Please take a moment now to vote the shares of Sprint Corporation common stock for the Friday, August 7, 2015, Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

YOU CAN VOTE TODAY IN ONE OF FOUR WAYS:

1. Vote by Telephone Please call toll-free at 1-800-690-6903 from any touch-tone telephone and follow the instructions. Have your proxy card available when you call and use the Company Number and Account Number shown on this proxy card.

OR

2. Vote by Internet Please access www.proxyvote.com or scan the QR Barcode above and follow the on-screen instructions. Have this proxy card available when you access the web page, and use the Company Number and Account Number shown on your proxy card.

You may vote by telephone or Internet 24 hours a day, 7 days a week until 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on August 6, 2015 (August 4, 2015 for shares held through our 401(k) plan). Your telephone or Internet vote authorizes the named proxies to vote the shares in the same manner as if you had executed a proxy card.

OR

3. Vote by Mail Please complete, sign, date and return the proxy card in the envelope provided to: Vote Processing, c/o Broadridge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, NY 11717 to arrive no later than the closing of the polls on August 7, 2015.

OR

4. During The Meeting - Go to www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/SprintCorp15

TO VOTE, MARK BLOCKS BELOW IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS FOLLOWS:

M93936-P67031-Z65696

KEEP THIS PORTION FOR YOUR RECORDS

DETACH AND RETURN THIS PORTION ONLY

THIS PROXY CARD IS VALID ONLY WHEN SIGNED AND DATED.

SPRINT CORPORATION For Withhold For All To withhold All authority to vote All Except for any individual nominee(s), mark For All Except and write the number(s) of the nominee(s) on the The Board of Directors recommends you vote **FOR** the following proposals: line below. **Election of Directors Nominees:** Nikesh Arora 06) Julius Genachowski 01) 07) Adm. Michael Mullen 02) Robert Bennett Masayoshi 08) 03) Gordon Bethune Son 04) Marcelo Claure 09) Sara Martinez Tucker Ronald Fisher For Against Abstain 05) 2. To ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm of Sprint Corporation for the year ending March 31, 2016. 3. Advisory approval of the Company s named executive officer compensation.

4. To approve the Company s 2015 Omnibus Incentive Plan.

NOTE: The proxy holder(s) will vote in their discretion on any other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

Please sign exactly as your name(s) appear(s) hereon. When signing as attorney, executor, administrator, or other fiduciary, please give full title as such. Joint owners should each sign personally. All holders must sign. If a corporation or other entity, please sign in full corporate or entity name as an authorized officer.

Signature [PLEASE SIGN WITHIND BOOK)]

Signatur Datoint Owners)

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting:

The Notice and Proxy Statement and Form 10-K are available at www.proxyvote.com.

M93937-P67031-Z65696

SPRINT CORPORATION 6200 SPRINT PARKWAY OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66251

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS - August 7, 2015 THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The undersigned hereby appoints Charles R. Wunsch and Timothy P. O Grady, and each of them, with full power of substitution, as proxies, to vote all the shares of stock of Sprint Corporation that the undersigned is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held at 8:00 a.m. Pacific time, on August 7, 2015, and any adjournment or postponement thereof, upon the matters set forth, and in their

discretion upon such other matters as may properly come before the meeting.

This Proxy, if signed and returned, will be voted as indicated. If this card is signed and returned without indication as to how to vote, the shares will be voted FOR items 1 through 4. Any one of said proxies, or any substitutes, who shall be present and act at the meeting shall have all the powers of said proxies hereunder.

Continued and to be signed on reverse side